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PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED JULY 28, 2022

In the opinion of Quarles & Brady LLP, Bond Counsel, assuming continued compliance with the requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, under
existing law interest on the Bonds is excludable from gross income and is not an item of tax preference for federal income tax purposes.  See "TAX EXEMPTION" herein
for a more detailed discussion of some of the federal income tax consequences of owning the Bonds.  The interest on the Bonds is not exempt from present Wisconsin
income or franchise taxes.

The Bonds are "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, relating to the ability of
financial institutions to deduct from income for federal income tax purposes, interest expense that is allocable to carrying and acquiring tax-exempt obligations.

New Issue Rating Application Made: Moody's Investors Service, Inc.

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN
(Chippewa County)

$3,805,000* GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS, SERIES 2022C

BID OPENING:  August 2, 2022, 10:00 A.M., C.T. CONSIDERATION:  August 2, 2022, 6:30 P.M., C.T.

PURPOSE/AUTHORITY/SECURITY: The $3,805,000* General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2022C (the
"Bonds") are authorized pursuant to Section 67.04, Wisconsin Statutes, by the City of Chippewa Falls, Wisconsin (the "City"),
for the public purposes of paying the costs of street and sewerage projects, consisting of storm water projects and current
refunding certain outstanding general obligations of the City as more fully described herein. The Bonds are general obligations
of the City, and all the taxable property in the City is subject to the levy of a tax to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds
as they become due which tax may, under current law, be levied without limitation as to rate or amount.  Delivery is subject to
receipt of an approving legal opinion of Quarles & Brady LLP, Milwaukee, Wisconsin.

DATE OF BONDS: August 23, 2022
MATURITY: As follows:

Maturity Amount* Maturity Amount* Maturity Amount*
10/01/2023 $370,000 10/01/2030 $290,000 10/01/2037 $120,000
10/01/2024 265,000 10/01/2031 185,000 10/01/2038 150,000
10/01/2025 155,000 10/01/2032 190,000 10/01/2039 120,000
10/01/2026 260,000 10/01/2033 105,000 10/01/2040 125,000
10/01/2027 270,000 10/01/2034 110,000 10/01/2041 140,000
10/01/2028 285,000 10/01/2035 115,000 04/01/2042 150,000
10/01/2029 280,000 10/01/2036 120,000

*MATURITY
ADJUSTMENTS: 

The City reserves the right to increase or decrease the principal amount of the Bonds on the day
of sale, in increments of $5,000 each.  Increases or decreases may be made in any maturity.  If any
principal amounts are adjusted, the purchase price proposed will be adjusted to maintain the same
gross spread per $1,000.

TERM BONDS: See "Term Bond Option" herein.
INTEREST: April 1, 2023 and semiannually thereafter.
OPTIONAL
REDEMPTION: 

Bonds maturing on October 1, 2031 and thereafter are subject to call for prior optional redemption
on October 1, 2030 or any date thereafter, at a price of par plus accrued interest.

MINIMUM BID: $3,757,438.
GOOD FAITH DEPOSIT: A good faith deposit in the amount of $76,100 shall be made by the winning bidder by wire

transfer of funds.
PAYING AGENT: Bond Trust Services Corporation.
BOND COUNSEL & 
DISCLOSURE COUNSEL: Quarles & Brady LLP.

MUNICIPAL ADVISOR: Ehlers and Associates, Inc.
BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY: See "Book-Entry-Only System" herein (unless otherwise specified by the purchaser).



REPRESENTATIONS

No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized by the City to give any information or to make any representation other than
those contained in this Preliminary Official Statement and, if given or made, such other information or representations must not be relied upon
as having been authorized by the City.  This Preliminary Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer
to buy any of the Bonds in any jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation in such jurisdiction.

This Preliminary Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract with the Syndicate Manager or Syndicate Members.  Statements
contained herein which involve estimates or matters of opinion are intended solely as such and are not to be construed as representations of
fact.  Ehlers and Associates, Inc. prepared this Preliminary Official Statement and any addenda thereto relying on information of the City and
other sources for which there is reasonable basis for believing the information is accurate and complete.

Quarles & Brady LLP will serve as Disclosure Counsel to the City with respect to the Bonds. Compensation of Ehlers and Associates, Inc.,
payable entirely by the City, is contingent upon the delivery of the Bonds.

COMPLIANCE WITH S.E.C. RULE 15c2-12

Certain municipal obligations (issued in an aggregate amount over $1,000,000) are subject to Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and
Exchange Commission pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Rule").

Preliminary Official Statement:  This Preliminary Official Statement was prepared for the City for dissemination to potential investors. 
Its primary purpose is to disclose information regarding the Bonds to prospective underwriters in the interest of receiving competitive proposals
in accordance with the sale notice contained herein.  Unless an addendum is posted prior to the sale, this Preliminary Official Statement shall
be deemed nearly final for purposes of the Rule subject to completion, revision and amendment in a Final Official Statement as defined below.

Review Period:  This Preliminary Official Statement has been distributed to prospective bidders for review.  Comments or requests for the
correction of omissions or inaccuracies must be submitted to Ehlers and Associates, Inc. at least two business days prior to the sale.  Requests
for additional information or corrections in the Preliminary Official Statement received on or before this date will not be considered a
qualification of a proposal received from an underwriter.  If there are any changes, corrections or additions to the Preliminary Official Statement,
interested bidders will be informed by an addendum prior to the sale.

Final Official Statement:  Copies of the Final Official Statement will be delivered to the underwriter (Syndicate Manager) within seven
business days following the proposal acceptance.

Continuing Disclosure:  Subject to certain exemptions, issues in an aggregate amount over $1,000,000 may be required to comply with
provisions of the Rule which require that underwriters obtain from the issuers of municipal securities (or other obligated party) an agreement
for the benefit of the owners of the securities to provide continuing disclosure with respect to those securities.  This Preliminary Official
Statement describes the conditions under which the City is required to comply with the Rule.

CLOSING CERTIFICATES

Upon delivery of the Bonds, the underwriter (Syndicate Manager) will be furnished with the following items: (1) a certificate of the appropriate
officials to the effect that at the time of the sale of the Bonds and all times subsequent thereto up to and including the time of the delivery of
the Bonds, this Preliminary Official Statement did not and does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; (2) a receipt signed
by the appropriate officer evidencing payment for the Bonds; (3) a certificate evidencing the due execution of the Bonds, including statements
that (a) no litigation of any nature is pending, or to the knowledge of signers, threatened, restraining or enjoining the issuance and delivery of
the Bonds, (b) neither the corporate existence or boundaries of the City nor the title of the signers to their respective offices is being contested,
and (c) no authority or proceedings for the issuance of the Bonds have been repealed, revoked or rescinded; and (4) a certificate setting forth
facts and expectations of the City which indicates that the City does not expect to use the proceeds of the Bonds in a manner that would cause
them to be arbitrage bonds within the meaning of Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or within the meaning of
applicable Treasury Regulations. 
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INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT

This Preliminary Official Statement contains certain information regarding the City of Chippewa Falls, Wisconsin
(the "City") and the issuance of its $3,805,000* General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2022C (the
"Bonds"). Any descriptions or summaries of the Bonds, statutes, or documents included herein are not intended to
be complete and are qualified in their entirety by reference to such statutes and documents and the form of the Bonds
to be included in the resolution awarding the sale of the Bonds ("Award Resolution") to be adopted by the Common
Council on August 2, 2022.

Inquiries may be directed to Ehlers and Associates, Inc. ("Ehlers" or the "Municipal Advisor"), Roseville, Minnesota,
(651) 697-8500, the City's municipal advisor.  A copy of this Preliminary Official Statement may be downloaded
from Ehlers’ web site at www.ehlers-inc.com by connecting to the Bond Sales link and following the directions at
the top of the site.

THE BONDS

GENERAL

The Bonds will be issued in fully registered form as to both principal and interest in denominations of $5,000 each
or any integral multiple thereof, and will be dated, as originally issued, as of August 23, 2022.  The Bonds will mature
on the dates and in the amounts set forth on the cover of this Preliminary Official Statement.  Interest will be payable
on April 1 and October 1 of each year, commencing April 1, 2023, to the registered owners of the Bonds appearing
of record in the bond register as of the close of business on the 15th day (whether or not a business day) of the
immediately preceding month.  Interest will be computed upon the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months
and will be rounded pursuant to rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board ("MSRB").  The rate for any
maturity may not be more than 2.00% less than the rate for any preceding maturity.  (For example, if a rate
of 4.50% is proposed for the 2023 maturity, then the lowest rate that may be proposed for any later maturity
is 2.50%.)  All Bonds of the same maturity must bear interest from the date of issue until paid at a single, uniform
rate.  Each rate must be expressed in an integral multiple of 5/100 or 1/8 of 1%.   

Unless otherwise specified by the purchaser, the Bonds will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for
The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC").  (See "Book-Entry-Only System" herein.)  As long
as the Bonds are held under the book-entry system, beneficial ownership interests in the Bonds may be acquired in
book-entry form only, and all payments of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds shall be made
through the facilities of DTC and its participants.  If the book-entry system is terminated, principal of, premium, if
any, and interest on the Bonds shall be payable as provided in the Award Resolution.

The City has selected Bond Trust Services Corporation, Roseville, Minnesota ("BTSC") to act as paying agent (the
"Paying Agent").  BTSC and Ehlers are affiliate companies.  The City will pay the charges for Paying Agent services. 
The City reserves the right to remove the Paying Agent and to appoint a successor.

*Preliminary, subject to change.
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OPTIONAL REDEMPTION

At the option of the City, the Bonds maturing on or after October 1, 2031 shall be subject to optional redemption prior
to maturity on October 1, 2030 or any date thereafter, at a price of par plus accrued interest to the date of optional
redemption.

Redemption may be in whole or in part of the Bonds subject to prepayment.  If redemption is in part, the selection
of the amounts and maturities of the Bonds to be redeemed shall be at the discretion of the City.  If only part of the
Bonds having a common maturity date are called for redemption, then the City or Paying Agent, if any, will notify
DTC of the particular amount of such maturity to be redeemed.  DTC will determine by lot the amount of each
participant's interest in such maturity to be redeemed and each participant will then select by lot the beneficial
ownership interest in such maturity to be redeemed.

Notice of such call shall be given by sending a notice by registered or certified mail, facsimile or electronic
transmission, overnight delivery service or in any other manner required by DTC, not less than 30 days nor more than
60 days prior to the date fixed for redemption to the registered owner of each Bond to be redeemed at the address
shown on the registration books.

AUTHORITY; PURPOSE

The Bonds are authorized pursuant to Section 67.04, Wisconsin Statutes, by the City, for the public purposes of
paying the costs of street and sewerage projects, consisting of storm water projects and current refunding the portion
of the City’s General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2014A, dated July 9, 2014 (the "Series 2014A
Bonds") described below and all of the General Obligation Promissory Note, Series 2022A, which is expected to be
dated July 28, 2022 (the "Series 2022A Note") as follows:

Issue Being Refunded

Date of
Refunded

Issue
Call
Date

Call
Price

Maturities
Being

Refunded
Interest
Rates

Principal
 to be

Refunded

CUSIP
Base

169772

Series 2014A Bonds 7/9/14 10/1/22 Par 2024 (term) 3.000% $365,000 XE5
2026 (term) 3.000% 225,000 XG0
2028 (term) 3.500% 355,000 XJ4
2030 (term) 3.750%     350,000 XL9

Total Series 2014A Bonds Being Refunded $1,295,000

A portion of the proceeds of the Bonds will be used to call and prepay the Series 2014A Bonds shown above.  The
remaining portion of the above-described maturities of the Series 2014A Bonds will be refunded with proceeds of
the Series 2022E Bonds (as defined herein).  

Issue Being Refunded

Date of
Refunded

Issue
Call
Date

Call
Price

Maturity
Being

Refunded
Interest

Rate

Principal
 to be

Refunded

Series 2022A Note 7/28/22 8/24/22 Par 2023 2.000% $719,000

Total Series 2022A Note Being Refunded $719,000
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ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES*

Sources

Par Amount of Bonds $3,805,000

Total Sources $3,805,000

Uses

Estimated Underwriter's Discount $47,563

Costs of Issuance 68,900

Deposit to Project Construction Fund 1,668,600

Deposit to Refunding Fund 2,015,039

Rounding Amount        4,898

Total Uses $3,805,000

*Preliminary, subject to change.

SECURITY

For the prompt payment of the Bonds with interest thereon and for the levy of taxes sufficient for this purpose, the
full faith, credit and resources of the City will be irrevocably pledged.  The City will levy a direct, annual,
irrepealable tax on all taxable property in the City sufficient to pay the interest on the Bonds when it becomes due
and also to pay and discharge the principal on the Bonds at maturity, in compliance with Article XI, Section 3 of the
Wisconsin Constitution.  Such tax may, under current law, be levied without limitation as to rate or amount.

RATING

General obligation debt of the City is currently rated "Aa2" by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. ("Moody’s"). 

The City has requested a rating on the Bonds from Moody's, and bidders will be notified as to the assigned rating
prior to the sale. Such rating, if any, reflects only the views of such organization and explanations of the significance
of such rating may be obtained from Moody's.  

Generally, a rating agency bases its rating on the information and materials furnished to it and on investigations,
studies and assumptions of its own.  There is no assurance that such rating will continue for any given period of time
or that it will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by such rating agency, if in the judgment of such rating
agency circumstances so warrant.  Any such downward revision or withdrawal of such rating may have an adverse
effect on the market price of the Bonds.

Such rating is not to be construed as a recommendation of the rating agency to buy, sell or hold the Bonds, and the
rating assigned by the rating agency should be evaluated independently.  Except as may be required by the Disclosure
Undertaking described under the heading "CONTINUING DISCLOSURE" neither the City nor the underwriter
undertake responsibility to bring to the attention of the owner of the Bonds any proposed changes in or withdrawal
of such rating or to oppose any such revision or withdrawal.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

In order to assist brokers, dealers, and municipal securities dealers, in connection with their participation in the
offering of the Bonds, to comply with Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission,
pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Rule"), the  City shall agree to provide certain
information to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board ("MSRB") through its Electronic Municipal Market
Access ("EMMA") system, or any system that may be prescribed in the future.  The Rule was last amended, effective
February 27, 2019, to include an expanded list of material events.  The Disclosure Undertaking includes the two new
material events effective February 27, 2019 under the Rule.

On the date of issue and delivery, the City shall execute and deliver a Continuing Disclosure Certificate, under which
the City will covenant for the benefit of holders including beneficial holders, to provide electronically, or in a manner
otherwise prescribed, certain financial information annually and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain events
enumerated in the Rule (the "Disclosure Undertaking").  The details and terms of the Disclosure Undertaking for the
City are set forth in Appendix D.  Such Disclosure Undertaking will be in substantially the form attached hereto.

A failure by the City to comply with the Disclosure Undertaking will not constitute an event of default on the Bonds.
However, such a failure may adversely affect the transferability and liquidity of the Bonds and their market price.

In the previous five years, the City believes it has not failed to comply in all material respects with its prior
undertakings under the Rule.  The City has reviewed its continuing disclosure responsibilities, including the two new
material events, to help ensure compliance in the future.  Ehlers is currently engaged as dissemination agent for the
City.

LEGAL MATTERS 

An opinion as to the validity of the Bonds and the exemption from federal taxation of the interest thereon will be
furnished by Quarles & Brady LLP,  Bond Counsel to the City, and will be available at the time of delivery of the
Bonds. The legal opinion will be issued on the basis of existing law and will state that the Bonds are valid and
binding general obligations of the City; provided that the rights of the owners of the Bonds and the enforceability
of the Bonds may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, and other similar laws affecting
creditors' rights and by equitable principles (which may be applied in either a legal or equitable proceeding). (See
FORM OF LEGAL OPINION" found in Appendix B). 

Quarles & Brady LLP has also been retained by the City to serve as Disclosure Counsel to the City with respect to
the Bonds. Although, as Disclosure Counsel to the City, Quarles & Brady LLP has assisted the City with certain
disclosure matters, Quarles & Brady LLP has not undertaken to independently verify the accuracy, completeness or
sufficiency of this Official Statement or other offering material relating to the Bonds and assumes no responsibility
whatsoever nor shall have any liability to any other party for the statements or information contained or incorporated
by reference in this Official Statement.  Further, Quarles & Brady LLP makes no representation as to the suitability
of the Bonds for any investor.
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TAX EXEMPTION

Quarles & Brady LLP, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, Bond Counsel, will deliver a legal opinion with respect to the federal
income tax exemption applicable to the interest on the Bonds under existing law substantially in the following form:

"The interest on the Bonds is excludable for federal income tax purposes from the gross income of the
owners of the Bonds.  The interest on the Bonds is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal
alternative minimum tax imposed by Section 55 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the
"Code") on individuals.  The Code contains requirements that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance
of the Bonds in order for interest on the Bonds to be or continue to be excludable from gross income for
federal income tax purposes.  Failure to comply with certain of those requirements could cause the interest
on the Bonds to be included in gross income retroactively to the date of issuance of the Bonds.  The City has
agreed to comply with all of those requirements.  The opinion set forth in the first sentence of this paragraph
is subject to the condition that the City comply with those requirements.  We express no opinion regarding
other federal tax consequences arising with respect to the Bonds."

The interest on the Bonds is not exempt from present Wisconsin income or franchise taxes.

Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should be aware that ownership of the Bonds may result in collateral federal
income tax consequences to certain taxpayers.  Bond Counsel will not express any opinion as to such collateral tax
consequences.  Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult their tax advisors as to collateral federal income
tax consequences.

From time to time legislation is proposed, and there are or may be legislative proposals pending in the Congress of
the United States that, if enacted, could alter or amend the federal tax matters referred to above or adversely affect
the market value of the Bonds.  It cannot be predicted whether, or in what form, any proposal that could alter one or
more of the federal tax matters referred to above or adversely affect the market value of the Bonds may be
enacted. Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult their own tax advisors regarding any pending or
proposed federal tax legislation. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any pending or proposed federal tax
legislation.

ORIGINAL ISSUE DISCOUNT

To the extent that the initial public offering price of certain of the Bonds is less than the principal amount payable
at maturity, such Bonds ("Discounted Bonds") will be considered to be issued with original issue discount.  The
original issue discount is the excess of the stated redemption price at maturity of a Discounted Bond over the initial
offering price to the public, excluding underwriters or other intermediaries, at which price a substantial amount of
such Discounted Bonds were sold (issue price).  With respect to a taxpayer who purchases a Discounted Bond in the
initial public offering at the issue price and who holds such Discounted Bond to maturity, the full amount of original
issue discount will constitute interest that is not includible in the gross income of the owner of such Discounted Bond
for federal income tax purposes and such owner will not, subject to the caveats and provisions herein described,
realize taxable capital gain upon payment of such Discounted Bond upon maturity.

Original issue discount is treated as compounding semiannually, at a rate determined by reference to the yield to
maturity of each individual Discounted Bond, on days that are determined by reference to the maturity date of such
Discounted Bond.  The amount treated as original issue discount on a Discounted Bond for a particular semiannual
accrual period is generally equal to (a) the product of (i) the yield to maturity for such Discounted Bond (determined
by compounding at the close of each accrual period) and (ii) the amount that would have been the tax basis of such
Discounted Bond at the beginning of the particular accrual period if held by the original purchaser; and less (b) the
amount of any interest payable for such Discounted Bond during the accrual period.  The tax basis is determined by
adding to the initial public offering price on such Discounted Bond the sum of the amounts that have been treated
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as original issue discount for such purposes during all prior periods.  If a Discounted Bond is sold or exchanged
between semiannual compounding dates, original issue discount that would have been accrued for that semiannual
compounding period for federal income tax purposes is to be apportioned in equal amounts among the days in such
compounding period.

For federal income tax purposes, the amount of original issue discount that is treated as having accrued with respect
to such Discounted Bond is added to the cost basis of the owner in determining gain or loss upon disposition of a
Discounted Bond (including its sale, exchange, redemption, or payment at maturity). Amounts received upon
disposition of a Discounted Bond that are attributable to accrued original issue discount will be treated as tax-exempt
interest, rather than as taxable gain. 

The accrual or receipt of original issue discount on the Discounted Bonds may result in certain collateral federal
income tax consequences for the owners of such Discounted Bonds.  The extent of these collateral tax consequences
will depend upon the owner's particular tax status and other items of income or deduction.  

The Code contains additional provisions relating to the accrual of original issue discount.  Owners who purchase
Discounted Bonds at a price other than the issue price or who purchase such Discounted Bonds in the secondary
market should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences of owning the Discounted Bonds. 
Under the applicable provisions governing the determination of state and local taxes, accrued interest on the
Discounted Bonds may be deemed to be received in the year of accrual even though there will not be a corresponding
cash payment until a later year.  Owners of Discounted Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to
the state and local tax consequences of owning the Discounted Bonds.

BOND PREMIUM

To the extent that the initial offering price of certain of the Bonds is more than the principal amount payable at
maturity, such Bonds ("Premium Bonds") will be considered to have bond premium.

Any Premium Bond purchased in the initial offering at the issue price will have "amortizable bond premium" within
the meaning of Section 171 of the Code.  The amortizable bond premium of each Premium Bond is calculated on a
daily basis from the issue date of such Premium Bond until its stated maturity date (or call date, if any) on the basis
of a constant interest rate compounded at each accrual period (with straight line interpolation between the
compounding dates).  An owner of a Premium Bond that has amortizable bond premium is not allowed any deduction
for the amortizable bond premium; rather the amortizable bond premium attributable to a taxable year is applied
against (and operates to reduce) the amount of tax-exempt interest payments on the Premium Bonds.  During each
taxable year, such an owner must reduce his or her tax basis in such Premium Bond by the amount of the amortizable
bond premium that is allocable to the portion of such taxable year during which the holder held such Premium Bond. 
The adjusted tax basis in a Premium Bond will be used to determine taxable gain or loss upon a disposition (including
the sale, exchange, redemption, or payment at maturity) of such Premium Bond.

Owners of Premium Bonds who did not purchase such Premium Bonds in the initial offering at the issue price should
consult their own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences of owning such Premium Bonds.  Owners of
Premium Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the state and local tax consequences of owning
the Premium Bonds.  

QUALIFIED TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS

The Bonds are "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code relating to the ability
of financial institutions to deduct from income for federal income tax purposes, interest expense that is allocable to
carrying and acquiring tax-exempt obligations.
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MUNICIPAL ADVISOR

Ehlers has served as municipal advisor to the City in connection with the issuance of the Bonds.  The Municipal
Advisor cannot participate in the underwriting of the Bonds. The financial information included in this Official
Statement has been compiled by the Municipal Advisor.  Such information does not purport to be a review, audit or
certified forecast of future events and may not conform with accounting principles applicable to compilations of
financial information.  Ehlers is not a firm of certified public accountants.  Ehlers is registered with the Securities
and Exchange Commission and the MSRB as a municipal advisor. 

MUNICIPAL ADVISOR AFFILIATED COMPANIES

BTSC and Ehlers Investment Partners, LLC ("EIP") are affiliate companies of Ehlers.  BTSC is chartered by the State
of Minnesota and authorized in Minnesota, Wisconsin,  Colorado, and Illinois to transact the business of a limited
purpose trust company.  BTSC provides paying agent services to debt issuers.  EIP is a Registered Investment Advisor
with the Securities and Exchange Commission.  EIP assists issuers with the investment of bond proceeds or investing
other issuer funds.  This includes escrow bidding agent services.  Issuers, such as the City, have retained or may retain
BTSC and/or EIP to provide these services.  If hired, BTSC and/or EIP would be retained by the City under an
agreement separate from Ehlers. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The basic financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020 have been audited by
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP, Eau Claire, Wisconsin, independent auditors (the "Auditor"). The report of the Auditor,
together with the basic financial statements, component units financial statements, and notes to the financial
statements are attached hereto as "APPENDIX A – FINANCIAL STATEMENTS".  The Auditor has not been
engaged to perform and has not performed, since the date of its report included herein, any procedures on the
financial statements addressed in that report.  The Auditor also has not performed any procedures relating to this
Official Statement.  

RISK FACTORS

Following is a description of possible risks to holders of the Bonds without weighting as to probability. This
description of risks is not intended to be all-inclusive, and there may be other risks not now perceived or listed here. 
Potential investors should read this Official Statement, including the appendices, in its entirety.

Taxes:  The Bonds  are general obligations of the City, the ultimate payment of which rests in the City's ability to
levy and collect sufficient taxes to pay debt service. In the event of delayed billing, collection or distribution of
property taxes, sufficient funds may not be available to the City in time to pay debt service when due.

State Actions:  Many elements of local government finance, including the issuance of debt and the levy of property
taxes, are controlled by state government.  Future actions of the State of Wisconsin (the "State") may affect the
overall financial condition of the City, the taxable value of property within the City, and the ability of the City to levy
and collect property taxes. 

Future Changes in Law: Various State and federal laws, regulations and constitutional provisions apply to the  City
and to the Bonds.  The City can give no assurance that there will not be a change in or interpretation of any such
applicable laws, regulations and provisions which would have a material effect on the City or the taxing authority
of the City.
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Ratings; Interest Rates:  In the future, the City's credit rating may be reduced or withdrawn, or interest rates for this
type of obligation may rise generally, either possibility resulting in a reduction in the value of the Bonds for resale
prior to maturity.

Tax Exemption:  If the federal government taxes all or a portion of the interest on municipal bonds or notes or if
the State government increases its tax on interest on bonds and notes, directly or indirectly, or if there is a change
in federal or state tax policy, then the value of these Bonds may fall for purposes of resale.  Noncompliance by the
City with the covenants in the Award Resolution relating to certain continuing requirements of the Code may result
in inclusion of interest to be paid on the Bonds in gross income of the recipient for United States income tax
purposes, retroactive to the date of issuance.

Continuing Disclosure:  A failure by the City to comply with the Disclosure Undertaking for continuing disclosure
(see "CONTINUING DISCLOSURE") will not constitute an event of default on the Bonds.  Any such failure must
be reported in accordance with the Rule and must be considered by any broker, dealer, or municipal securities dealer
before recommending the purchase or sale of the Bonds in the secondary market.  Such a failure may adversely affect
the transferability and liquidity of the Bonds and their market price.

Book-Entry-Only System: The timely credit of payments for principal and interest on the Bonds to the accounts
of the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds may be delayed due to the customary practices, standing instructions or for
other unknown reasons by DTC participants or indirect participants. Since the notice of redemption or other notices
to holders of these obligations will be delivered by the City to DTC only, there may be a delay or failure by DTC,
DTC participants or indirect participants to notify the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.

Depository Risk: Wisconsin Statutes direct the local treasurer to immediately deposit upon receipt thereof, the funds
of the municipality in a public depository designated by the governing body. A public depository means a federal or
state credit union, federal or state savings and loan association, state bank, savings and trust company, mutual savings
bank or national bank in Wisconsin or the local government pooled investment fund operated by the State Investment
Board. It is not uncommon for a municipality to have deposits exceeding limits of federal and State insurance
programs. Failure of a depository could result in loss of public funds or a delay in obtaining them. Such a loss or
delay could interrupt a timely payment of municipal debt.

Economy: A combination of economic, climatic, political or civil disruptions or terrorist actions outside of the
control of the City, including loss of major taxpayers or major employers, could affect the local economy and result
in reduced tax collections and/or increased demands upon local government. Real or perceived threats to the financial
stability of the City may have an adverse effect on the value of the Bonds in the secondary market.

Secondary Market for the Bonds: No assurance can be given that a secondary market will develop for the purchase
and sale of the Bonds or, if a secondary market exists, that such Bonds can be sold for any particular price. The
underwriters are not obligated to engage in secondary market trading or to repurchase any of the Bonds at the request
of the owners thereof. Prices of the Bonds as traded in the secondary market are subject to adjustment upward and
downward in response to changes in the credit markets and other prevailing circumstances. No guarantee exists as
to the future market value of the Bonds. Such market value could be substantially different from the original purchase
price. 

Bankruptcy: The rights and remedies of the holders may be limited by and are subject to the provisions of federal
bankruptcy laws, to other laws, or equitable principles that may affect the enforcement of creditors’ rights, to the
exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases and to limitations on legal remedies against local governments.
The opinion of Bond Counsel to be delivered with respect to the Bonds will be similarly qualified. See "MUNICIPAL
BANKRUPTCY" herein.
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Cybersecurity: The City is dependent on electronic information technology systems to deliver services. These
systems may contain sensitive information or support critical operational functions which may have value for
unauthorized purposes. As a result, the electronic systems and networks may be targets of cyberattack. There can be
no assurance that the City will not experience an information technology breach or attack with financial consequences
that could have a material adverse impact.  

Impact of the Spread of COVID-19: In late 2019, a novel strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) emerged in Wuhan,
Hubei Province, China. COVID-19 has spread throughout the world, including to the United States, resulting in the
World Health Organization proclaiming COVID-19 to be a pandemic and former President Trump declaring a
national emergency. In response to the spread of COVID-19, the United States government, state governments, local
governments and private industries have taken measures to limit social interactions in an effort to limit the spread
of COVID-19. The effects of the spread of COVID-19 and the government and private responses to the spread
continue to evolve. COVID-19 has caused significant disruptions to the global, national and State economy.  The
extent to which the coronavirus continues to impact the City and its financial condition will depend on future
developments, which are uncertain and cannot be predicted by the City, including the duration of the outbreak and
future measures taken to address the outbreak.
                                                                                                               
On March 12, 2020, Wisconsin Governor Tony Evers declared a public health emergency in the State in response
to the growing threat of COVID-19. That declaration included direction to the state Department of Health Services
to use any and all required resources to respond to and contain the outbreak. Governor Evers followed that up with
a "safer at home" order (the "Order") on March 24, 2020, closing nonessential businesses, banning gatherings of any
size and imposing strict travel restrictions through April 24, 2020. On April 16, 2020, the Order was extended from
April 24, 2020 through May 26, 2020. On April 21, 2020, Republican legislators in the State filed a lawsuit
challenging the legality of the Order. On May 13, 2020, the Wisconsin Supreme Court ruled that the State's Order
is unlawful, invalid and unenforceable because the emergency rulemaking procedures under Section 227.24 of the
Wisconsin Statutes and procedures established by the Wisconsin Legislature for rulemaking if criminal penalties were
to follow were not followed  in connection with the Order. The Supreme Court's decision does not invalidate any
local health officials' orders or prevent future local health officials' orders related to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

On July 30, 2020, Governor Evers issued Executive Order #82, declaring a public health emergency in Wisconsin
to combat the spread of COVID-19. In conjunction with Executive Order #82, Governor Evers issued Emergency
Order #1, requiring most people to wear face coverings when indoors, with certain exemptions in accordance with
CDC guidelines. The public health emergency and mask orders have been extended multiple times, with the most
recent extension on January 19, 2021 through March 20, 2021. On February 4, 2021, the Wisconsin Assembly voted
to repeal the Governor’s order requiring face coverings. Later the same day, Governor Evers issued a new Emergency
Order #1 requiring the use of face coverings through April 5, 2021. On March 31, 2021, the Wisconsin Supreme
Court struck down Emergency Order #1, finding that legislative approval was required to continue the order beyond
its original 60-day period. The ruling does not impact the validity of local mandates.

The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (the "CARES Act") provides for federal payments from
the Coronavirus Relief Fund to the State for the discrete purpose of covering expenses directly incurred as a result
of COVID-19 between March 1 and December 30, 2020. On May 27, 2020, Governor Tony Evers announced a
program titled, "Routes to Recovery: Local Government Aid Grants," which distributed $190 million of the State's
Coronavirus Relief Fund monies to all counties, cities, villages and towns across Wisconsin for unbudgeted eligible
expenditures incurred due to COVID-19 between March 1 and November 17, 2020. The State allocated funds based
on population with a guaranteed minimum allocation of $5,000. The City's allocation was $230,337. These funds
were disbursed up to the amount of the allocation after eligible expenditures were reported through the State's cost
tracker application. On March 11, 2021, President Biden signed the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, which
provides local governments an additional $130.2 billion through the Coronavirus Local Fiscal Recovery Fund. These
funds can be used to mitigate increased expenditures, lost revenue and economic hardship related to the COVID-19
pandemic, with half received in 2021 and half received in 2022. The City’s allocation is $1,503,668.
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VALUATIONS

WISCONSIN PROPERTY VALUATIONS; PROPERTY TAXES

Equalized Value

Section 70.57, Wisconsin Statutes, requires the Department of Revenue to annually determine the equalized value
(also referred to as full equalized value or aggregate full value) of all taxable property in each county and taxation
district.  The equalized value is an independent estimate of value used to equate individual local assessment policies
so that property taxes are uniform throughout the various subdivisions in the State.  Equalized value is calculated
based on the history of comparable sales and information about value changes or taxing status provided by the local
assessor.  A comparison of the State-determined equalized value and the local assessed value, expressed as a
percentage, is known as the assessment ratio or level of assessment.  The Department of Revenue notifies each county
and taxing jurisdiction of its equalized value on August 15; school districts are notified on October 1.  The equalized
value of each county is the sum of the valuations of all cities, villages, and towns within its boundaries.  Taxing
jurisdictions lying in more than one municipality, such as counties, school districts, or special taxing districts, use
the equalized value of the underlying units in calculating and levying their respective levies.  Equalized values are 
also used to apportion state aids and calculate municipal general obligation debt limits.

Assessed Value

The "assessed value" of taxable property in a municipality is determined by the local assessor, except for
manufacturing properties which are valued by the State.  Each city, village or town retains its own local assessor, who
must be certified by the State Department of Revenue.  Assessed value is used by these municipalities to determine
tax levy mill rates and to apportion levies among individual property owners.  Each taxing district must assess
property at full value at least once in every five-year period.  The State requires that the assessed values must be
within 10% of State equalized values at least once every four years.  The local assessor values property as of January
1 each year and submits those values to each municipality by the second Monday in June.  The assessor also reports
any value changes taking place since the previous year, to the Department of Revenue, by the second Monday in June.
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CURRENT PROPERTY VALUATIONS

2021 Equalized Value $1,283,104,300

2021 Equalized Value Reduced by Tax Increment Valuation $1,120,159,100

2021 Assessed Value $1,221,709,200

 
2021 EQUALIZED VALUE BY CLASSIFICATION

2021
 Equalized Value1

Percent of Total
Equalized Value

Residential $701,736,800 54.691%

Commercial 447,531,000 34.879%

Manufacturing 97,712,200 7.615%

Agricultural 63,500 0.005%

Undeveloped 69,800 0.005%

Ag Forest 101,200 0.008%

Personal Property 35,889,800 2.797%

Total $1,283,104,300 100.000%

TREND OF VALUATIONS

Year
Assessed

Value
Equalized

Value1

Percent
Increase/Decrease
in Equalized Value

2017 $821,204,500 $900,213,300 3.78%

2018 881,208,700 1,000,582,900 11.15%

2019 896,517,600 1,116,087,900 11.54%

2020 1,211,818,800 1,227,874,800 10.02%

2021 1,221,709,200 1,283,104,300 4.50%

Source: Wisconsin Department of Revenue, Bureau of Equalization and Local Government Services Bureau.

1 Includes tax increment valuation.
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LARGER TAXPAYERS

Taxpayer Type of Business/Property

2021
Equalized

 Value1

Percent of
 City's Total

Equalized Value

Mills Fleet Farm Distribution Center $66,370,979 5.17%

Independence WI LLC Sand Processing Center 29,104,110 2.27%

Chippewa Falls Warehouse Trucking Transfer Facility 22,535,443 1.76%

Hewlett Packard Enterprise Company Technology 17,229,475 1.34%

2 Rivers Real Estate Real Estate 13,292,218 1.04%

Mason Shoe Manufacturing Co Footwear 11,895,096 0.93%

Lakeland Drive LLC - Nordson EDI Manufacturing 11,237,190 0.88%

Premium Waters Inc. Bottled Water Company 10,681,161 0.83%

Vereit Real Estate LP Real Estate 9,874,840 0.77%

TTM Advanced Circuits Circuit Boards Manufacturer 9,508,995 0.74%

Total $201,729,507 15.72%

City's Total 2021 Equalized Value2 $1,283,104,300

Source: The City. 

1 Calculated by dividing the 2021 Assessed Values by the 2021 Aggregate Ratio of assessment for the City.

2 Includes tax increment valuation.
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DEBT

DIRECT DEBT1 

General Obligation Debt (see schedules following)

Total General Obligation Debt (includes the Bonds)* $26,880,000

Revenue Debt (see schedules following)

Total revenue debt secured by sewerage revenues 
(includes the Series 2022E Bonds, defined herein)* $4,609,257

Total revenue debt secured by tax increment revenues $2,445,836

Total revenue debt secured by water revenues 
(includes the Series 2022D Bonds, defined herein)* $1,663,988

Other Obligations

Issue 
Date

Original
Amount Name of Issue

Final 
Maturity

Amount
Outstanding

08/09/2022 $2,865,000 Note Anticipation Note, Series 2022B2 08/01/2027 $2,865,000

*Preliminary, subject to change.

1 Outstanding debt is as of the dated date of the Bonds and excludes the obligations to be refunded.

2 Preliminary, subject to change.  The Note Anticipation Note is not a general obligation of the City but is secured
by a pledge of the proceeds from the issuance of long-term general obligation debt.
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DEBT LIMIT 

The constitutional and statutory general obligation debt limit for Wisconsin municipalities, including towns, cities,
villages, and counties (Article XI, Section 3 of the Wisconsin Constitution and Section 67.03, Wisconsin Statutes)
is 5% of the current equalized value.

Equalized Value $1,283,104,300

Multiply by 5% 0.05  

Statutory Debt Limit $64,155,215

Less:  General Obligation Debt* (26,880,000)

Unused Debt Limit* $37,275,215

*Preliminary, subject to change.

OVERLAPPING DEBT1

Taxing District

2021
Equalized

Value2
% In 
City 

Total
G.O. Debt3

City's
Proportionate

  Share  

Chippewa County $7,010,535,800 18.3025% $7,040,000 $1,288,496

Chippewa Falls Area Unified School District 4,010,572,892 31.9930% 56,315,000 18,016,858

Chippewa Valley Technical College District 31,188,459,239 4.1140% 76,810,000 3,159,963

City's Share of Total Overlapping Debt $22,465,317

1 Overlapping debt is as of the dated date of the Bonds. Only those taxing jurisdictions with general obligation debt
outstanding are included in this section.

2 Includes tax increment valuation.

3 Outstanding debt based on information obtained on EMMA and the Municipal Advisor's records.
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DEBT RATIOS

G.O. Debt

Debt/Equalized
Value

 $1,283,104,300

 Debt/ Per
Capita
14,3661

Total General Obligation Debt* $26,880,000 2.09% $1,871.08

City's Share of Total Overlapping Debt 22,465,317 1.75% $1,563.78

Total* $49,345,317 3.84% $3,434.86

DEBT PAYMENT HISTORY

The City has no record of default in the payment of principal and interest on its debt.

FUTURE FINANCING

The City expects to issue its $1,055,000* Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2022D, dated August 23, 2022 (the
“Series 2022D Bonds”) and its $1,515,000* Sewerage System Revenue Bonds, Series 2022E, dated August 23, 2022
(the “Series 2022E Bonds”) concurrently with the Bonds.  The City may also issue a taxable note anticipation note
in the next several months of up to approximately $2,500,000 to finance the purchase of land. The City historically
borrows annually for its capital projects, but the amount and timing has not yet been determined. Other than the
proceeding, the City has no current plans for additional financing in the next 12 months.

*Preliminary, subject to change.

1 Estimated 2021 population.
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TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

Tax Year
Levy for City

Purposes Only % Collected

Levy/Equalized Value 
Reduced by Tax 

Increment Valuation
 in Dollars per $1,000

2017/18 $6,698,399 100% $8.37

2018/19 7,128,982 100% 8.53

2019/20 7,390,651 100% 8.03

2020/21 7,628,673 100% 7.64

2021/22 7,976,110 In Process 7.12

Property tax statements are distributed to taxpayers by the town, village, and city treasurers in December of the levy
year. Current state law requires counties to pay 100% of the real property taxes levied to cities, villages, towns,
school districts and other taxing entities on or about August 20 of the collection year.

Personal property taxes, special assessments, special charges and special taxes must be paid to the town, city or
village treasurer in full by January 31, unless the municipality, by ordinance, permits special assessments to be paid
in installments. Real property taxes must be paid in full by January 31 or in two equal installments by January 31 and
July 31. Alternatively, municipalities may adopt a payment plan which permits real property taxes to be paid in three
or more equal installments, provided that the first installment is paid by January 31, one-half of the taxes are paid
by April 30 and the remainder is paid by July 31. Amounts paid on or before January 31 are paid to the town, city
or village treasurer. Amounts paid after January 31, are paid to the county treasurer unless the municipality has
authorized payment in three or more installments in which case payment is made to the town, city or village treasurer.
On or before January 15 and February 20 the town, city or village treasurer settles with other taxing jurisdictions for
all collections through December and January, respectively. In municipalities which have authorized the payment
of real property taxes in three or more installments, the town, city or village treasurer settles with the other taxing
jurisdictions on January 15, February 20 and on the fifteenth day of each month following the month in which an
installment payment is required. On or before August 20, the county treasurer must settle in full with the underlying
taxing districts for all real property taxes and special taxes. Any county board may authorize its county treasurer to
also settle in full with the underlying taxing districts for all special assessments and special charges. The county may
then recover any tax delinquencies by enforcing the lien on the property and retain any penalties or interest on the
delinquencies for which it has settled. Uncollected personal property taxes owed by an entity that has ceased
operations or filed a petition for bankruptcy, or are due on personal property that has been removed from the next
assessment roll are collected from each taxing entity in the year following the levy year.

The spread of COVID-19 and responses taken by the United States government, state governments, local governments
and private industries have caused significant disruptions to the national and State economy. See "RISK FACTORS -
Impact of the Spread of COVID-19" herein. On April 15, 2020, Governor Tony Evers signed into law 2019
Wisconsin Act 185, which provided that for property taxes payable in 2020, a taxation district could, after making
a general or case-by-case finding of hardship, choose to waive interest or penalties on property tax installment
payments paid after April 1, 2020 but on or before October 1, 2020. In order to take such action, the county board
of supervisors was required to first adopt a resolution authorizing such waiver and determining criteria for
determining hardship and then the taxation district was required to subsequently adopt a similar resolution. In the
case of a county adopting such a resolution, the county proportionally settled with the taxation districts any taxes,
interest and penalties collected on or before July 31, 2020 on August 20, 2020, and settled the remaining unpaid
taxes, interest, and penalties on September 20, 2020. Chippewa County and the City did not adopt such resolutions.
The City cannot predict whether any similar legislation may be adopted in the future.
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PROPERTY TAX RATES

Full value rates for property taxes expressed in dollars per $1,000 of equalized value (excluding tax increment
valuation) that have been collected in recent years have been as follows:

Year Levied/
Year Collected Schools1 County Local Total

2017/18 $9.07 $3.50 $8.37 $20.94

2018/19 10.14 3.44 8.53 22.11

2019/20 9.36 3.28 8.03 20.67

2020/21 9.14 3.13 7.64 19.91

2021/22 8.01 2.92 7.12 18.05

Source: Property Tax Rates were extracted from Statement of Taxes prepared by the Wisconsin Department of
Revenue, Division of State and Local Finance.

LEVY LIMITS

Section 66.0602 of the Wisconsin Statutes, imposes a limit on property tax levies by cities, villages, towns and
counties. No city, village, town or county is permitted to increase its tax levy by a percentage that exceeds its
valuation factor (which is defined as a percentage equal to the greater of either the percentage change in the political
subdivision's January 1 equalized value due to new construction less improvements removed between the previous
year and the current or zero percent). The base amount in any year to which the levy limit applies is the actual levy
for the immediately preceding year. In 2018, and in each year thereafter, the base amount is the actual levy for the
immediately preceding year plus the amount of the payment from the State under Section 79.096 of the Wisconsin
Statutes (an amount equal to the property taxes formerly levied on certain items of personal property), and the levy
limit is the base amount multiplied by the valuation factor, minus the amount of the payment from the State under
Section 79.096 of the Wisconsin Statutes. This levy limitation is an overall limit, applying to levies for operations
as well as for other purposes.

A political subdivision that did not levy its full allowable levy in the prior year can carry forward the difference
between the allowable levy and the actual levy, up to a maximum of 1.5% of the prior year's actual levy. The use of
the carry forward levy adjustment needs to be approved by a majority vote of the political subdivision's governing
body (except in the case of towns) if the amount of carry forward levy adjustment is less than or equal to 0.5% and
by a super majority vote of the political subdivision's governing body (three-quarters vote if the governing body is
comprised of five or more members, two-thirds vote if the governing body is comprised of fewer than five members)
(except in the case of towns) if the amount of the carry forward levy adjustment is greater than 0.5% up to the
maximum increase of 1.5%. For towns, the use of the carry forward levy adjustment needs to be approved by a
majority vote of the annual town meeting or special town meeting after the town board has adopted a resolution in
favor of the adjustment by a majority vote if the amount of carry forward levy adjustment is less than or equal to 0.5%
or by two-thirds vote or more if the amount of carry forward levy adjustment is greater than 0.5% up to the maximum
of 1.5%.

1 The Schools tax rate reflects the composite rate of all local school districts and technical college district.
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Beginning with levies imposed in 2015, if a political subdivision does not make an adjustment in its levy as described
in the above paragraph in the current year, the political subdivision may increase its levy by the aggregate amount
of the differences between the political subdivision’s valuation factor in the previous year and the actual percent
increase in a political subdivision’s levy attributable to the political subdivision’s valuation factor in the previous
year, for the five years before the current year, less any amount of such aggregate amount already claimed as an
adjustment in any of the previous five years. The calculation of the aggregate amount available for such adjustment
may not include any year before 2014, and the maximum adjustment allowed may not exceed 5%. The use of the
adjustment described in this paragraph requires approval by a two-thirds vote of the political subdivision’s governing
body, and the adjustment may only be used if the political subdivision’s level of outstanding general obligation debt
in the current year is less than or equal to the political subdivision’s level of outstanding general obligation debt in
the previous year.

Special provisions are made with respect to property taxes levied to pay general obligation debt service. Those are
described below. In addition, the statute provides for certain other adjustments to and exclusions from the tax levy
limit. Among the exclusions, Section 66.0602(3)(e)5. of the Wisconsin Statutes provides that the levy limit does not
apply to "the amount that a political subdivision levies in that year to make up any revenue shortfall for the debt
service on a revenue bond issued under Section 66.0621 by that political subdivision." Recent positions taken by
Wisconsin Department of Revenue ("DOR") staff call into question the availability of this exception, including by
limiting its availability depending on the circumstances surrounding the pertinent revenue shortfall. To date, such
DOR positions have not been expressed formally in a declaratory ruling under Section 227.41(5)(a) of the Wisconsin
Statutes, nor have they been the subject of any court challenge or resulting court ruling.

With respect to general obligation debt service, the following provisions are made: 

(a) If a political subdivision's levy for the payment of general obligation debt service, including debt service on debt
issued or reissued to fund or refund outstanding obligations of the political subdivision and interest on outstanding
obligations of the political subdivision, on debt originally issued before July 1, 2005, is less in the current year than
in the previous year, the political subdivision is required to reduce its levy limit in the current year by the amount of
the difference between the previous year's levy and the current year's levy.

(b) For obligations authorized before July 1, 2005, if the amount of debt service in the preceding year is less than the
amount of debt service needed in the current year, the levy limit is increased by the difference between the two
amounts. This adjustment is based on scheduled debt service rather than the amount actually levied for debt service
(after taking into account offsetting revenues such as sales tax revenues, special assessments, utility revenues, tax
increment revenues or surplus funds). Therefore, the levy limit could negatively impact political subdivisions that
experience a reduction in offsetting revenues.

(c) The levy limits do not apply to property taxes levied to pay debt service on general obligation debt authorized on
or after July 1, 2005.

The Bonds were authorized after July 1, 2005 and therefore the levy limits do not apply to taxes levied to pay debt
service on the Bonds.
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THE ISSUER

CITY GOVERNMENT

The City was incorporated in 1869 and is governed by a Mayor and a seven-member Common Council. The Mayor
votes only in the case of a tie. All Council Members are elected to two-year terms. The appointed Finance
Manager/Treasurer and City Clerk are responsible for administrative details and financial records.

EMPLOYEES; PENSIONS

The City employs a staff of 115 full-time, four (4) part-time, and 11 seasonal employees. All eligible employees in
the City are covered under the Wisconsin Retirement System ("WRS") established under Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin
Statutes ("Chapter 40"). The WRS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. The Department
of Employee Trust Funds ("ETF") administers the WRS. Required contributions to the WRS are determined by the
ETF Board pursuant to an annual actuarial valuation in accordance with Chapter 40 and the ETF's funding policies.
The ETF Board has stated that its funding policy is to (i) ensure funds are adequate to pay benefits; (ii) maintain
stable and predictable contribution rates for employers and employees; and (iii) maintain inter-generational equity
to ensure the cost of the benefits is paid for by the generation that receives the benefits.

City employees are generally required to contribute half of the actuarially determined contributions, and the City
generally may not pay the employees' required contribution. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018 ("Fiscal
Year 2018"), the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019 ("Fiscal Year 2019") and the fiscal year ended December 31,
2020 ("Fiscal Year 2020"), the City’s portion of contributions to WRS (not including any employee contributions)
totaled $658,103, $681,193 and $746,975, respectively.

The City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68 ("GASB 68") for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2015.

GASB 68 requires calculation of a net pension liability for the pension plan. The net pension liability is calculated
as the difference between the pension plan's total pension liability and the pension plan's fiduciary net position. The
pension plan's total pension liability is the present value of the amounts needed to pay pension benefits earned by
each participant in the pension plan based on the service provided as of the date of the actuarial valuation. In other
words, it is a measure of the present value of benefits owed as of a particular date based on what has been earned only
up to that date, without taking into account any benefits earned after that date. The pension plan's fiduciary net
position is the market value of plan assets formally set aside in a trust and restricted to paying pension plan benefits.
If the pension plan's total pension liability exceeds the pension plan's fiduciary net position, then a net pension
liability results. If the pension plan's fiduciary net position exceeds the pension plan's total pension liability, then a
net pension asset results.

As of December 31, 2019, the total pension liability of the WRS was calculated as $108.87 billion and the fiduciary
net position of the WRS was calculated as $112.09 billion, resulting in a net pension asset of $3.22 billion.

Under GASB 68, each participating employer in a cost-sharing pension plan must report the employer's proportionate
share of the net pension liability or net pension asset of the pension plan. Accordingly, for Fiscal Year 2020, the City
reported an asset of $2,090,518 for its proportionate share of the net pension asset of the WRS. The net pension asset
was measured as of December 31, 2019 based on the City’s share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the
contributions of all participating employers. The City’s proportion was 0.06483321% of the aggregate WRS net
pension asset as of December 31, 2019.
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The calculation of the total pension asset and fiduciary net position are subject to a number of actuarial assumptions,
which may change in future actuarial valuations. Such changes may have a significant impact on the calculation of
net pension asset of the WRS, which may also cause the ETF Board to change the contribution requirements for
employers and employees. For more detailed information regarding the WRS and such actuarial assumptions, see
Note 4.A. in "APPENDIX A - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS" attached hereto.

Recognized and Certified Bargaining Units

All eligible City personnel are covered by the Municipal Employment Relations Act ("MERA") of the Wisconsin
Statutes. Pursuant to that law, employees have rights to organize and collectively bargain with municipal employers.
MERA was amended by 2011 Wisconsin Act 10 (the "Act") and by 2011 Wisconsin Act 32, which altered the
collective bargaining rights of public employees in Wisconsin.

As a result of the 2011 amendments to MERA, the City is prohibited from bargaining collectively with municipal
employees, other than public safety and transit employees, with respect to any factor or condition of employment
except total base wages. Even then, the City is limited to increasing total base wages beyond any increase in the
consumer price index since 180 days before the expiration of the previous collective bargaining agreement (unless
City were to seek approval for a higher increase through a referendum). Ultimately, the City can unilaterally
implement the wages for a collective bargaining unit.

Under the changes to MERA, impasse resolution procedures were removed from the law for municipal employees
of the type employed by the City, including binding interest arbitration. Strikes by any municipal employee or labor
organization are expressly prohibited. As a practical matter, it is anticipated that strikes will be rare. Furthermore,
if strikes do occur, they may be enjoined by the courts. Additionally, because the only legal subject of bargaining is
the base wage rates, all bargaining over items such as just cause, benefits, and terms of conditions of employment
are prohibited and cannot be included in a collective bargaining agreement. Impasse resolution for public safety
employees and transit employees is subject to final and binding arbitration procedures, which do not include a right
to strike. Interest arbitration is available for transit employees if certain conditions are met.

The following bargaining units represent employees of the City:

Bargaining Unit
Expiration Date of 
Current Contract

Chippewa Falls International Association of Fire Fighters Local 1816 December 31, 2023

Chippewa Falls Professional Police Association December 31, 2022

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The City provides "other post-employment benefits" ("OPEB") (i.e., post-employment benefits, other than pension
benefits, owed to its employees and former employees) to employees who have terminated their employment with
the City and have satisfied specified eligibility standards through a single-employer plan. The plan allows eligible
retirees to remain on the City's health care plan if the retiree pays 100% of the retiree premium. Membership of the
plan consisted of two retirees receiving benefits and 112 active plan members as of December 31, 2020, the date of
the latest actuarial valuation.

OPEB calculations are required to be updated every two years and be prepared in accordance with Statement No. 75
of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB 75"). An actuarial study for the City was completed by
Nyhart Actuary & Employee Benefits in November 2021, with an actuarial valuation date of December 31, 2020 (the
"OPEB Report").
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For Fiscal Year 2020, the City’s contributions to the plan totaled $24,682. The City's current funding practice is to
pay the amount of benefits due in a given year on a "pay-as-you-go" basis.

Under GASB 75, a net OPEB liability (or asset) is calculated as the difference between the plan's total OPEB liability
and the plan's fiduciary net position, which terms have similar meanings as under GASB 68 for pension plans.

As of December 31, 2020, the plan's total OPEB liability was $1,213,162 and the plan fiduciary net position was $0,
resulting in a net OPEB liability of $1,213,162.

The calculation of the total OPEB liability and fiduciary net position are subject to a number of actuarial assumptions,
which may change in future actuarial valuations. For more detailed information, see Note 4.C in "APPENDIX A -
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS."

The City also participates in the Local Retiree Life Insurance Fund ("LRLIF"), which is a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit plan established by Chapter 40. The ETF and the Group Insurance Board have statutory
authority for program administration and oversight, including establishing contribution requirements for employers.

For Fiscal Year 2020, the City's portion of contributions to the LRLIF totaled $2,104. For Fiscal Year 2020, the City
reported a liability of $450,102 for its proportionate share of the net OPEB liability of the LRLIF. The net OPEB
liability was measured as of December 31, 2019 based on the City's share of contributions to the LRLIF relative to
the contributions of all participating employers. The City's proportion was 0.105704% of the aggregate LRLIF net
OPEB liability as of December 31, 2019.

The calculation of the total OPEB liability and fiduciary net position are subject to a number of actuarial assumptions,
which may change in future actuarial valuations. Such changes may have a significant impact on the calculation of
the net OPEB liability of the LRLIF, which may also cause ETF to change the contribution requirements for
employers and employees. For more detailed information, see Note 4.D. in "APPENDIX A - FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS" attached hereto.

LITIGATION

There is no litigation threatened or pending questioning the organization or boundaries of the City or the right of any
of its officers to their respective offices or in any manner questioning their rights and power to execute and deliver
the Bonds or otherwise questioning the validity of the Bonds.

MUNICIPAL BANKRUPTCY

Municipalities are prohibited from filing for bankruptcy under Chapter 11 (reorganization) or Chapter 7 (liquidation)
of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code (11 U.S.C. §§ 101-1532) (the "Bankruptcy Code"). Instead, the Bankruptcy Code
permits municipalities to file a petition under Chapter 9 of the Bankruptcy Code, but only if certain requirements are
met. These requirements include that the municipality must be "specifically authorized" under State law to file for
relief under Chapter 9. For these purposes, "State law" may include, without limitation, statutes of general
applicability enacted by the State legislature, special legislation applicable to a particular municipality, and/or
executive orders issued by an appropriate officer of the State’s executive branch.

As of the date hereof, Wisconsin law contains no express authority for municipalities to file for bankruptcy relief
under Chapter 9 of the Bankruptcy Code. 
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Nevertheless, there can be no assurance (a) that State law will not change in the future, while the Bonds are
outstanding, in a way that would allow the City to file for bankruptcy relief under Chapter 9 of the Bankruptcy Code;
or (b) even absent such a change in State law, that an executive order or other executive action could not effectively
authorize the City to file for relief under Chapter 9. If, in the future, the City were to file a bankruptcy case under
Chapter 9, the relevant bankruptcy court would need to consider whether the City could properly do so, which would
involve questions regarding State law authority as well as other questions such as whether the City is a municipality
for bankruptcy purposes. If the relevant bankruptcy court concluded that the City could properly file a bankruptcy
case, and that determination was not reversed, vacated, or otherwise substantially altered on appeal, then the rights
of holders of the Bonds could be modified in bankruptcy proceedings. Such modifications could be adverse to holders
of the Bonds, and there could ultimately be no assurance that holders of the Bonds would be paid in full or in part
on the Bonds. Further, under such circumstances, there could be no assurance that the Bonds would not be treated
as general, unsecured debt by a bankruptcy court, meaning that claims of holders of the Bonds could be viewed as
having no priority (a) over claims of other creditors of the City; (b) to any particular assets of the City, or (c) to
revenues otherwise designated for payment to holders of the Bonds.

Moreover, if the City were determined not to be a "municipality" for the purposes of the Bankruptcy Code, no
representations can be made regarding whether it would still be eligible for voluntary or involuntary relief under
Chapters of the Bankruptcy Code other than Chapter 9 or under similar federal or state law or equitable proceeding
regarding insolvency or providing for protection from creditors. In any such case, there can be no assurance that the
consequences described above for the holders of the Bonds would not occur.

FUNDS ON HAND (as of December 31, 2021)

Fund
Total Cash

and Investments

General $29,945,959

Special Revenue 1,192,384

Debt Service 2,134,008

Capital Projects 9,152,664

Enterprise Funds 20,338,197

Total Funds on Hand $62,763,212
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Revenues available for debt service for the City's enterprise funds have been as follows as of December 31 each year:

2018
Audited

2019
Audited

2020
Audited

2021
Unaudited

Water

Total Operating Revenues $2,541,350 $2,576,662 $2,652,871 $2,737,624

Less: Operating Expenses (1,941,848) (2,082,577) (1,969,427) (2,021,133)

Operating Income $599,502 $494,085 $683,444 $716,491

Plus: Depreciation 663,118 685,967 713,700 770,516

Interest Income 140,975 176,250 81,793 40,297

Revenues Available for Debt Service $1,403,595 $1,356,302 $1,478,937 $1,527,304

Wastewater

Total Operating Revenues $3,066,703 $3,111,344 $3,155,308 $3,141,363

Less: Operating Expenses (2,386,542) (2,472,827) (2,477,788) (2,506,795)

Operating Income $680,161 $638,517 $677,520 $634,568

Plus: Depreciation 784,772 808,179 826,975 829,275

Interest Income 170,998 227,768 52,357 6,403

Revenues Available for Debt Service $1,635,931 $1,674,464 $1,556,852 $1,470,246

Storm Water

Total Operating Revenues $737,812 $766,201 $759,712 $779,404

Less: Operating Expenses (681,174) (757,357) (699,015) (865,123)

Operating Income $56,638 $8,844 $60,697 ($85,719)

Plus: Depreciation 212,521 226,351 232,328 243,163

Interest Income 3,534 10,815 4,590 455

Revenues Available for Debt Service $272,693 $246,010 $297,615 $157,899
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COMBINED STATEMENT

2018
 Audited

2019
 Audited

2020
 Audited

2021
 Unaudited

2022
Adopted
Budget 1)

Revenues
Property taxes $5,260,533 $5,708,264 $5,731,300 $5,924,900 $6,041,946
Intergovernmental 5,000,186 4,843,959 5,450,246 5,101,990 5,001,590
Licenses and Permits 494,704 486,870 413,532 391,093 312,560
Fine and forfeitures 96,571 90,596 75,531 78,445 92,000
Public charges for services 1,627,394 1,627,853 1,461,686 1,785,364 1,702,441
Intergovernmental charges for services 601,071 620,461 650,825 730,637 270,787
Miscellaneous 203,639 257,922 177,402 116,017 93,450

Total Revenues $13,284,098 $13,635,925 $13,960,522 $14,128,446 $13,514,774

Expenditures
         Current:

General government $1,008,561 $1,217,407 $1,238,438 $905,432 $2,382,591
Public safety 5,969,227 6,408,262 6,448,482 6,536,688 6,605,103
Transportation facilities 2,015,884 2,062,677 2,067,758 2,142,339 1,918,924
Sanitation 273,057 275,053 275,544 273,681 263,981
Health and human services 43,670 48,472 48,666 47,406 31,250
Culture, recreation and education 2,018,429 2,090,319 1,930,669 2,081,749 2,289,175
Conservation and development 209,877 138,779 137,371 131,827 23,750
Capital Outlay 108,953 136,039 277,298 162,788 0

Total Expenditures $11,647,658 $12,377,008 $12,424,226 $12,281,910 $13,514,774

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures $1,636,440 $1,258,917 $1,536,296 $1,846,536 $0

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Sale of property $65,418 $108,860 $102,586 $141,572
Transfers in 415,037 396,272 394,960 359,210
Transfers out 0 0 0 0

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $480,455 $505,132 $497,546 $500,782

$2,116,895 $1,764,049 $2,033,842 $2,347,318

General Fund Balance January 1 $16,197,575 $18,314,470 $20,078,519 $22,112,361
Prior Period Adjustment 0 0 0 0
Residual Equity Transfer in (out) 0 0 0 0

General Fund Balance December 31 $18,314,470 $20,078,519 $22,112,361 $24,459,679

DETAILS OF DECEMBER 31 FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable $965,986 $1,247,493 $789,769 $738,276
Assigned 710,729 670,261 760,203 747,471
Unassigned 16,637,755 18,160,765 20,562,389 22,973,932
Total $18,314,470 $20,078,519 $22,112,361 $24,459,679

1) The 2022 budget was adopted as of December 7, 2021.

Net changes in Fund Balances

SUMMARY GENERAL FUND INFORMATION
Following are summaries of the revenues and expenditures and fund balances for the City's General Fund. These summaries are not purported to 
be the complete audited financial statements of the City, and potential purchasers should read the included financial statements in their entirety for 
more complete information concerning the City. Copies of the complete statements are available upon request. Appendix A includes the 2020 
audited financial statements.

FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31
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GENERAL INFORMATION

LOCATION

The City, with a 2020 U.S. Census population of 14,731, and a current estimated population of 14,366, comprises
an area of 11.90 square miles and is located approximately 10 miles northeast of the City of Eau Claire, Wisconsin
and 90 miles east of the Minneapolis-St. Paul, Minnesota metropolitan area. The City is the County Seat of Chippewa
County.

LARGER EMPLOYERS1 

Larger employers in the City include the following:

Firm Type of Business/Product
Estimated No.
of Employees

TTM Technologies Inc Circuit board manufacturer 1,200

Hewlett Packard Enterprise Software and technical computing 800
2

Chippewa Falls Area Unified School District Elementary and secondary education 737

Chippewa County County government and services 505

Mills Fleet Farm Distribution center 450

Cray Inc Computers system designers & consultants 280

HSHS St. Joseph’s Hospital Hospital 257

Mason Companies Inc Footwear and apparel distributor 250

Nordson Plastic machinery & equipment 200

Dove Healthcare -Wissota Health Convalescent home 200

Source: Data Axle Reference Solutions, written and telephone survey, Wisconsin Manufacturers Register, and the
Wisconsin Department of Workforce Development.

1 This does not purport to be a comprehensive list and is based on available data obtained through a survey of
individual employers, as well as the sources identified above.  Some employers do not respond to inquiries for
employment data. 

2 Employee count is from 2020. Current response from employer says they do not release site specific head counts
as a matter of company policy. 
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BUILDING PERMITS

2018 2019 2020 2021 20221

New Single Family Homes

No. of building permits 21 20 15 11 3

Valuation $3,917,670 $4,089,192 $3,971,158 $3,672,278 $1,145,000

New Multiple Family
Buildings

No. of building permits 15 15 3 4 4

Valuation $7,622,028 $6,620,870 $2,400,000 $4,280,000 $3,780,000

New Commercial/Industrial

No. of building permits 5 4 4 6 11

Valuation $23,286,600 $7,015,229 $13,767,336 $27,548,985 $9,187,859

All Building Permits
(including additions and remodelings)

No. of building permits 267 286 264 241 120

Valuation $42,336,752 $61,753,927 $37,183,789 $48,007,650 $20,521,899

Source: The City. 

1 As of July 13, 2022.
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U.S. CENSUS DATA

Population Trend: The City

2010 U.S. Census 13,661

2020 U.S. Census 14,731

2021 Estimated Population 14,366

Percent of Change 2010 - 2020 7.83%

Income and Age Statistics 

The City
Chippewa

County
State of

Wisconsin
United
States

2020 per capita income $25,514 $31,644 $34,450 $35,384

2020 median household income $54,917 $61,215 $63,293 $64,994

2020 median family income $63,772 $73,941 $80,844 $80,069

2020 median gross rent $835 $844 $872 $1,096
2020 median value owner occupied units $151,100 $180,000 $189,200 $229,800

2020 median age 36.4 yrs. 41.3 yrs. 39.6 yrs. 38.2 yrs.

State of Wisconsin United States

City % of 2020 per capita income 74.06% 72.11%

City % of 2020 median family income 78.88% 79.65%

Housing Statistics

The City

2010 2020 Percent of Change

All Housing Units 6,304 6,772 7.42%

Source: 2010 and 2020 Census of Population and Housing, and 2020 American Community Survey (Based on a five-
year estimate), U.S. Census Bureau (https://data.census.gov/cedsci).

EMPLOYMENT/UNEMPLOYMENT DATA

Rates are not compiled for individual communities with populations under 25,000.

Average Employment   Average Unemployment

Year Chippewa County Chippewa County State of Wisconsin

2018 32,370 3.3% 3.0%

2019 32,308 3.6% 3.2%

2020 31,163 6.3% 6.3%

20211 32,489 3.9% 3.8%

2022, May1 32,653 2.7% 2.9%

Source: Wisconsin Department of Workforce Development.

1 Preliminary.
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APPENDIX A

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Potential purchasers should read the included financial statements in their entirety for more complete information
concerning the City’s financial position. Such financial statements have been audited by the Auditor, to the extent
and for the periods indicated thereon. The City has not requested or engaged the Auditor to perform, and the Auditor
has not performed, any additional examination, assessments, procedures or evaluation with respect to such financial
statements since the date thereof or with respect to this Official Statement, nor has the City requested that the Auditor
consent to the use of such financial statements in this Official Statement. Although the inclusion of the financial
statements in this Official Statement is not intended to demonstrate the fiscal condition of the City since the date of
the financial statements, in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, the City represents that there have been no
material adverse change in the financial position or results of operations of the City, nor has the City incurred any
material liabilities, which would make such financial statements misleading.   

Copies of the complete audited financial statements for the past three years and the current budget are available upon
request from Ehlers.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

City Council 
City of Chippewa Falls 
Chippewa Falls, Wisconsin 

Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business­
type activnies, each major fund, and the aggregate rema ining fund inrormation of the City of Chippewa 
Falls, Wisconsin (City) as of and for the year e.nded December 31, 2020, and the related noles to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the 
table of contents 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance wnh accounting principles generally accepted in the UnHed States of America; this includes 
the design, Implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preps.ration and fair 
presentation cf financial statements that .are tree tram malerial misstatement, whether due 10 fraud or 
error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the audito.r conslders Internal contlol relevant to 1he er,1~y•s 
preparation and fair presentalion of the financial stalements in artier to design audit procedures lhal are 
appropriate in the c1rcums1ances, but not lor the pu.rpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion, An audit also Includes 
eva luating lhe approprialeness or accounting policies used and the reasonableness of slgniflcanl 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audrt evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 

@r:ii i~ 
(2) 

City Council 
City of Chippewa Falls 

Opinions 
In our opinion. the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects. the 
respective financial position or the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
rund . and the aggregale remaining fund inlorrna1lon of lhe Cfty of Chippewa Falls. Wisconsin as or 
December 31 , 2020, and the respective changes in the financial posttlon and cash flows, where 
applicable. tMreol lor the year then ended in confom,ijy with accounting p~nciples generally accepted 
In lhe United States of Amenc·a. 

Emphasis of Matter 
Change in Accounting Principle 
During fiscal yea.r ended December 31, 2020, the City adopted GASS Statemen1 No. 84, Fiduciary 
Activities. The Implementation of GASS Statement No. 84 resulted ln the addrt.ion of a Statement of 
Changes In Fiduciary Net Posttlon related to lhe Custodial Fund actlvtty. Our auditors' opinion was not 
modified with respeci to the implementation of these standards. 

Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted In the United States or Ame.rlca require that the 
management's discussron and analysis, budgetary comparjson iotorrnalfon, pens ion plan scl:ledules. 
and OPEB plan schedules. as referenced In the iable of contents, be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statemen1s. Such Information, although n.ot part ol the bas'te financial statements. Is 
required by the Governmental Acc.ounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an euenlial pan ol 
financial report ing for placing the basic financial sta1ements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
hlstorJcal context. We have applied certain limtted procedures lo the required supplementary 
lnformaUon In acco.rdance wrth ·audtting standards generally accepted In lhe unaed States of America, 
which cons isted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing lhe Information and 
comparing the Information for consistency with management's responses to our Inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit ol the basic financial 
statements, We do nol express an opinion or provide any assutance on the lnformalion because !he 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance 

Supplementary Information 
Our audit tor the year ended December 31, 2020 was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on 
the financial statemen!s lhal collectively comprise the City's basic financial statemenls. The individual 
and combining rund statements, debt repayment schedules, and statistical information for the year 
ended Deeember 31, 2020 are presented for purposes of addttional analysis and are not a required pan 
of the basic financial statements. 
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City Council 
City of Chippewa Falls 

The lndiv{dual and combining rund statements and debt repayment schedules are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying aCGounting and other records 
used to prepare the basfc financial staternel'\tS Such Information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied In the audit of the basic fin.81'\Cial statements and certain additional procedures, 
Including comparing and reconciling such inlormalion directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic fjnanclal statements themselves. 
and olher addhlonal procedures In accordance whh audhing standards generally accepted in the United 
States· of America. In our opinion. the Individual and combining fund S1alemenls and debt repayment 
schedules are fairly stated In all material respects in ~elation to the basic financial statements as a 
whole for the year ended December 31, 2020 

We also previously audited, in accordance with audhlng standards generally accepted in the UnHed 
States of America, the basic financial statements of the City a~ or and for lhe year ended December 31, 
2019 (not presenIed herein), and have Issued our report thereon daled December 2 1, 2020. which 
contained unmodified opinions on the respective financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information. The individual 
and combining fund statements for the year ended December 31, 2019 are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the 
responslbility of management and was derived from and retaies directly to the underlying accounting 
and ether records used to prepare the 2019 financial statements. The Individual and combining fund 
statements have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 2019 basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
Information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other add itional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
individual and combining fund statements are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole for the year ended December 31, 2019. 

The statistical information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on 
it. 

~L.cP 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Eau Claire. Wisconsin 
February 18, 2022 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

As management of the City ot Chippewa Falls , Wisconsin ((;::ity), we offer the readers of the City's 
financial statements Ihis narrative oveNiew and analysis of financial a.ctlvrties of the City for the fiscal 
year ending December 31 , 2020 . Please consider this lnlormatlon In conjunction with the City's ~nanclal 
stalemenls, wl1ich begin on page 16 following this narrative 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources at the close or the most recent fiscal year by $126,184,367 (ner poslrfon). 
Of this amount, $69,857 ,830 represented the Clty s net Investment in capital assets, 
S15,543.687 was held for restricted purposes, and 540,782,850 was unrestricted. The 
unrestricted net position may be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and 
creditors. 

• During the fiscal year, the City's total net position Increased by S9, 152,038, or approximately 
7.8%, for current year activfty. Net postt ion related to the buslness-1ype activities of the City 
increased S1 ,2.94,941 , while net posttlon related 10 governmental activities Increased 
$7,857,097. 

• At the close of the fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund 
balances of S34,220,024, an increase of $4,799,211 tram the previous year. 

At the end of 2020, the unassigned general fund balance totaled $20,562,389, or 165,5% of the 
general fund expenditures. 

• The City's total long-term debt and obligations decreased $291,161 during the current fiscal 
year. The City issued $2,790,000 of general obligation corporate purpose bonds during 2020. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial 
statements. The City's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government­
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This 
report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements 
themselves. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The two govemment-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview 
of the City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business, 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City's assets and deferred outflows of 
resources , less liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. 
Over time, lne<eases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the 
financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

The Statement of Activities presents Information 'showing how the City's net poslllon changed during 
Che most recent lls.c.al year. All changes In net posttlon are reported as soon as the underlylrig event 
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the liming of the related cash nows Thus, revenues and 
expenses are reported in this statement for some ttems that will result in cash fiows in future fiscal 
periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vaca!lon leave). Both of the government-wipe 
financial .statements distinguish those functions of the Ctty that are principally supported by taxes and 
intergovemmental revenues (governmental activities) trom other functions that are Intended to recover 
all or a slgnfficant portion of their costs through user fees and service charges (business-type activities). 
The governmenla.l activities or the City Inell.Ide gener.il government, public safety, .Publlc works, health 
and human services. cutture , recreation and education, and conservation and development. The 
business-type acllvttles of the City Include a waler utility, a wastewater utllHy and a storm water utility. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found beginning on page 16 of this report, 

Fund Financial Statements 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other governmental entities, uses fund 
accounting to ensure and demonslrale compliance wfth various finance-related legal requirements. All 
of the funds of the City can be divided Into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and 
fiduciary funds. 

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activtties in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term 
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available 
at the end of the fiscal year, Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term 
financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, tt is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities In the government-wide financial statements. By doing 
so, readers may better understand the long-lerm Impact of the government's near,term financing 
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheel and the governmental fund statement of 
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this 
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The City maintains twenty-one individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in 
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expendttures and changes in fund balances for the general fund, CDBG fund, debt service fund, and 
TIO #14 capital projects fund which are considered to be major funds, Data from the other 
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each 
of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements in the 
supplementary information section. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found beginning on page 18 of this report 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

Proprietary funds. The City maintains one type of proprietary fund - enterprise funds, Enterprise funds 
are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide 
financial statements The Ctty uses enterprise funds to account for tts water uliltty, wastewater utility 
and storm water utility 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, 
only in more detail The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for each of 
the enterprise funds, all three are considered to be major funds of the City (water utility, wastewater 
utility and the storm water utility), 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found beginning on page 22 of this report, 

Fiduciary funds, FidU(;iary funds a re used to account for resources held for the ben·errt of panles 
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are nor reflected In the government-wide• financial statement 
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the Crty's own plograms. The 
accounting used for frduclary funds Is similar to that used for proprietary funds, 

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on page 27 of this report. 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

The notes to the basic financial statements provide addttional detail that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to 
the basic financial statements can be found beginning on page 29 of this report. 

Supplementary Information 

In addition to the basic fir,anclal statement and accompanying notes, this report presents certain 
required supplementary information on the City's operating budget . Required supplementary 
Information can be found beginning on page 73 or this report, 

Following tile basic government-wide and fund financlal statements, accompanying notes. and required 
supplementary information, additional supplementary information has been provided as part of this 
report, The supplementary Information includes combining statements for the nonmajor 90vemmental 
funds. Individual fund statements for selected funds, various debt repayment schedules and unaudited 
stallstlcal Information tables. Tills supplementary Information section of the repon begins on page 80. 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial 
posttlon , The City's assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilflies and deferred Inflows by 
$126,184.367 al the close of 2020. The larges! portion or net position (55%) reflects the City's 
Investment in capltal assets, including land, land Improvements. buildings, machinery and equipment, 
Infrastructure, plant In service and construction in progress, net of related outstanding debt used to 
acquire the assets_ These caprtal assets are used to provide servlces to citizens and are not available 
for future spending. Although the City's investment in capital assets IS reported net or related debt, it 
should be noted that the resources needed to repay debt must be provided from oiher sources, since 
the cap~al assets themselves cannot be used to fiquidate these Uablllties _ Below is a summary of the 
C~y's statement or nel position; 

Condensed Statement of Net Position 
December 31, 2020 and 2019 

3tr,,llfNncnt1l .A,tl)yaJ•1 811\Jnen-hn Att.vi~• Toll.ta 
mo ,.,~ 102!1 :W1' 2020 20,0 

Current and Other Assets S 54,696,415 $ 47, 110,1 20 S 21,1 55,086 S 20,897,683 $ 75,851 ,501 s 68,007,803 
Capital Assets 58,406,75B 55 ,395,521 44,701,505 44,302,440 103,108,263 99,697,961 
Internal Balances (891,772) 28,502 891,772 (28,502) 

Tota l Assets 112,211.401 102,534.143 66 ,748 ,363 65,171,621 178,959,764 167,705,764 

Deferred Outflows cf Resources 4 812,807 5,58 1,521 544 ,821 605 174 5,357 628 6 ,186,695 

Lcng-TermL1abihties 28,219,254 30,273,023 9,354,792 9,475,857 37,574,046 39,748 880 
Other liabilit ies 1,0\:t3iS ,s.n~a 30'1t~1.Bi 280 . .$5( t,J:20.!04 t_9l7.tlC2 

Total liabilities 1.a,221:s"' 31220,lH 9,6E2_H1 9.7156111 ""Je.04,SSD 4i1 .6i5,S'2Z 

Dererred Inflows cf Resources ~055 14,796,866 701,420 376,742 t 9.23B. 4 7_~ ~J501 

Net Pcsit10n 

Net Investment In 

Capital Assets 34,091,333 30 ,05 1,087 35,766,497 35 ,271,314 69,857,830 65,322,401 
Restricted 11,594,033 8,934,659 3,949,654 4,115,057 15,543,687 13,049,716 
Unrestricted ,J,570,21!! 22-412.741 11.112m t62-C,1.471- 40,1Pn.85D i B.BfJ,D,'212 

Tota l Nl!!t Pcs1t1on S ss_'Z'SS.SSC !i 1!1 3519 487 s ~ .m .n,l _!_~?-~.a-2_ , 126.tB-4.Jtil _-i 1,1.0:t2.J2s 

An additional ponion of the City's net posttion (12%) represents re-sources that are subject to other 
restrictions, as to how they may be used. The remaining $40,782 ,850 of Iota.I nel postt ion (33%) may be 
used to meet lhe City's on-golng obligations to its citizens and Cl"edltors. II is Important to note that 
$17,212 ,632 of this unrestricted net poshion is related to !he City's business-type activities. 
Consequently, they generally may not be used to fund governmental activltles. 

At the end of 202.0, tt,e City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net posillon, 
both for the government as a whole, as well as its separate governmental and business-type aclivttles. 
The same situation held lrue for the prio.r fiscal year. 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

The condensed statement of changes in net position presented below shows that total net position of 
the City increased $9,152,038, or approximately 7 ,8%, over the prior year. The change from current 
year activity consisted of an increase in net posttion related to governmental activtties in the amount of 
$7,857,097 and an increase in net posttion related to business-type activities in the amount of 
$1,294,941 

The following is a summary of the changes in the City's net posttion for the years ended 
December 31, 2020 and 2019: 

Condensed Statement of Changes In Net Position 
Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 

Governmental Activities S'1:QMn•T'ttrtiki~ 
2020 2019 2020 20111 

Revenul!!s; 
Program Revenues: 

Charges fe r Services • 2,B28,371 • 2,937,169 s 6,567,891 • 6,454,207 
Operating Grants and Contributions 1,779,473 1,249,621 
Capital Grants and Contributions 876,209 1,824,954 362,865 374,070 

General Revenues: 
Property Tars 11 ,449,732 10,772,278 
01herTaxes 31J,384 394,339 
State and Federal Aids not 

Restm::ted to Spec1f1e Programs 3,987,810 3,979,124 
att,e, 383 ,657 Sl51.960 134)'40 ,,, 831 

Total Revenul!!s 21 ,6 18,635 U ,OW,445 7.«ii.496 7.143.110 

Expe:nses: 
Gener.;il Government 1,307,446 1,285,142 
Public.Safety 6,827,767 7,539,894 
Transportation Facilities 2 ,536,342 4,095 ,083 
H•:fl'I _.o kulNWI S e,v,c.s 48,666 (8,472 
Culture, Recreation and Educabon 633,316 3,784,078 
Consl!!rvation and Development 2,014,985 2,293,603 
lnterl!!stand Fiscal Charges 784,277 808,081 
Water 2,016,766 2,147 ,236 
Wastewater 2,624 ,525 2,623,378 
Storm Water ] .C.t.!lDC .l4Li91 

Total Expenses 14,152,799 19,854,353 5,363 ZIS- 5,519106 

Change in Net Position Bl!!fore Transfers 7,465,837 2,165,092 1,686 ,201 1,664 ,304 

Trans1ers 191,260 392..072 13'1.>M\ P.~.'12) 
Change in Net Pcs1bon 7,SS7,097 2..557,654 \ .2$(.,941 t271,tl2 
Beginning Net Pcs1bon &:1 .3U,41!1'7 ~ .. ~.w l!,8:ll,842 54,:152..110 
Ending Net P0s1licn S 69.2SS.ilk $ -6, l9L,Ul $ $8,U!.,711] Ji ~ .G33t42" 
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= .20!,g 

' 9,396,262 • 9 391,376 
1,779,473 1,249,521 
1,239,074 2,199,024 

11,449,732 10,772,279 
313,384 394,339 

3,987,81• 3,979,124 
m ;m 1.276 ,793 

i,.6H,1l? 29,262,555 

1,307,446 1,285,1tl2 
6,627,767 7,539,694 
2 ,538 ,3-42 4,095 ,083 

48,666 ,a,4n 
633,316 3,784,078 

2,014,985 2,293,603 
7B-4,277 808,081 

2,016,766 2,147,236 
2,624,525 2 ,623,378 

7q _00,,c Ht 1Cl2 
t9.S3a..0iC 25."3.3 1!!iS 

9,152,038 3,829 ,396 

9,152,038 3,829,396 
\17 Cl2.J29 ,,,.~.,.3 

.5: 12&.Ulil,'l€7 5 I t7 03_',__)~. 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

A review of statement of activities can provide a concise picture of how the various functions/programs 
of the Ctty are funded . The following charts draw data from the statement of activities For 
governmental services the Ctty is highly dependent on property taxes (53.0%) and unspecified state 
and federal aids (18.4%) for funding , while deriving 25.4% from various program revenues. 

Expenses and Program Revenues -Governmental Activities 

~::: ::: ~ n I I 

~~~ SJ Wu ~ I I D I 
Genera! 

Gov!!mment 
Plblic Safety Transportation Hearth and H.JmanCulure, Reaeation Conservation and Interest end Fiscal 

Fa::iities ServCes and Education Development Charges 

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities 

other Tbll!ff 
14% 

Property Taxes 
53.0% 

Operating Grants and 
Contributions 

8.2% 

Capital Grants and 
Contributions 

41% 

In the case of business-type activtties, the data shows a considerably different picture. Charges for 
services (92.9%) replace property taxes as the primary revenue 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-
Type Activitie;!.s ______ ...,1 

$3,500.000 I 11 $3,000,000 j 

$2,500,000 

$2,000,000 

$1,500,000 

$1,000,000 

$500,000 

$-
Water Wastewater 

Treatment 

llhpNI!• • Proi,.,n~""ca 

SiormWater 

Revenues by Source - Busine~Type 
Activities 

Capital 
Grants and 
0>nImutlon 

s 
5.1% 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S MAJOR FUNDS 

As noted earlier, the Crty uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance wtth finance­
related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds 

The focus of the Crty's governmental funds is to provide information regarding near-term inflows, 
outflows and balances of spendable resources , Such information can be useful in assessing the City's 
financing requirements. In particular, the level of unassigned fund balances may serve as a useful 
measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

(11) 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

As of December 31 , 2020, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of 
$34,220,024, an Increase of $4,799,21 1 from the previous year, The governmental funds comprising 
this balance are shown be low: 

MaJOr funds: 
General Fund 
Cil8GF<m 
Debi Stlrkcl Fund 
TIO•t• Cai:ill Projects Fund 

NonmiljOt,..., 
Special Revenue Funds 
Capital Projects Funds 

~ ~ 

789,7o9 
327,463 
211 ,783 
130,309 

[IM Bltlric:HII ,m1now Cunml~tll 

~~ ~~~ 

760,203 I 20,562,389 $ 22,112,361 $ 2,033,842 
327,463 156,459 
211 ,783 16,124 
130,309 373,042 

607,501 843,243 402,387 (737,922) 1,115,209 296,275 

----· ~ tf$\~ ---= ~ ~ 1,ln '6!1 $ 1,:!91,2'111 H ,115$41 $ 3.153,~ I $ 750.2113 S IS,782.6>~ S 3'122ll.82• I l.7Jtg,2J1 --=="==~---===~-'=="'-- ~ =--~ 
The general fund is the primary operating funcl usecl to account for the governmental operations of the 
City. As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both total fund balance 
and unassigned fund balance to measures of operating volume such as fund expenditures or fund 
revenues. The lotal year-end general fund balance of $22 ,1 12,361 represented 178.0% of total general 
lune! expendllures reported on lhe statement or revenues, expend~ures and changes In fund balances 
while the unassl_gned balance of 520,562,389 represented 165,5% of the same amount, 

The general fund's lotal fund balance l ncreased S2,033,842 during lhe year, while the unassigned 
portion of the rund increased $2,401 ,824. The City's general fund had an outstand ing lnterfund advance 
due from the various tax Incremental district capital project funds and 1.he city-wide donation fund al thal 
dale in the amount of $789.466 which is part of the fund's nonspendable fund balance. The ability of 
the general fund to recover these advances will reduce the nonspendable balance and increase the 
general fund unassigned balance. 

The CDBG fund increased $156,459 during the year, which included loan repayments of $224,572 and 
new loan expenditures of $57,432. 

The debt service fund had a total fund balance of $211,783 at December 31, 2020, which is all 
considered restricted for the repayment of debt service. The debt service fund has an interfund 
advance of $777,699 from the City's water utility enterprise fund. This advance was usecl to pay off the 
City's share of the Wisconsin Retirement System's pension liability in 2004 and is scheduled for 
repayment through the year 2030. 

The TIO #14 fund balance increased $373,042 during the year due to the tax increment exceeding 
current year capital expenditures. This change resulted in an ending fund balance of $130,309 at 
Dec·ember 31, 2020. This fund balance is considered restricted for future capital projects and 
elependitures 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

The nonmajor governmental funds are aggregated in the otner governmental funds column and include 
various special revenue funds and capttal projru::1s funds. The accumulaled rund balances of these 
funds increased $2,219,744 during 2020. These funds are further detailed in the supplementary 
Information section or lh,s report. 

Proprietary Funds 

The Ctty's proprietary funds provide lhe same type of 1nformatlon found in lhe government-wide 
financial statements, but In gre_ater detail . As shown below. the net position or lhe enterprise-type 
proprietary runcls at the end of 2020 totaled $56,928.783, an increase of S1 ,294,941 from the previous 
year. 

Condensed Statement of Changes In Net Position for Enterprise Funds 
Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 

OperahngRevemJ@S 
OperatrigExpenses: 

Oepr~lion 
Oil<, 

Operalinglncome 

Nonoperaling Revenue'1 
(E,,....,) 

lncomt:Belore 

ContnbutronsandTranslers 

CaprtJIContribubons 

Translers 
Cl\lnge in Net Podion 
Net Poslion -Be~,nmng 
Net Position-Ending 

Wii'.etl.Wt Was~water U~ty $Jcc111W1:tf':"'9' Total 
~ __ 20_1_, _ ~ __ 20_,_, _ ~ ___jQ!L_ ~ __ ,_01_, _ 

S 2,652,B71 S 2,576,662 $ 3,155,JOB S 3,111,34-1 $ 759,712 S 766,201 $ 6,567,891 S 6,454 ,207 

113.700 sss,967 826,975 aoe,179 232,32a 226,351 1,713,003 1.no.497 
1)27)1 1.JS!S.510 t,e50.61l 1W,&4 '66.W Sllp:Ji!l l.)n},)J 3,S2,2M 
~ ~ ~ ~ f0.&i1 ~ ~ ~ 

~ ~ ~ ~ (38,l9!1') («l,D'llJ) ~ ~ 

717,BQB 605,676 5B3,140 715,734 22,298 (31,17~ 1,323,336 1,290,234 
196,452 235,778 166,413 87_350 50942 362,B65 374,070 

C311)!Q ~ pillll)J l!!i'/$?7l 
~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ----r,iiiiii"' ~ 

Z>.<i>I~ >.1j>jp11 lil,o40.SOI am.<>, tlO!ft!< r,,m,1 55,e:n.i-a !!4;)1Q.no 
~ r l2,i1C1.J'il ~~~~~~ 

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

As shown in lne Budgetary Comparison Schedule ror the general fund (in required supplementary 
information), the CHy did not amend its budget during the year. The final net change m fund balance 
was an increase ol 52,033,842. General rund expenditures and other financing uses were $634,985 
less than budgeted amounts, while general fund revenues and other financing sources were 
S1 ,398,857 more than budget amounts The posttive budget variance In revenues is mainly d.ue to 
higher lntergoverr,mental revenues, higher franchise fees and building permtts collected , h1gher 
Charges for services ror the City's ambulance service. as well as, insurance dividends and the sale of 
property. The positive budge! variance rn e:.cpendltures is primarily due to turnover in City staff. Even 
though lhe 1umover resulted In rellrernenl payouts being incurred, these were budgeted, ancl such 
vacancies were filed at lower rates. 

(1 3) 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

The City's investment in capttal assets (net of accumulated depreciation) for its governmental and 
business-type activities as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 were as shown below: 

Not Su bJectto Depred ation 
Land and Land Rights 
Construct1onWor1<1nProgress 
Non-Utihty Property 

Sub,ect lo Oepreciabon: 
Buildings 
Land Improvements 
Equipment and Vehicles 
lnfrastruc'b.Jre 
Water System Plant 
Wastewater System Plant 
Storm Water Plant 

Subtotal 

Accumulated Depreciabon 

Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 
December 31, 2020 and 2019 

3cVCfl'OMft~ A~'IM:IU Bl..llilll.M5"-~ eAawt!.et 
202(j , ... :zo;o 20\t 

' 2,910,620 $ 2,910,620 $ 312, 951 s 312,961 ' 395 ,600 4,297 ,239 363390 
2,916 2, 916 

16,001 ,224 15,839,945 
12,997,926 6,596,181 

8,306,153 8,147,296 
49 ,238 ,807 47,624,13 8 

27 ,248,01 7 26,071 ,724 
34 ,394,710 33,657,SB-4 
ll,1Q.i. 1fiiS 11;21:1, _1, , 

89,850,330 85,415 ,419 i3µ;,1'60 ll,7~3,4M 
l 1 ~l.S72 21,i&l.2'154 :u ... a1.2ea 

To:u. 
:ZO<ll -----32..!i 
3,223,581 $ 3,223,581 

395 ,600 4,660 ,629 
2,916 2 ,916 

16,001,224 15,839,945 
12,997,926 6,596,181 

8,306,153 8,147,296 
49,238 ,807 -47 ,624,1 38 
27,248,01 7 26,011.n4 
34,394,710 33,657 ,984 
1i .1-c.;.1ss 112'.C,711 

tE:3_S 1ton {57.119105 
60.-.&J6 sr.,2,,u. 301019&9,l 

$ 5>,<Q6.7S, S !-5,JSS.521 $ '4~701 sos S 44.3Q2.4i0 .$ 103
1
10~ _ S gj_u.7 iMU 

Some of the more sign~icant additions to the City's capital assets during 2020 included: (in thousands) 

Ctty infrastructure additions 
• Water system and equipment additions 
• Wastewater system and equipment additions 
• Storm water system additions 

$ 2,077,0 
961 .9 
76B.3 
421 .9 

Additional information related to the Crty's capital assets is reported in Note 3,C following the basic 
financial statements. 
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Long-Term Obligations 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

At December 31, 2020 and for the previous year, the Crty had outstanding long-term debt and other 
long-term obligations as shown below: 

u:Jng-Term Debt 

General Obl9i1110n Deb! 
Bonds 

Notes 

Tax Increment Revenue Bonds 
Unamortized Debt Prfimium 

Unamortized Debt Di&count 

Y/a<'~l'MI~ 
Sewer ReveNJe Bonds 

Subtotal 

Other Leng-Term Obligat10ns 

Compensaled Ab6enc:e Payable 

£c.me:c,:S-Ut'CIQP~we 
Ca111C~ 

Totat 

Outstanding Long-Term Obligations 
December 31, 2020 and 2019 

G:Min~n!llilA:.rwlea. ~lyco .-divlld 

~ ~ ~ 20_.!i 

S. 21 575,COO S 

776,64B 

2,869,942 

...,,066 
(19,709) 

21 ,425.000 5, 4,"60,00D 
1,064 .730 
3068,037 

3n,ees 11,549 
(24,082) (4.591) 

763,3-11 

$ 3,995,000 

40,502 

t5 ,433) 

984.502 

TotalO~!?t 
.!!!!!._ ______!!!! 

$ 26,035,00J S 
n6B4B 

2,B69,942 
511615 
(24.J(Xl) 

763.341 

2S,420,0CX) 
1,064,730 
3,068,037 

<11B,3B7 

{29515) 
964,502 

---- --~=-=c-~ ~ ~ ~ 25,642,147 25,911 ,570 B,930,416 B,918.934 34,572,563 ... .,.,, 

.,,..,., .. ,363 

.:l .. ,CIJ0,5CJ4 

1,014268 1,058,S82 170,151 150,696 1,164,419 1,209,57B 

14.%19 151'2'10 • • 149"8 1-'' • ·-vo 
-·-···..m' ~ I 7',07."nl S 9.\00,5&1 ~ ~ ~ 

.. 
~ 

,., .. 
-27,0 ... , 
22.3 
-17.7 
-22.5 ... 
-0.7 

·21 

-5.1 

"'·' 
Under Wisconsin State Statutes, the outstanding general obligation long-term debt of a municipality 
may not exceed 5% of the equalized property value of all taxable property within the jurisdiction. The 
applicable debt of the City outstanding at December 31, 2020 totaled $26,611,848 approximately 44% 
of the maximum legal limit of $61,393,740. 

On August 11, 2020, the Crty issued General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2020B in the 
amount of $2,790,000. The bonds accrue interest at 2.00 percent and mature June 1, 2040. The bonds 
were used to finance various capital equipment purchases, street improvement projects, water system 
improvement projects, and sewer system improvement projects. 

Additional information related to the City's long-term debt is reported in Note 3_E following the basic 
rmanclal statements. 

CURRENTLY KNOWN FACTS BEARING ON THE CITY'S FUTURE 

The City Council adopted a 2021 general fund budget that was balanced. 

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Crty of Chippewa Falls' finances 
for all those wrth an interest in the government's finances Questions concerning any of the information 
provided in this report or requests for addrtional information should be addressed to the office of the 
Financial Manager, 30 West Central Street, Chippewa Falls, Wisconsin 54729 

(15) 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities 

ASSE11> 
Cash and Investments $ 34,914,723 $ 14,373,429 
Taxes Receivable 10,067,795 
Speo.• 1.Asseumonb: Rece-ivah1c 1,749,495 1,068,915 
Accounts Receivable 741,608 1,150,354 
Due from Other Governments 313,168 
Interest Receivable 53 ,345 
Long-Term Receivables 4,946 ,674 
Inventories 17,219 148,083 
Land Contracts and Land Held for Resale 4,000 
Other Assets 4,591 
Internal Balances (891,772) 891 ,772 
Restricted Assets: 

Cash and Investments 4,207,584 
Wisconsin Retirement svstem Net Pension Asset 1,888,388 202,130 

Capital Assets: 
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 3,306,220 315 ,877 
Capital Assets Being Depreciated 86,544,110 73,346,892 
Accumulated Depreciation !,!1 ,443.S?;lj ~8,95 1,264) 

Total Assets 112.211 ,401 66,748,363 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Wisconsin Retirement System Pension Plan Related 4,424,908 4n,so5 
OPEB Single-Employer Plan Related 236,nJ 37,325 
State Lite Insurance OPEB Plan Related 151176 34,891 

Total Deferred Outnows of Resources 4,812 ,807 544,821 

UABIUTIES 
Vouchers and Accounts Payable 644,017 263,650 
Accrued Interest Payable 218,410 44,539 
Payroll Taxes and Withholdings 143,551 
Due to Other Go11emments 6,337 
Long-Term Liabilities: 

Due Within One Year 2,774,32B 706,320 
Due in More Than One Year 24,031,296 B,398,838 
Total OPEB Liability Single-Employer Plan 1,047 ,928 165,234 
State Life Insurance Net OPEB Liability 365 702 84 .400 

Tora! Liabilities 29,231,569 9,662,981 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Subsequent Year's Property Taxes 12,297,581 
Wisc::onsin Retirement System Pension Plan Re lated 5,658,493 605,675 
OPES Single-Employer Plan Related 524,373 82,680 
Stale Life Insurance OPEB Plan Related 56,608 13,065 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 18,53_7,055 701,420 

NET POSITION 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 34,091 ,333 35,766 ,497 
Restricted for: 

Debt SeNice Funds 256,226 
Capital Projects and Plant Replacement 6,406 ,730 3,491,298 
Housing/Business Loan Programs 2,455 ,672 
Pension Plan Asset 1,888,388 202,130 
Other Purposes 843,243 

Unrestricted 23,570,218 17,212,632 
Total Net Posilion $ 69 255 584 $ 56 928 783 

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
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-----1E1!l 

s 49,288 ,152 
10,067,795 

2,818,410 
1,891,962 

313,168 
53,345 

4,946,674 
165,302 

4,000 
4,591 

4,207 ,584 
2,090,518 

3,622,097 
159,891 ,002 
reo •o..as!!J 
17U59.76• 

4,897,513 
274,048 
186,067 

5,357,628 

907 ,667 
262,949 
143,551 

6,337 

3,480,64B 
32,430,134 

1,213,162 
450 102 

38,894,550 

12,297,5B1 
6 ,264 ,1 68 

607 ,053 
69,673 

19,2JB,475 

69,857,830 

256,226 
9,898 ,028 
2,455 ,672 
2,090,518 

843 ,243 
40,782,850 

__$___1_<§j_8A,:l§l' 

Functlons/Proqt~ms 

Primary Govemm,nt: 

GovernmentalActiv1l1es 

General Government 

Publ,cSalety 

PubticWorb 

Heath and Human Se,vic:es 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

Pr051'8m Revenues. 

Charges Operalin!I' Capital 

Net (Erpense) RevMue 

andChanges.inNel Position 
Foi Granls ard Grants aril Governmental Business-Type 

~~~~~~~ 

1 1.307_446 I 
6827767 

2,536,~2 

'8,666 

93,244 s, 
1,707,914 

444,eoe 
4,778 

17,187 i 
479,462 

1,236.175 592,747 

S (1,197,015) l 

(4,640.391) 

(262,612) 

{43,888) 

• S (1,197,015) 

(4,640,391) 

(262,612) 

(43,888) 
Culture, Recreation and Educat1a, 633,316 574,647 21,430 260,896 223,657 223,657 
Conservation and Development 2,014,985 2,980 25,219 22,566 (1,964,220) (1,964,220) 
lnterMlarw:IFISCalCharges 76'.21? (1&'.277) (?1&)17) 

To<alGovemmeNalAGliY'ties ~ ~~~~----~ 

Busneu-TypcAcivilles 

W.i!er 

\~~ltU?l'fltd 
Storm Waler 

2,016,766 

2.624,525 

742,004 

2,652,871 

3,155,306 

759,712 

196,452 
166,413 

832,557 

697,196 

17,708 

832,557 

697,196 

17,700 
TolalBusiness-TypeActrvities. 5,383,295 6,567,891 ==== 362,8155 ==== 1,547.461 1,547,461 

Total Primary Goverrment $ 19,536,094 $ 939626'2 S 1,779473 $ 1.239,074 (6,668,746) 1,547,461 (7,121 ,285) 

General Revenues: 

Taxes.: 

PropertyTaxes,Levied fDrGeneral Purposes 
Property Taxes, Levied br Debt Purposes 
Property Taxes, Levied lor TIF Ois!r1t1s 
Other Taxes 

St.lie ard Federal Aids Nol Res.lricted lo Specific Funcltons 
lnteresland lnvestmen\Eamln'15 
Mi5c:ellaneous 
Gain on Sa~ cl Property 

Tran&lers 

Total Gener;al Revenues. and Transfers 

Change In Net Position 

Se! ?~• !c9JINV ~ Yu, 

Net Position - End of Vear 

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements. 
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5,6611,778 5,668,778 
1,721,!!73 1,721,873 
4,059,091 4,059,081 

313,384 313,384 
3,987,810 3,987,810 

169,717 138,740 308,457 
84,719 84,719 

129,221 129,221 
391,2£0 (391,260) 

16,525,843 (252,520) 16,273,323 

7,857,097 1,294,941 9,152,0313 

~ 55,633,8~2 ~ 

5 69,255,584 ~ $ 126,184,367 
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ASSETii 
Treasurer's Cash and Investments 
Taxes Receivable 
Special Assessments Recervable 
Accounts Receivable 

Due trom Other Governmenl'S 

Due from Other Funds 
Land Contracts and Land Held rcr Resal e 
Interest Receivable 

Inventories 
Advances to other Fund& 
Installment Loans Receivable 
Loans Receivable 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2020 

Debt TI D #14 
Generaj CDBG Service Capital Projects 

Fund Fund Fund Fund -----------
S 22,931,611 $ 337,405 • 993,282 • 407,598 

3,632 ,212 1,775,895 2, 081,204 

705298 
313,168 

702,150 

4,000 

17,219 

759,466 

423,887 

1,704,322 ----

Other 

Governmental 

Funds Totals 

$ 10,244,827 $ 34,914,723 
2,578,4 84 10,067,795 
1,749,495 1,749,495 

36.310 741 ,608 

313,168 

1,118,421 1,820,571 

4,000 
53,345 53,345 

17,219 
759,466 

2,620,465 3,044,352 

198,000 1,902,322 

Total Assets $ 29,075,124 ~ ~ $ 2 ,4BB,802 S 18,599_.34 7 S 55,398,064 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabili t ies: 
Vouc hers and Accounts Payable 
Pay,oll Withholdings 
Due to Other Governmental Unit; 
Due to Other Funds 
Advances from Other Funds 

Total Liablities 

Oaferr~ Inflows of Resources : 
Subsequent Year's Property Ta:a:es 
un,,..air~1110 LIN~ RID'te1'Yi1 1:11t. 
Unavailable Special Assessments 
Ul\alla1lable Land Contract 

Un.;wair,aott Am.oula~ Rawot'lues 
Total Deferred lnf/o'NS of Resources 

Fund Balances: 
Nonspendable 
Restncted 
Committed 
Assigned 

Unassigned 

Total Fund Balances 

Total Liabd1bes, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources, and Fund Balances 

147,039 • 9,942 $ 3,800 
143,551 

6,337 

567,882 

771.1!'.ffl 
864,809 ~ ~ 

5,861,998 1,775,895 

2,128,209 

4,000 

2Jl.i56 -
~ ~ 1,775,895 

789 ,769 

327,463 211 ,783 

760,203 

:!ll.~>09 
_22.H2,Xt 327,463 2 11 ,783 

$ 29,075,124 $ 2,465,614 ~ 

See accompanying Notes ta Basic Financial Statements 
[1B) 

• • 483,236 ! 644,017 
143,551 

6,337 
277,289 1,089,473 1,934,644 

7H ,o&M 1,$117 ,,!5 
277 ,289 2., '!Q 175- ~.:us n4 

2,081,204 2,578,484 12,297,581 
491,085 2,619 ,294 

1,749 ,495 1,749 ,495 

4 ,000 

231 i 56 
2,081 ,204 4,81 9,064 10,lm,~ 

607,501 1.397,270 
130,309 8,446.366 9,11 5,941 

3,153,991 3,153,991 

760,203 

(7fi9.7i"Ci 19,'192,15-10 
130,309 11,( 36.1~ J.4,220,024. 

$ 2,488,802 $ 18,599,347 ~39§_,_064 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES 

TO NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 
DECEMBER 31, 2020 

Tot11I F'und Bat.11nce111 .. Governm•ntal Funds 

Amounts reported fo r governmental activities in the stateme nt o f 
net position are differe nt because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds These 
assets consist of: 

Land 
Buildings 
Land lmprowements 
Equipment and Vehicles 
Infrastructure 
Construction Work in Progress 
Accumulatej Oeprecialion 

Some receivables including special assessments, are reported as 
deferred inflows in the fund financia l statements but are recognized 
as revenue when earned in the government-wide statements 

Net W isconsin Re:i re me nt System pension asset (liabi1ily) and related 
deferre d outflows and inHows of resources are recorded only on 
the Statement of Net Position. Balances at year-end are: 

Net Pens io n Asset (Liab ility) 
Deferred OLtflows of R esources 
Deferred Inf ows of Resources 

Other Postemployment Benefits and related deferred outflows 
and inrlows of resources are recorded only on the Statement 
of Net Pos ition. Balances at year-end are: 

S ingle-Empl::,yer Total OPES Liabili ty 
Deferred Oi..tflows of R esources - Single-Employer Plan 
Deferred Inflows of Resources - Single-Employer Plan 
State Life ln, urance Net OPES Liability 
Deferred Outflows of Resources - State Life Insurance 
Deferred Inflows o f Resources - State Life Insurance 

Some liabilities are, not due and payable in the current pe riod and, 
therefore, are not reported in the funds . These liabiliti es consist of: 

Bonds Paya:,\e 
Notes Payable 
State Trust Fund Loan 
Accrued Inte rest Payable 
Landfill Post:losure Costs 
Compensated A bsences Payable 

Debt discounts a nd premiums are amortized over the lives of the 
related debt in the state ment of net position, In the governmental funds 
these costs are considered expenditures/othe r financing uses when 
incurred. These costs include: 

Unamortiz ec Debi Premium 
Unamortizei: Debt Discount 

Nat Position of Governmental Activities 

See accompanying Notes b Basic Financial Statements, 
[19) 

$ 2 ,910,620 
16,001 ,224 
12,997,926 

8 ,306,153 
49,238,807 

395,600 
(31,443,572) 

1,888,388 
4,424,908 

(5,658,493) 

[1,047,928) 
236,723 

(524,373) 
(365 ,702) 
151 ,176 
(56,608) 

(21 ,575,00D) 
(776 ,848) 

(2,869,942) 
(218,410) 
(149,209) 

(1 .014,268) 

(440,D66) 
19~ 

$ 34,220,024 

58 ,406,758 

4 ,604,745 

654.B03 

(1,6D6,712) 

(26,603,677) 

(420,357) 

~9,255,5§_4 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

Debt TIO #'14 Other 
General COBG ServIc111 Capital ProJ• cts G:,vemmel'ltlll 

RJNIDlUES 
Taxes 
&pccilllA.M41•'11'1'1Mbio 
ltM._.,gCVfftlmlfr.t# 
t.ic«Mct...OP'tttml 
Fines and For1elt5 
Public Charges far Services 
Intergovernmental Charges for Services 
Miscellaneous 

Interest 
Rer'it 
Donations 
loan Repayment5 
Ot.ner 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
General Government 
Public sarety 
l11rmp01(JlfJt1no fl 
SWlltab'='" 
Mla.."'ffi a,o ~ 84MOn 
Culb.ire, Rec::reation Md Educ.abon 
Conservation and Development 
Capital Outlay 
Debt Service: 

Pf~ft~tfM;llt 
Interest and Fiscal Charges 
o.ottu...~~ 

Total Exp,uad:tut• s 

liXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES [USES) 
SeJe of Property 
Long-Term Debt Issued 
Df:btPremium 
Tram;1ers In 
Transfers Out 

Total Other F1n1mcing Sources (Uses) 

NET C: HAMOli f.M :FUN.0 IIA1..ANCE:G 

Fund Balaot.es (Deficits), January 1 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), CE.CEMBER 31 

~ ~ ~ Fund Funds Total$ 

S 5,731,300 S 

5,450,2-46 

S 1,721,!!73 S 1,812,751 S 2,497,412 S 11,7153,336 

413 532 
75 531 

1,461,6!!6 
650,!!25 

46,384 
4 ,850 

,,, 167 

224,572 

~----· ----· 13,960,522 224 ,883 1,722,040 

1,238,438 
6,448,482 
2,067,758 

275 5-14 
48,666 

1,930,66SI 
137,371 
277,298 

68,42-'1 

2,-410,977 
806,01V 

. ,.~n 
12,-42-4,226 68,424 3,2:~!il 

1,536,296 

102,586 

394,960 

156,459 (1,513,529) 

110,906 
1,418,747 

1,812,751 

1,43Sl,709 

~ 

373,042 

497,545 1,529,653 ---......:... 

2,033,8-42 156 ,-4SSI 16,124 37J 042 

~ .......... ?ill 171 ~ ~ ~ 

SSl2,320 592,320 
300,15915 5,750 942 

135,971 

4150,266 
36,077 

413,532 
75531 

1,4151,l!i86 
650,825 

182,833 
4,850 

460 ,266 
260,649 

• 126,168 
4,022.742 ~ 

1 238,438 
3,893 6,452,375 

2,oe1.1se 
275,544 

48,61515 
374,678 2,305,347 
237,265 1,8827651 

1,834,166 2, 111 .464 

2,410,977 
40,504 8415 523 

• Jl,ei1l. 
2,490,506~ 

1,532,236 2 ,084 ,504 

27,385 129 971 
2,075,000 2,075.000 

7,570 118,476 
soo.561 2.'.31-4286 
~ 0,.92.)_0la) 
~ 2.1'14,707 

2 ,219,744 4 ,799 211 

9,218,364 29,420,813 

S 221123151 ~ ~ S I JU JU:O ,;•baa=== ='="'=='= ,,n .. nn .. ' ' .... ~ ~ _ S 34,220~4 

Seit accompanying Notes ta Basic Financial Statements. 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmental acti\11hes in the statement of actMties are 
different because: 

Capital oLJtlays are reported as expenditures In governmental funds However. 
in the staternent of activities, the cost of capital assets is allocated over their 
estimated useful lives as depreciation expense In the current period, these 
amounts are 

Capital Outlays Reported in Governmental Fund Statements 
Depreciation Expense Reported in the Statement of Activities 

In the statement of acti\lrties , only the gain or loss on the sale of land, buildings arv:1 
equipment is reported whereas in the governmental funds, the entire proceeds of 
sales increase financial resources Thus, the change in net position differs from 
the change in fund balances by the cost of land, buildings and equipment removed 

R~ivables r;ot currently available are reported as deferred lnfiO'Mi in the fund 
fir;anciat statements but are recogmzed as revenue when earned in the 
!1(M!'.mffNtnC•wde sa~meAtt 

Pension expenditures in the governmental funds are measured by current year 
employee contrIbut.Jons Pension expenses on the statement of activities are 
measured by the change in net pension asset/liability and related deferred outflo'I.S and 
lnfli:.w, oJ f C$ia&,tCH.. 

OPEB expenditures In the governmental funds are measured by current year 
employee contributions OPES expenses on the statement of activrt(es are 
measured by the change in OPEB asseV11ab1hty and related deferred outflow; and 
1nflov.s of resources 

Long-term debt incurred In governmental funds IS reported o1s an other financing 
source. but is rt:ported as an increase in outstanding long-term debt in the 
statement of net position and does not affect the statement of activities In the 
current year, these amounts consist of 

General O~igat1on Bonds 

Repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure in governmental funds, 
but the repayment reduces long-term liabllrties in the statl!ment of net position In the 
current year, these amounts consist of: 

Bond Prineipa/ Retirement 
Note Principal Retirt:ment 
iu:a:te Noltt andSor,oc 

Some items reported in the statement or activities do not require the use of 
current financial resources and, thererore, are not reported as expendrtL1res in 
govemmt:ntal funds These act1vit1es constSt of: 

Net Change rn Accrued Interest Payable 
Net Change in Compensated Absences Balance 
Net Change in Landfill Postclosure Care Costs 
Net Change in Debt Premium 
Net Change m Debi Discount 

Change in Net Position of Governmen1al Activities 

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements. 
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5,129,736 
(2,025,725) 

1,925,000 
287,BB2 
1~ 

28,897 
44,614 

B,061 
(62,181) 
(4,373) 

4,799,2,1 

3,104,011 

(92,774) 

(196,841) 

{38,673) 

(68,832) 

(2,075,000) 

2,410,977 

15,018 

L§57,09t 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31 , 2020 

Business~Type Activities~ Enterprise Funds 

Water Wastewater Storm Water 

~ Utili~ ~ Totals 
ASSETS 

Current Assets: 
Cash and Investments $ 6,514,121 $ 7,255,567 $ 603,741 S 14,373,429 
Customer Accounts Receivable 483,678 488,094 177,683 1,149,455 
Special Assessments Receivable 431,255 637,660 1,068,915 
Other Accounts Receivable 899 899 
Due from Other Funds: 

Accounts Receivable on Tax Roll 78,092 68,924 17,353 164,369 
Due from Governmental Funds 359,321 679.n1 266,460 1,305,502 
Due from Water UtWity 465,817 465,817 
Due from Wastewater Utility 199,201 199,201 

Inventories 93,815 54,268 148,083 
Total Current Assets 8,160,382 9,595,783 1,119,505 18,875,670 

Restricted Assets: 
Cash and Investments: 

Bond Redemption Fund Investments 101,266 190,027 291,293 
Replacement Fund Cash and Investments 3,916,291 3,916,291 

Wisconsin Retirement System Net Pension Asset 95,14S 9S.507 11.'78 202,130 
Total Restricted As$e1:s 196 ,411 4,2!)1,825 ,, .ens .C.409,71' 

Capital Assets: 
land and Land Rights 135,570 177,391 312,961 
Nonutility Property 2,916 2,916 
Utility Plant in Service 27,248,017 34,394,710 11,704,165 73,346,892 
less Accumulated Depreciation (10,855,665) (14 ,497.760] p~oMJ,t e!.!161»•1 

Total Capital Assets 16,530.631 20,074_,.'I !.098.326 <4,701.SOS 

Other Assets: 
Advances to Other Funds 777,699 777,699 
Unamortized Debt Discount 1,52' 3,088 4,!i'9, 

Total Other Assets 1n.s!lll ,ni 3Jl6a 7112,291) 

Total Assets 25,665,330 33,873,472 9,230,377 68,769,H9 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Wisconsin Retirement System Pension Plan Related 222,569 223,416 26,620 472,605 
OPEB Single-Employer Plan Related 14,388 22 ,033 904 37,325 
State Life Insurance OPES Plan Related 12,sss 20.42' 1.912 34HI 

Total Deferred Outflows cf Resources 2,1,sg 265.873 ~~ 5'4.&ll 

See accompanying Nares to Basic Financial Statements 
(22) 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (CONTINUED) 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2020 

Business-Type Ac~11ities - Enterl)Ji6.C Funds. 

Water Wastewater Storm Water 
LIABILITIES Utili!)'. Util~ ~ Totlls 

Current Liabilities Payable From 
Current Assets: 

Accounts Pavable $ 108,071 s 151,428 s 4,151 $ 263,650 
Due to Governmental Funds: 

Taxes Accrued 391,260 391,260 
Other 361,322 520,845 548,188 1,430,355 

Due to Water Utility 199,201 199,201 
Accrued Interest Payable 9,472 9,472 
Current Portion of long.Term Debt (Net of 

Portion Payable h'om Restricted Anels} 45,000 90,000 135,000 
Current Portion of Unused Vested 

Employee Benefits 30,683 37,149 2,334 70,166 
Total Current Liabilities Payable h'om 

current Assets 936 ,336 908 ,623 654 ,145 2 ,499,104 

Current Liabilities Payable from 
Restricted Assets: 

Accrued Interest Payable 7,941 27,126 35,067 
Current Portion of Long.Term Debt 76 ,161 424,993 501.154 

Total Current Liabililies Payable from 
Restricted Assets 84,102 452,119 536,221 

Long-Term Liabilities: 
Revenue Bonds (Net of Current Portion) 1,518 ,676 5,435 ,661 1,344,517 8,298,854 
Unused Vested Employee Benefils 34,949 63,300 1,735 99,984 
Other Postemployment Benefits Payable 63,691 97,539 4,004 165,234 
State Life Insurance Net OPEB Liability 10.375 49.408 .. ,619 -ec.,oo 

Total Long•Term Liabilities 1.547.691 H45,906 1.J:54,US a.s•a.•n 
Total Liabilities 2,668,129 7,006,648 2,009,020 11,683,797 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Wisconsin Retirement System Pension Plan Related 285,099 286,184 34,392 605,675 
OPEB Single•Employer Plan Related 31,870 48,807 2,003 82 ,680 
State Life Insurance OPEB Plan Related 4.701 M4.! 71E U,065 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 321 .670 342.639 ___ 3_7,111 _ _701 ,•20 

NET POSITION 
Net lmiestment in Capital Assets 14,891,001 14,213,687 6,661,809 35,766,497 
Restricted fer Debt Service 93,325 162,901 256,226 
Restricted fer Asset Replacement 3,491,298 3,491,298 
Restricted for Wisconsin Retirement System Pension Plan 95,145 95,507 11,478 202,130 
Unrestricted 7,845,Sn 8,826,665 540,395 17,212,632 

Total Net Position S 22,925~ s 2f! 79O os8 _s 1213 682 _l__S6,928, 783_ 

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
(23) 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds 

Water Wastewater Storm Water 
utility Utility Utility ~ OPERATING REVENUES 

Charges fur Services s 2,436,159 s 2,541,559 s 749,907 $ 5,727,625 
Olher Operating Revenues 216,712 613,749 9,805 840,266 

Total Operating Revenues 2,652,871 3,155,308 759,712 6,567,891 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Operation, Maintenance and Administrative 1,255,727 1,650,613 466,667 3,373,227 
O~preciation 713.700 826,i7S 2RJ2a 1,n3,DD3 

Total Operating Expenses 1,969J-421 2,477.,7i!B li99,015 S,146,2311 

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 683,444 677,520 60,697 1,421,661 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Interest Income 81,793 52,357 4,590 138,740 
Interest Expense (49,023) (136,429) (43,484) (228,936) 
Amortization of Debt Related Items 1,664 po,30B1 495 IB,1291 

Total Nonoperating Revenues 
(Expenses) 34,454 (94,380) (38,399) 198,325) 

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL 
CONTRIBUTIONS ANO TRANSFERS 717,898 583,140 22,298 1,323,336 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS 
Capital Contributions by Private Sources 196,452 166,413 362,865 
Transfer Out (391,260) 1391.260) 

Total Capital Contributions and Transfers (194,808} 166,413 (26,395) 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 523,090 749,553 22,298 1,294,941 

Net Position, January 1 22,401,953 26,040,505 7,191,384 55,633,842 

NET POSITION, DECEMBER 31 S 22 925 043 S 26 790 058 s 7J13 682 S 56,92~ 

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
(24) 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 , 2020 

Business-Type Activities - Entercrise Funds 

Water Wastewater Storm Water 
Utility Utility Utility ~ CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTMTIES 

Cash Received from Customers $ 2,600,441 s 3,124,705 s 768 ,230 s 6,493,376 
Cash Received (Paid) for Wastewater Building Rent (12,000) 12,000 
Cash Received (Paid) for Water Meter Charges to 

Wastewater 99,999 (99,999) 
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services (201,567) (622,337) (106,095) (929,999) 
Cash Payments for Employee Services (B70,78o) (7 15,578) [375.M>2) ( l ."52.164) 

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities 1.616,087 1,658,793 2£6 . .UJ M1'1,21l 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES 

Transfers Out (391.260) (391,260) 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL ANO RELATED 
FlNANCING ACTMTIES 

Cash Received from Capital Contributions 6,621 6,621 
Cash Payments for Capital Assets (1,209,026) (1,463,555) (379,697) (3,052,278) 
Cash Payments for Construc~on Work in Progress (206,470) (150) (206,620) 
Cash Received from Special Assessments 7B,B85 145,474 224,359 
Cash Received from Long-Term Debt 455,000 260 ,000 715 ,000 
Cash Paid for Debt Issuance Costs 6,812 6 ,812 
Cash Paid for Principal on Long-Term Debt (271,161) (386,177) (70,000) (727,3JB) 
Cash Paid for Interest on Long-Term Debt (54,485) 1142,7461 (32,0681 (229,2991 

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Capital and 
Related Financing Activities 11,655 ,636) (1,385,342) (221,765) (3,262,743) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Cash Received from Interest on Investments 81,793 52,357 4,590 138,740 

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (349,016) 365,808 69,158 85,950 

Cash and Cash Equivalents , January 1 6,964,403 10,9es,on 534 ,583 18,495,063 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, DECEMBER 31 s 6,615,387_ ~ 11,361 ,885 _l_ 603,741 j_l_ll,581 ,013 

See accompanying Notes t.J Basic Financial Statements. 
(25) 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED) 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET 
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating Income 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net 

Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities; 
Change in Pension Plan Related Items: 

Assetlliability 
Deferred Outfl0W5 of Resouri;es 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Change In OPEB Related Items: 
Asset/Liability 
Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Deferred lnHows of Resources 

Depreciation 
(Increase) Decrease in Assets: 

Customer Accounts Receivable 
other Accounts ReceNable 
Auounts. ReceJ,.,obje on Ta., Roi 
Due from other Funds 
Inventories 

Increase (Decrease} in LiabiUties: 
Accounts Payable 
Due lo Other Funds 
Unused Vested Employee Benefits 

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities 

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
TO CASH ANO CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and Investments Per Statement of Net Position; 
Cash and Investments 
Cash and Investments - Restricted 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalenls 

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND ANANCING ACTMTIES 
Contributions of Capital Assets 

See accompany;ng Notes to Basic Financial Statements. 

Water Wastewater 
Utili!l._ utili!}'. 

683 ,444 s 677,520 

(196,724) (197 ,472) 
53 ,798 53,789 

144,962 145,513 

23,013 38,836 
(20,191) (31,782) 

5,844 10,350 
713,700 826,975 

5,115 (40,109) 
(404) 

42,858 21,506 
227,656 

(7,309) 

(53 ,018) 84,879 
(12 ,000) 95,074 

~ 13,714 

1616087 $ 1 698 793 

6,514,121 $ 7,255,567 
~ 4,106,318 

6 615 387 S 11,361 BBS 

186,344 166,413 

(26) 

Storm Wate r 

Utili!}'. Totals 

s 60,697 $ 1,421 ,661 

(23,732) (417,928) 
6,798 114,385 

17,487 307,962 

2,789 64,638 
(2 ,059) (54 ,032) 

522 16,716 
232,328 1,773,003 

1,215 (33,779) 
(404) 

7,303 71,667 
958 228,614 

(12,629) (19,938) 

(5 ,741) 26,120 
83,074 

397 19,454 

$ 286,333 $ 3,6_01,213 

603 ,741 S 14,373,429 

~ 
603 741 S 18,581 013 

352,757 

ASSETS 
Cash and Investments 
Taxes Receivable 

Total Assets 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2020 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Succeeding Years Property Tax 

NET POSITION 
Restricted 

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
(27) 

Custodial 

~ 

$ 2,536,31B 
9,717,99B 

12,254,316 

12,254,316 

..! 
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ADDITIONS 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

Tax Collections for Other Governments 

DEDUCTIONS 
Payments of Taxes to Other Governments 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

Net Position, January 1 

NET POSITION, DECEMBER 31 

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements. 
(28) 

Custodial 
Fund 

$ 11,641,864 

11,641,864 

$ 

NOTE 1 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financfal slatements of the ·city of Chippewa Falls (lhe City) have been prepared in 
conformity w11t, generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to 
governmental units. The Govemmenlal Accounting Standards Board {GASS) Is the 
accepted standard-setting body for establishlog govemmenlal accounting and financial 
reporting principles. "The significant accounting principles and policies ullllzed by 1he City are 
descrfbed below: 

A. Reporting Entity 

The City of Chippewa Falls is governed by a mayor/council form of government. The 
council consists of seven members elected from seven wards wnhin the City and the 
mayor. 

The financial reporting of lhe City Is defined by the GASB lo consisl of (a) the primary 
government, (b) organizations for which the primary government is- fmanclally 
accountable, and (c) other organiza1lons for which the nature and significance of lheir 
relationship wt1h the primary government are such lhal the excluslon would cause the 
reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete, 

The basic financial statements of the City consist of the primary govemmen1 and the 
Redevelopment Authority of the City of Chippewa Falls The Redevelopment Authority 
has been trealed as a "blended component unit" for report ing purposes. A blended 
component unit, although a legally separate entity, is in substance, part of the 
governments operations and so dala from the unit Is combined with data of the primary 
government. Transactions cf the Redevelopment Aulhonly during 2020 consisled .solely 
of the transactions relating 10 Its revolving loa~ fund. These transactions have been 
presented in a separate special revenue fund as described further in this note. 

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The City's basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the City 
as a whole) and fund financial statements as described below: 

Government-Wide Statements 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the 
statement of activities) report financial information on all of the nonflt!uc1ary activities of 
the primary government. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been 
removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported 
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from bus iness-type 
activities , which rely lo a sign~icant extent on fees and charges for support. 

(29) 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

Government-Wide Statements (Continued) 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a 
given function or segment are offset by program revenues_ Direct expenses are those 
that are clearly identifiable to a specific function or segment Program revenues include 
(a) charges to customers or applicants who purchase. use or directly benefit from goods, 
services or privileges provided by a given function or segment; and (b) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capttal requirements of a 
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among 
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements 
Financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which is 
considered to be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a 
separate set of self-balancing accounts, which constitute its assets, liabilities, deferred 
inflows of resources, net position. fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds 
and fiduciary funds even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide 
financial statements Major individual governmental funds and major individual 
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund - The General Fund is the operating fund of the City It is used to 
account for all financial resources of the City, except those required to be accounted 
for in another fund 
CDBG Fund - The CDBG Fund, a special revenue fund, is used to account for the 
restricted CDBG funding and the related revolving loan funds . The major revenue 
sources are grants and loan repayments. 
Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the 
accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, 
interest and related costs of governmental funds. For report purposes, the City has 
considered its individual debt service funds as one fund, 
TID #14 Fund - The TID #14 Capital Projects Fund is used to account for resources 
accumulated to be used for capital projects as approved as part of the TID plan. 

All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. 

(30) 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

B- Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 
The City reports the following major enterprise funds: 

Water Utility - This fund accounts for the operalions of the water system. Utility 
operations are subject to regulation by the 'Msconsin Public Service Commission. 
Wastewater Utility - This fund accounts for the operations of the wastewater 
collection system and treatment facilities 
Storm Water Utility - This fund accounts for the operations of the storm water 
collection system and related activities, 

The City had no other enterprise funds. 

Additionally, the City reports the following fiduciary fund: 

Custodial Fund - This fund is used to account for assets held by the City on behalf 
of individuals, private organizalions and/or other governmental units. The custodial 
fund is primarily used to account for the collection of property taxes for other 
governmental entities. 

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

The government-wide, proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements are 
reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounllng. Revenues , expenses. gains, losses, assels and llabilit_les resull.lng from 
exchange and exchangi:Hlke transactions are recognized when the exChange takes 
pla.ce. Nonexchange transadlons. In which the City giVes or receives value without 
directly receiving or giving equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, 
enlitlements and donations Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for 
which they are levied. Taxes receivable for the following year are recorded as 
receivables and deferred inflows of resources. Grants and similar items are recognized 
as revenue as soon as all eligibiltty requirements imposed by the provider are met. 
Special assessments are recorded as revenue when earned. Unbilled receivables, if 
material, are recorded as revenues when services are provided. 

Governmental fund statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, 
revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues 
are deemed to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon 
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period, For this purpose, the City 
considers revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if they are 
collected within sixty days after the end of the current fiscal period. State and Federal 
aids under cost reimbursement programs are generally recognized when earned ~ 
expected to be collected in the subsequent year. Expenditures are recorded when the 
related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term 
debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences which are recognized as 
expenditures to the extent they have matured. 

(31) 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued) 

General cap'rtal asse1 ar:qulsilfons are reported as expendhures in govemmen1al funds. 
Proceeds of general long-term debl and acquisttions under cap~al leases are reported 
as other llnanclng sources. Property taxes, mlscellaneou,s taxes, public charges for 
serv ices and interest associaled with 1he current fiscal period are all considered to be 
susceptible to accrual Only the portion of special assessment receivable due within the 
current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current 
period. All other revenue items are generally considered to be measurable and available 
only when cash is received by the government. 

The City reports deferred inffows of resources on its statement of net position and fund 
balance sheets. Deferred inflows arise when potential revenue does not meet both the 
"measurable" and "available" criteria for recognition in the current period. Unearned 
revenues also arise when resources are received by the City before It has a legal claim 
lo them as when grant monies are received p~or 10 the lncurrence of qualifying 
expend~ures. In subsequent periods, when bolh revenue recogn ition crtteria are met. or 
when the City has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for deferred inflows of 
resources or the liability for unearned revenue is removed from the statement of net 
position and fund balance sheet and revenue is recognized . 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the 
government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are paymenls-in­
lleu of taxes and other charges between the 9-0vernment's utility functions and various 
other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct 
costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned 

Proprieiary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoper<iling 
ttems. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from provldlng services and 
producing and delivering goods In connection wi1h a proprielary fund's principal ongoing 
operations. The principal operating revenues of the water utrrity, wastewaIer utility, and 
storm water utility are cilarges 10 customers ror sales and services. Operating expenses 
for proprietary funds Include the cost of sales and services, admlf!lslralive expenses and 
depreclatlon on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are 
reported as nonoperatlng revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's 
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
amounts reported in financial statements and accompanying notes Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position or 
Equity 

1. Deposits and Investments 

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand 
deposits and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less 
from date of acquisition. Cash and investment balances for individual funds are 
pooled unless maintained in segregated accounts. 

Investment of City funds is restricted by state statutes Available investments are 
limited to: 

1. Time deposits in any credit union, bank, savings bank or trust company maturing 
in three years or less. 

2. Bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by the federal government. 
3. Bonds or securities of any county, city, drainage district, technical college district, 

village, town, or school district of the state. Also, bonds issued by a local 
exposlt[on district, a local professional baseball park district, a local professional 
football stadium dislricl, a local cultural arts district, or by the University of 
Wisconsin Hospitals and Clinics Authority. 

4. Any security maturing in seven years or less and having the highest or second 
highest rating category of a nationally recognized rat ing agency. 

5. Securities cl an open-end management investment company or investment trust, 
subject to various conditions and inveslment options, 

6 Bonds or securrties issued under the authority of the municipality. 
7 The local government investment pool. 
8. Repurchase agreements with public depositories, wrth certain conditions. 

Additional restrictions may arise from local charters, ordinances, resolutions and 
grant resolutions. 

Investment of most trust funds is regulated by Chapter 881 of the Wisconsin 
Statutes. Investment of library trust funds is regulated by Chapter 112. Those 
sections give broad authority to use such funds to acquire various kinds of 
investments including stocks, bonds and debentures. 

Investments of the City are stated at amortized cost. 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position or 
Equity (Continued) 

2. Receivables and Payables 

Property Taxes. Property taxes are levied prior to the end of the calendar year and 
are due and collectible in the following year. Property taxes attach an enforceable 
lien as of January 1. Tax roll amounts that have been levied for other taxing 
jurisdictions are recorded in the City's custodial fund. Since Ctty property taxes are 
not considered available until January 1 of the year following the levy, they are 
recorded as deferred inflows in the funds budgeted therefore . 

Real property tax.es are payable in. full on or before January 31 or, alternatively, If 
over S 100, can be paid In two equal installments with the nrst installment payable on 
or before January 31 and the seCQnd installment payable on or before July 31 , 
Personal property taxes and special assessments. special charges (including 
delinquerit utility billings) and special taxes placed on the tax roll are payable In full 
an or before January 31 , All uncollected items on the cu rrent lax roll , except 
delinquent personal property taxes, are turned over to the Chippewa County 
Treasurer for collection in February Chlppewa County subsequently settles In full 
with the City in August of the same year, including settlement for uncollected 
delinquent special assessments and special charges , (The County has the option to 
settle in full for delinquent special assessments and special charges or ta remit them 
ta the City as collections are received.) Delinquent personal property taxes are 
retained by the City far collection, A portion of the general fund balance is considered 
nonspendable for the City's investment in delinquent taxes 

Special Assessments. Assessments against property owners for public 
Improvements are generally not subject to full settlement in the year levied. 
Unavailable special assessments are placed on tax rolls on an installment basis. 
Revenue from special assessments recorded in governmental funds is recognized as 
collections are made or as current installments are placed on tax rolls. (Installments 
placed on the 2020 tax roll are recognized as revenue in 2021 .) Special 
assessments recorded in proprietary funds are recorded as revenue at the time the 
assessments are subject to collection procedures. 

Accounts Receivable. Accounts receivable for ambulance service provided are 
offset by an allowance for uncollectibles, All other accounts receivable are 
considered to be collectible in full. 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position or 
Equity (Continued) 

2. Receivables and Payables (Continued) 

Loans Receivable. The City has received federal and state grant funds for 
economic development and housing rehabilitation loan programs to various 
businesses and indlvlduals. The Crty records a loan receivable when the loan has 
been made and funds have been disbursed. The amounts recorded as economic 
development and housing rehabl lltatlon loans receivable have not been reduced by 
an allowance for unc:olleclible acc:oun1s. It is the City's policy in the fund statements 
to record deferred inflows of resources for the net amount of the receivable balance 
in the fund financing the loan. As loans are repa id, revenue is recognized. When new 
loans are made from the repayments, expenditures are recorded . Interest received 
from loan repayments is recognized as revenue when received in cash. Any unspenl 
loan /epayments at year end are presented as restricied fund balance in the fund 
financial statements 

lnterfund Balances. Activity between funds that are representative of 
tending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred 
to as either "due to/from other funds" (I.e. , the current portion ol lnterfund loans-) or 
"advances tollrom other funds" (I.e .. the nan-current portion of interfund loans). All 
other outstanding balances- t>etween funds ace reported as "due tolfrol)'I other funds" 
Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activtties and 
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statement as 
"internal balances". Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial 
statements, are offset by nonspendable fund balance in applicable governmental 
funds ta indfcate Iha! they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable 
available financial resources. 

3. Inventories and Prepaid Items 

All inventories are valued at cost using the first- in/first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories 
of governmental funds, if material, are recorded as expenditures when consumed 
rather than when purchased. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods 
and are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial 
statements. 

4. Restricted Assets 

Mandatory segregations of assets are presented as restricted assets Such 
segregations are required by bond agreements and other external parties Current 
liabilities payable from these restricted assets are so classified . 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31 , 2020 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position or 
Equity (Continued) 

5. Capital Assets 

Government-Wide Statements. Capital assets, which include pr_operty, plant, 
equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads , bridges, sidewalks and similar 
items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities 
columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by 
the City as assets with initial, individual costs as shown below and an esllmated 
useful life of two years or greater. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or 
estimated historical cost ii purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are 
recorded at estimated acquisition value at the date of donation. The costs of normal 
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend assets lives are not caprta!lzed. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are 
constructed. 

Capitalization thresholds (the dollar valued above which asset acquisitions are added 
to the capital asset accounts), depreciation methods, and estimated useful lives of 
capital assets reported in the government-wide statements are as follows: 

Capitalization Depreciation Estimated 
Threshold Method Useful Lif_g 

Land $5,000 N/A 
Buildings 5,000 Straight-line 20-50 Years 
Land Improvements 5,000 Straight-line 10-20 Years 
Equipment and Vehicles 5,000 Straight-line 3-10 Years 
Utility Systems 5,000 Straight-line 4-100 Years 
Infrastructure 5,000 Straight-line 20-BO Years 

Fund Financial Statements. In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in 
governmental fund operations are accounted for as cap ital outlay expenditures of the 
governmental fund upon acquisition Capital assets used in proprietary fund 
operations are accounted for in the same manner as in the government-wide 
statements. 

6. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

The City reports decreases in net position or fund equity that relate to future periods 
as deferred outflows of resources in a separate section of its government-wide and 
proprietary funds statements of net position or governmental fund balance sheet. 
The City reports deferred outflows of resources for pension and OPEB related items. 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position or 
Equity (Continued) 

6. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (Continued) 

The City's govem1t1ental activities and governmental fund financial statements report 
a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial 
statement element reflects an increase in net position or fund equity that applies to a 
future period . The City will not recognize the related revenue until a future event 
occurs, The City has two types of items which occur related to revenue recogn~ion. 
The first occurs because property tax receivables are recorded In the current year. 
but the revenue wfll be recorded in the subsequent year. The second type of 
deferred Inflow of resources occurs because governmental fund revenues are not 
recognfzed until available (collected not later than 60 days after the end of the City's 
year) under the modified accrual basis of accounting . The Ctty reports deferred 
inflows of resources for pension and OPES related items. 

7. Compensated Absences 

It is the City's policy to perrntt employees to accumulate paid leave benefrts. 
Liabilities ror ac"cumulated employee leave benefrts are not accrued in the Ctty's 
governmental fund financial statements bu1 are recorded as expenditures when paid. 
Such rJabilitles are accn.,ed in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial 
statements when earned. The Ctty's policies and estimated liabilrties at year end are 
further discussed in Note 4.8. 

8. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) - Single Employer Plan 

Under the provisions of various employee and union contracts the City provides a 
retirement program for certain employees which includes certain health insurance 
benefrts . The liability is actuarially determined. 

9. Wisconsin Retirement System Pension Plan Benefits 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liabiltty (asset), deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension 
expense, information about the fiduciary net posttion of the Wisconsin Retirement 
System (WRS) and additions to/deductions from WRS' fiduciary net position have 
been delerrnlned on the same basis as they are reported by WRS. For this purpose, 
benefit payments (including refunds of· employee contributions) are recognl~ed when 
due and payable in accordance with the benefrt terms. Investments are reported at 
fair value. 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position or 
Equity (Continued) 

10. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) - Multiple Employer Plan 

The fiduciary net position of the Local Retiree Life Insurance Fund (LRLIF) has been 
determined using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. This includes for purposes of measuring the net OPEB 
liability, deferred outflows of resources and the deferred inflows of resources related 
to OPEB, OPEB expense and information about the fiduciary net position of the 
LRLIF and additions to/deductions from LRLIF's fiduciary net position have been 
determined on the same basis as they are reported by LRLIF. For th is purpose, 
benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the 
benefit terms. 

11 . Long-Term Obligations/Conduit Debt 

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities 
in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities or proprietary fund 
type statement of net position. In the governmental fund financial statements, the 
face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums 
received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts 
on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or 
not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service 
expenditures. 

The City has approved the issuance of industrial revenue bonds (IRB's) for the 
benefit of private business enterprises. IRB's are secured by mortgages or revenue 
agreements on the associated projects, and do not constitute indebtedness of the 
City Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying 
financial statements, Prior year IRB's outstanding were paid in full during the current 
year, resutting in no outstanding balance at the end of the year. 

12. Equity Classifications 

Fund equity, representing the difference between assets and deferred outflows of 
resources, less liab ilities and deferred inflows of resources , is classified as fo llows in 
the City's financial statements: 

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Statements. Fund equity is classified as 
net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements and is 
displayed in three components Net investment in capital assets, wh ich is net 
position invested in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the 
outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or 
improvement for those assets Net position is reported as restricted when there are 
limitations imposed on their use through external restrictions imposed by creditors, 
granters or laws or regulations of other governments. All other net position is 
displayed as unrestricted. 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position or 
Equity (Continued) 

12. Equity Classifications (Continued) 

Fund Financial Statements. In the fund financial statements, governmental funds 
report components of fund balance to provide information about fund balance 
availability for appropriation. Nonspendable fund balance represents amounts that 
are inherently nonspendable or assets that are legally or contractually required to be 
maintained intact. Restricted fund balance represents amounts available for 
appropriation but intended for a specific use and is legally restricted by outside 
parties , Committed fund balance represents constraints on spending that the 
government imposes upon itself by high-level formal action prior to the close of the 
fiscal period. Assigned fund balance represents resources intended for spending for 
a purpose set by the government body itse~ or by some person or body delegated to 
exercise such authority in accordance with policy established by the Council. 
Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the City's general fund and 
includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications The City 
has established a policy that the general fund minimum unassigned fund balance 
should be between 15 and 25 percent of general fund expenditures 

Committed fund balance is required to be established, modified, or rescinded by 
resolution of the City Council prior to each year end. Based on resolution of the City 
Council, the Finance Manager has the authority to establlsh or modify assigned fund 
balance. When restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available for expenditure, 
it is the City's practice to first use restricted fund balance. When committed, 
assigned, and unassigned fund balance is available for expenditure, it is the City's 
practice to use committed , assigned and finally unassigned fund balance, 

NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

The following schedule summarizes funds wiith deficit balances at December 31, 2020. The 
schedule identifies how these deficits will be eliminated . 

Fund 

City Wide Donation 
TIO #8 
TIO #15 

Deficit 
Amounl 

$ 737,922 
21,774 
10,074 

Recovery 
Plan 

Future donations collected 
Future tax increment collections 
Future tax increment collections 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

A. Deposits and Investments 

The City·s cash and investments balances at December 31, 2020 are shown in the 
financial statements as follows : 

Governmental Funds 
Proprietary Funds 
Fiduciary Funds 

$ 34,914,723 
1B,5B1,013 
2,536,31B 

$ 56,032,054 

The above cash and investments balances consisted of the following: 

Deposits in Financial Institutions 
Deposits in Local Government Investment Pool 
Petty Cash 

Deposits at Financial Institutions 

$ 1,755,567 
54,275,132 

1,355 

$ 56,032.054 

The City's balances at individual financial instttutions were subject to coverage under 
federal depository insurance, a bank deposrt guaranty bond and amounts appropriated 
by Sections 20.144(1 )(a) and 34,D8 of the Wisconsin Statutes (State Guarantee Fund) 
Federal depository insurance provides for coverage of up to $250,000 for time and 
savings deposits and up to an addrtional $250,000 for demand accounts. In addition, 
funds held for others (such as trust funds) are subject to coverage under the name of the 
party for whom the funds are held Coverage has also been provided to the City by a 
financial institution in the fomn of a bank deposit guarantee bond, Coverage under the 
State Guarantee Fund may not exceed $400,000 above the amount of coverage under 
federal depository insurance at any institution and is limited by the availabilrty of the 
appropriations authorized therein (Due to the relatively small size of the State 
Guarantee Fund in relation to the total coverage, total recovery of losses may not be 
available.) Also , Section 34 07 of the Wisconsin Statutes authorizes the City to 
collateralize its deposits that exceed the amount of coverage provided by federal 
depository insurance and the State Guarantee Fund. 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of bank fai lure, the Crty's deposrts may 
not be returned. At December 31, 2020, the Ctty's deposits were not exposed to 
custodial credit risk. 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

A. Deposits and Investments [Continued) 

Investments 

The City's investments at December 31, 2020 consisted of deposits in external 
investment pools as described below: 

Deposits in State Local Government Pooled-Investment Fund. The State of 
Wisconsin offers a Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) to local government 
untts to enable them to voluntarily invest idle funds in State Investment Fund, Local 
funds are pooled wrth state funds and invested by the State Investment Board. There 
is no minimum or maximum amount that can be invested by a local governmental 
unit. Interest is earned on a daily basis and wrthdrawals are generally available on 
the day of request. Deposits in the LGIP are not covered by federal depository 
insurance but are subject to coverage under the State Guarantee Fund. Also, the 
State of Wiscons in Investment Board has obtained a surety bond to protect deposits 
in the LGIP against defaults in principal payments on the LGIP's investments 
(subject to certain limitations). The average monthly weighted average maturity of 
the State Investment Fund's investments for 2020 was 3D days. 

Credit risk for investments is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an 
investment will not futtill tts obligation to the holder of the investment. The Crty's policy is 
to invest rts funds in accordance wrth provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes previously 
discussed in Note 1.D. 1. 

The Ctty's investments in LGIP are recorded at amortized cost. 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

B. Receivables 

Other accounts receivable at December 31, 2020 are further detailed as follows: 

Community Development Block Grant Loans Receivable 
The Crty has participated In the Small Chies Communhy Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) program, part of which was used to finance housing rehabilitation as specified 
within the contracts signed with the Wisconsin Department of Development. 

At December 31, 2020 the City had outstanding 23 installment loans and land contracts 
under the CDBG program totaling $423,887 These loans are being repaid to the Ctty 
under terms established through the program. Receivables have been recorded in the 
special revenue fund in the amount of the outstanding balances of these loans and are 
equally offset by a deferred inflow recorded therein . Revenue is recognized in the 
special revenue fund as collections are received on these loans. 

The City also had 142 mortgage loans outstanding at December 31 , 2020 totaling 
$1,704,322. These notes become due and payable in the event that the maker -

a. no longer continues to occupy the premises securing this note as a full time 
residence, or 

b. transfers any legal or equitable interest in the mortgaged premises to anyone for any 
reason. 

These loans are recorded as long-term receivables and deferred inflows in the special 
revenue fund , Collections on these loans are recognized as revenue in the special 
revenue fund at the time of their receipt, 

Proceeds from the collection of the above loans are restricted for financing similar 
rehabilrtation projects. 

Redevelopment Authority Loans Receivable 
The City established the Redevelopment Authority of the City of Chippewa Falls in 1995 
In conjunC1ion with its creation, the City contributed $2.98,000 to the Redevelopment 
Authority from rts Tax Incremental District No. 4 Fund, $300,000 was contributed in 1997 
and $400 ,000 was contributed in 2003 , to be used lo finance economic development 
loans. The fo llowing loans we,e outstanding at December 31, 2020: 

Shoe Factory Holdings, L.L.C. On June 6 , 1995 the Crty loaned Shoe Factory 
Holdings L.L.C, $198,000 for the development of the building located at 36 West River 
Street known as the Chippewa Shoe Building. The loan is deferred for thirty years at 0% 
interest wrth the developer having the right to prepay the loan at any time. The loan 
becomes due and payable if the property is sold or transferred. At December 31 , 2020 
the outstanding loan balance equaled the original loan of $198,000. 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31 , 2020 

NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

B. Receivables (Continued) 

Redevelopment Authority Loans Receivable (Continued) 
Cobban Block, LLC. On April 13, 2004 the City agreed to loan Cobban Block, LLC . 
$475,000 to construct a building at 201 North Bridge Street to be used as its primary 
bus1ness locallon. The City and Cobban Block, LLC tiad two separate loan agreements 
and promissory notes related to this project. The firs1 note Is for S40(),000 and the 
second is for $75,000 The $400,000 loan has a term of fifteen years and the $75,000 
loan has a term of twenty years . Both loans bear an interest rate of 5 0% In 2017, the 
loans were consolidated and lhe outstanding roan balance at December 31 , 2020 was 
$239,741. A subsequent amendment to the original agreement(s) deferred interest on 
the loans until a later date. The related interest receivable balance at December 31, 
2020 was $53,345, 

CABCAR, LLC. On January 31, 2007 the City agreed to loan CABCAR, LLC $48,000 to 
purchase a building at 33 Pine Street. The term of the loan is for twenty years and the 
loan bears an interest rate of 6,0%, which is payable monthly, The loan was paid in full 
during the current year, resulting in no outstanding loan balance as of December 31 , 
2020. 

These loans are to be repaid to the City under terms established by the above loan 
agreements Receivables have been recorded in the redevelopment authority revolving 
loan special revenue fund in the amount of the outstanding balances of these loans and 
are equally offset by deferred inflows recorded in these funds , Revenue is recognized in 
the special revenue fund as collections are received on these loans. 

Short Elliott Hendrickson (S.E.H.). As part of a development agreement entered into 
by the City on December 18, 2012, the City and Authority loaned Short Elliott 
Hendrickson (S.E.H.) $2,627,000 and $900,000, respectively, for the development of 
land in TIO #12 . Both loans are interest free and mature 20 years from the date of the 
agreement. At December 31 , 2020, the outstanding balance of these loans totaled 
$1,773,224 and $607,500, respectively. 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED} 

C. Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2020 was as follows : 

Governmental Activities 

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated: 
Land 
Construction Work in Progress 

Total Capital Assets Not 
Being Depreciated 

Capital Assets Being Depreciated: 
Buildings 
Land Improvements 
Equipment a11d Vehicles 
lnfrastruclure 

Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated 

Total Capital Assels 

Accumulated Depreciation: 
Buildings 
Land Improvements 
Equipment and Vehicles 
Infrastructure 

Total Accumulated Depreciation 

Net Capital Assets -

Beginning 

Balance 

2,910,620 
4,297,239 

7,207,859 

15,839,945 
6 ,596 ,181 
8,147,296 

47,624,138 

78,207,560 

85 ,415 ,419 

4,389,022 
2,454,156 
4,605,141 

18,571,579 
30,019,898 

Increases Decreases 

523,351 4,424,990 

523,351 4,424,990 

161,279 
6 ,401,745 

391,352 232.495 
2,076 ,999 462,330 

9,031,375 694,825 

9 ,554,726 5,119,815 

329,145 
352,209 
453,0BB 189,033 
891,283 413,018 

2,025,725 602 ,051 

Ending 
Balance 

2,910,620 
395 ,600 

3,306,220 

16,001,224 
12,997,926 
8,306,153 

49,238,807 

86,544,110 

89 ,850,330 

4,718,167 
2,806,365 
4,869,196 

19 ,049,844 
31 ,443 ,572 

Governmenlal Activities ~1 7,529,001 4,517,764 S 58,406,758 

Depreciation was charged to governmental functions as follows: 

General Govemmenl 
Public Safety 
Public Works 
Culture, Recreation and Education 
Conservation and Development 
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377,453 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED} 

C. Capital Assets (Continued) 

Business-Type Activities 
Beginning 
Balance 

Water Utility: 
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated: 

Land and Land Rights 
Nonutility Property 

Construclion Work in Progress 
Total Capital Assets Not Being 

Depreciated 

Capital Assets Being Depreciated: 
Source of Supply 
Pumping Plant 
Water Treatment 
Transmission and Distribution 
Administration and General Assets 

Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated 

Total Capital Assets 

Less Accumulated Depreciation 
Net Capital Assels. Waler Uti lity 

Wastewater Utility: 
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated: 

Land and land Rights 
Construction Work in Progress 

Total Capilal Ass ets Not Being 
Depreciated 

Capital Assets Being Depreciated: 
Collection System 
Sludge Disposa l Operations 
Treatment and Disposal Plant 
Ad"1lnis.1Jadof1 a.ml GcnoraJ A,ne:bi 

Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated 

Total Capital Assets 
Less Accumulated Depreciation 
Net Capital Assets . Wastewa ter Utility 

135,570 
2,916 

~ 

501,276 

531,676 
2,287,274 
4,642,411 

17,630 ,941 
979,422 

26,071,724 

26,573 ,000 
10,290.326 
l62&2,672 

177 ,391 
600 

177,991 

12,070,654 
1.0B4 ,B43 

18,821 ,380 

~ 

33,657,984 

33,835,975 
13,722.932 

~ 
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Increases 

206,470 

206,470 

2,123 
5,000 

531,236 
639,607 
146,690 

1,324,656 

1,531 ,126 
713.700 
817,426 

150 

,so 

536,561 
16,7B1 
47714 

187,817 

7BB,873 

789 ,023 
B26,975 
(37,952) 

Decreases 

~ 

569,260 

30,725 
107,183 

~ 

~ 

717,623 
1<&.383 
5S9,2&D 

750 

750 

15,510 

12,992 
23,645 

52,147 

52,897 
52,147 

750 

Ending 
Balance 

135,570 
2,916 

138,486 

533,799 
2,292,274 
5,142,922 

18,163,365 
1,115,657 

27,248,017 

27 ,386,503 
!USS.665 
1u,o,e3e 

177,391 

177,391 

12,591,705 
1,1 01,624 

18.856.102 
1,845,279 

34,394,710 

34 ,572,101 
14,497,760 
20,074,341 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

C. Capital Assets (Continued) 

Business-Type Activities (Continued) 
Beginning 
Balance 

Storm Water Utility: 
Capital Assets Being Depreciated: 

Po1Her Operated Equipment 
Computer Equipment 
Storm Sewer Collection System 
Storm Ponds 

Total Capital Assets 
Less Accumulated Depreciation 
Net Capital Assets - Storm Water Utility 

981 ,477 
44,295 

10,257,6B9 
11J_50 

11.l9•.111 
3i:!:B7~966 
7,806,725 

~ 

6 ,596 

415,333 

421,929 
23~l28 
188.601 

Net Capital Assets - Business-Type 
Activities ~ $ 969,075 

~ 

12,475 

12,475 
12,475 

570.!.010 

Ending 
Balance 

9B8,073 
44,295 

10,660,547 
1U50 

11 ,71>',165 
3,607,839 
8,096.326 

44,701,505 

Depreciation was charged to business-type activ~ies as follows: 

Water 
Wastewater 

Storm Water 

713,700 

B26,975 

232,328 
1,773,003 

D. lnterfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers 

The composition of interfund balances as of December 31, 2020 were as fo llows: 

Due to/from Other Funds 

Governmental Activity: 
General Fund 
TID #14 Capital Projects Fund 
Other Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Total Governmental Activity 
Business-Type Activity: 

Water Fund 
Wastewater Fund 
Storm Water Fund 

Total Business-Type Activity 
Total 
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$ 

Rece~ Payable 

702,150 $ 567,882 
277,289 

1,118,421 1,089,473 
1,820,571 1,934,644 

636,614 752,582 
1,214,462 720,046 

283,813 548 188 
2.134.889 2,020.816 
3,955,460 ~ - 3.9~A60 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

D. lnterfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers (Continued) 

Advances from/to Other Funds 

Receivable 
Governmental Activity: 

General Fund $ 769,466 $ 
Debt Service Fund 
Other Nonmajar Governmental Funds 

Total Governmental Activity 769 ,466 
Business-Type Activity: 

Water Fund 777,699 
Total s 1,547,165 s 

Payable 

777,699 
769.466 

1,547. 165 

1,547, 165 

Long-term interfund advances were recorded from the City's general fund to ijs Tax 
Incremental District #8 and Tax Incremental District #15 funds at December 31, 2020 in 
the amounts of $21,774, and $10,074, respectively, to finance the cash overdrafts and 
fund deficits in the Tl D funds at that date. It is anticipated that these advances will be 
redwood as tax incremental revenues become available in the TIO funds. The City also 
recorded an interfund advance rrom the general fund to the City-wide donation fun d in 
the amount of $737,618 to finance a cash overdraft/fund deficit. It is anticipated that this 
advance will be reduced as donations are received In this fund. 

A long-term advance was recorded from the City's Water Utilny to its Debt Service Fund 
at December 31 , 2020 in the amount of $777,699_ This includes the innial advance of 
$750,000 plus accrued interest of $27,699. This advance, made during 2004, was used 
to finance a portion of the City's payoff of its Wisconsin Retirement System's prior 
service liabilny. The Cny has a repayment schedule for this advance that has a stated 
interest rate of 4 0%. The term of the repayment schedule is twenty-five years with the 
first twenty years being interest only, The final scheduled payment on the advance is 
January 30, 2030. 

lnterfund balances that are owed within the governmental activities and business-type 
activities are eliminated in the statement of net position , 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31 , 2020 

NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

D. lnterfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers (Continued) 

lnterfund Transfers 
The following is a schedule of inlerfund transfers : 

Transfer In 
Governmental Activity: 

General Fund $ 394,960 $ 
Debi Service Fund 1,418,747 
Other Nonmajor Governmental Funds 500,581 

Total Governmental Activity 2,314,288 
Business-Type Activity : 

Water Fund 
Total s 2,314.288 s 

Transfer Out 

1,923,028 
1,923,028 

391 ,260 
2,31<l, 2BB 

The transfers from the TID funds and the general fund to the debt service fund were 
made to finance the funds' share of current year debt maturrties, The transfers between 
tax incremental districts were made from the donor TIDs to the recipient TIDs per plan 
amendments. The transfer from the water utility enterprise fund to the general fund 
consisted of the 2020 tax equivalent payable at year end_ 

E. Long-Term Obligations 

Changes in Long-Term Obligations 
Changes in long-term obligations of the City for the year ended December 31, 2020 
were as follows: 

Long-Term D• bt: 
Ga~rnmcnut Ac;D"Vion: 

Genera! Obligation Bonds 
General Obligaocn Nctu 
General Obligat1onNoteS· 

[)jrectBorrowmgs 
Subtotal 

Taxable Tax Increment Notes· 
Direct Borrowings 

Unamortized Debt Premum 
Unamortized Debt Discount 

Total Governmental Acbv1bes 

Business-Type Acllvities: 
Water System Revenue Bonds 
Sewer System Revenue Bonds 
General Obligat1on8onds 
Unamortized Debt Premium 
Unamortized Debt Discount 

Total 8 us1ni:ss-Type Activities 

Total Long-Term Debt 

Blllaf'JC.c.s 
111/20 

S 21,425,000 
700,000 

~.7lD 

Additions 

• 2,075,000 

~ ----r,m,ooo 

3,068,037 
377,885 11B,476 
(24,082) 
~~6 

984,502 
3,904,363 
3,995,000 715,000 

40,502 36 ,282 
16.,J)} 

019,.9.3-4 751 ,282 

S 34,830,504 s 2,944/58 
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Reductions 

S 1,925,000 
145,000 

.1.~W 
22~2 5112 

Balanc~s 
12/31'20 

S 21 ,575,000 
555,00• 

221.549 
21..:3:U.!4, 

AmounlS 
Due Within 

~ 

$ 1,935,000 
135,000 

146~907 
2,216,907 

198,095 2,869,942 207,387 
56,295 4-!0,066 59,786 

__ ..,1,=,3~73~) (19,709) (3,416) 
2,462,899 25 ,642,147 2,480,664 

221,16 1 763,341 
264,246 3,640,117 
250,000 4,460,000 

5,235 71,549 
t!!,C21 r,.,111 

nuoo ~ 
~02,699 _ S 34,572,563 

76,161 
269,993 
290,000 

636~ 154 

S 3,116,81!! 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

E. Long-Term Obligations (Continued) 

Changes in Long-Term Obligations (Continued) 

Balances 

1/1/20 AdditloMi Reductions 
Other Long -Tum Liabilit~s: 

GGwn,tnitnUI ~ tivffiH l 
Employee Vaca~on and 

S1ckleave Liab1l1ty • 1,058,882 ' 499,9B1 $ 544,595 
Landfill Postclosure care Costs 157.i10 fl,D!1 

~~ t:19.Slt s 552,555 

Business-Type Activitias: 

Am01mt& 

Balances Due Within 

12131/20 One Year 

$ 1,014,268 $ 285,764 
U9.20!il 7 ,900 

S 1,l5'J,-'n ~ 

Employee Vacation and 
S1c:k; Leave Liability 150,696 $ 124 ,937 $ 105 ,482 $ 170,151 $ 7•,166 

The City's estimated liabilities for employee vacation and sick leave are discussed in 
Note 4_8. The City's estimated liability for landfill closure costs is discussed in Note 4,E. 

Current Year Borrowing 
On August 11, 2020, the City issued General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, 
Series 2020B in the amount of $2,790,000. The bonds accrue interest at 2.00 percent 
and mature June 1, 2040. A portion of the proceeds ($750,000) was used lo current 
refund Series 2020A note. The refunding transaction resulted in an economic gain of 
S56,488 and future debt service savings of $2,170. The remaining portion of the 
proceeds ($2,040,000) were used to finance a new shop building, a new ambulance, 
and various street and utilrty improvements . 

Security and Default 
The outstanding long-term obligations of the City contain the following provisions: 

General Obligation Noles and Bonds 
These are general obligations of the Crty, and all the taxable property in the Ctty is 
subject to the levy of a tax to pay the principal and interest on the notes as they 
become due. The levy, under current tax law, may be levied wrthout limttalion to rate 
or amount. Principal and interest paid for the current year from the governmental 
activities was $2,841,004 and the tax levy was $1,721,873. There were also 
transfers from other funds of $1,418,747_ Principal and interest paid for the current 
year from the business-type activrties was $377,310 

State Trust Fund Loans 
The City's outstanding notes from direct borrowings related to governmental 
activrties of $2,869,942 are subject to a statutory provision that an event of late or 
nonpayment, a 1 % per month penalty will be charged and the payment will be 
collected through a reduction in payments from the state of Wisconsin. The notes are 
payable only from and secured by a pledge of the City_ Principal and interest paid for 
the current year and debt service total transfer in amounts were $336,535. 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

E. Long-Term Obligations (Continued) 

General Obligation Long-Term Debt 
Annual Requirements for Retirement. Individual general obligation long-term debt 
issued outstanding at December 31, 2020 and annual requirements for their retirement 
are as follows: 

General Obligabon Corporate Purpose 

Bo nds , 56 ,065,000, issued 6J12/12, 
due 611132. interest at 2 00%-3 00% 

Taxable General Obligation Refunding 
Bonds, $2,310,000, issued 6/12/12, 
due 4/1/24, interest at 0 45%-2 85% 

General Obligation Corporate Purpose 
Bonds , $4,405,000, issued 6/26/13 , 
due 6/1/33, interest at 2 00%-3 25% 

General Obllgabon Corporate Purpose 
Bonds, $3,970,000, issued 7/9/14, 
due 10/1/30, interest at 3 00%-3 75"/o 

General Obl1g.ation Co rporate Purpose 
Bonds, !6.460,000, issued 6126/16, 
due 4/1/36, interest at O 60%-2 751/o 

General Obhga1.lon Prom1ssorv Note 
5353,500, !&$Ued 7/19/16, due 
6/1'21, interest at 2 so~/2 

~ 

2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 

2026-2030 
2031-2032 

2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 

2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 

2026-2030 
2031-2033 

2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 

2026-2030 

2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 

2026-2030 
2031-2035 

2036 

2021 
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Print ipal 

' 345,000 
310,000 
300 000 
250,000 
350,000 

1,420,000 

~ 
3,475,000 

115,000 
130,000 
90,000 
85,000 

~ 

260,000 
265 ,000 
270,000 
275,000 
380,000 

1,160,000 
360,000 

2,970,000 

135,000 
195,000 
255,000 
240,000 
235,000 

1,050,000 
2,110,000 

335,000 
340,000 
345,000 
340,000 
345,000 

1,705,000 
1,890,000 

420,000 
5,720,000 

74,150 

Interest ~ 

• B6,945 $ 431,945 
B0 ,045 390,045 
73,846 373,846 
67,545 317,545 
62,045 412,045 

196,908 1,616,908 
17,248 517,248 

564,582 4,059,582 

9,560 124,560 
6,613 136,613 
3,705 93,705 
1,21 1 86,211 

21 ,089 441,089 

87,938 347,938 
B2,088 347,088 
75,462 345,462 
68,038 343,038 
60,476 440,476 

155,915 1,315,915 
22,996 382,996 

552,913 3,522,913 

69,000 204,000 
54,950 259,950 
59,100 314,100 
51 ,450 291,450 
44,250 279,250 

121,875 1,171,875 
410,625 2,520,625 

127,550 462,550 
120,850 460,850 
114,050 459,050 
107,150 447,150 
100,350 445,350 
398,850 2,103,850 
205,975 2,096,975 

5,775 425,775 
1,181,550 6,901,550 

1,901 76,051 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

E. Long-Term Obligations (Continued) 

General Obligation Long-Term Debt (Continued) 
Annual Requirements for Retirement (Continued) 

i:i,;.,,.,.,al ~ __ ._ .. _ .. -_.,_ Interest 

GO Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2017A 2021 220,000 s 93,853 
$3,580,000; issued 5/9/17, due 411'37, 2022 
interest at 3 00-3 50% (Street and Utility 2023 
Improvements and 2008A Current Refundini;i) 2024 

2025 
2026-2030 
2031 -2035 
2036-2037 

General Obligation P roml66ory Note 20178 2021 
5353,500, issued 6'1/17, due 2022 
6/1122, interest at 3 00"/c, 

GO Corporate Purpose Bonds , Senes2018A 
~.600,000, issued 10/3/16, due 
10/1/38, interest at 1 90-3 65% 

GO Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2019A 
$2,395,000, issued 6112/19, due 
611139, interest at 3 CKP1' 

GO Promissory Notes, Series 20198 
$700,000, issued 6112/19 , due 
1211/24, interest at 3 00% 

GO Prom1&sory Notes, Series 20208 
$2,790,000, issued 8/11/2020, due 
6/1/2040, interest at 2 OOo/o 

Total Gcn• ral Obligation Debt 

2021 
2022 

2023 
2024 
2025 

2026-2030 
2031-2035 
2036-2038 

2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 

2026-2030 
2031-2035 
2036-2039 

2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 

2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 

2026-2030 
2031-2035 
2036-2040 

(51) 

$ 

280,000 87,262 
215,000 78,862 
300,000 72,412 
205,000 63,412 
740,000 249,112 
845,000 110,512 
160.000 11.465 

3,~ "'6900 

72,757 4,431 
74,941 2,248 

147,696 6,679 

740,000 87,562 
155,000 n.022 
175,000 68,536 
170,000 64,422 
170,000 so,1n 
825,000 227,210 
465,000 130,080 
455,000 36,481 

~ 746.485 

35,000 69,900 
35,000 68,850 
35,000 67,800 
40,000 56,750 

120,000 65,550 
635,000 271 ,800 
750,000 171 ,150 
680,000 49,350 

2,330,000 831,150 

135,000 16,650 
135,000 12,600 
140,000 8,550 
145,000 4,350 
555,000 42,150 

40,000 72,850 
S0,000 55,000 

130,000 53,400 
130,000 50,800 
155,000 48,200 
790,000 194,200 
705,000 118,800 
760,000 44 ,700 

2,790,000 637,950 

26,81 1,648 S 26,811,648 

~ 

s 313,863 
367,262 
293,862 
372,412 
268 ,412 
969,112 
955,S12 
211,48S 

l.ll1.900 

n.1ea 
n .1as 

154,375 

827,562 
"22.7 ,022 
243,536 
234,422 
230,172 

1,052 ,210 
595,080 
491,481 

3,901,485 

104,900 
103,850 
102,800 
106,750 
185,550 
906,800 
921,150 
ns.350 

3,161,150 

151,650 
147,600 
148.550 
1'19,350 
597,150 

112,850 
135,000 
163,400 
180,800 
203,200 
964 ,200 
823,800 
804,700 

3,427, 850 

~848 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

E. Long-Term Obligations (Continued) 

General Obligation Debt Limitation. Section 67.03(1) of the Wisconsin Statutes 
provides that the amount of indebtedness of a municipality shall not exceed 5% of the 
equalized valuation of the taxable property in the municipality. At December 31, 2020, 
the City's debt limit amounted to $61 ,393,740 and indebtedness subject to the lim~ation 
totaled $26,811,848. 

Taxable Notes and Bonds 
Annual Requirements for Retirement, Individual taxable long-term debt issued 
outstanding at December 31 , 2020 and annual requirements for the retirement are as 
follows : 

~ Principal Inte rest ~ 

State Trust Fund Loan 53,400,000 2021 • 207,387 s 129,147 $ 336,53-4 
issued 12/6116, due 3115/31, 2022 216,720 119,815 335,535 
interest at 4 50% 2023 226,472 110,063 336,535 

2024 236 ,390 100,145 336,535 
2025 247 ,301 89,234 336,535 

2026-2030 1,413,630 269,043 1,682,673 
2031 322,042 14,492 336,534 

Tobi T:.:ablt> ~ ~l"ld 8onda $ 2,869,942 s 831,939 _$ __ 3,701_._881 

Water System Revenue Bonds 
The City authorized , by Resolution No. 2001-02 dated January 16, 2001, the issuance of 
$2,257,879 water system revenue bonds through the Stale of Wiscons in Safe Drinking 
water Loan Fund for the purpose of financing the construction of the nitrate removal 
plant that was completed in December 1999, The City's full faith and credit do not back 
the revenue bonds, which are backed instead by a pledge of utility revenues The 
revenue bonds bear interest at a rate of 2.97 percent and are being amortized over 
twenty years_ Principal and interest payments in 2020 were $146,979 and $2,183, 
respectively. These bonds were paid in full at December 31, 2020. 

On January 13, 2010, the City issued $1 ,271 ,956 water system revenue bonds through 
the State of Wisconsin Safe Drinking Water Loan Fund for the purpose of financing the 
water treatment plant project. In 2011, the City issued an additional $145,948 to finance 
the remaining costs of this project The City's full faith and credit do not back the revenue 
bonds, which are backed instead by a pledge of utility revenues. The revenue bonds 
bear an interest or 2.668 percent and are being amortized over twenty years The City 
paid principal and Interest of $74.1B2 and $23,309, respectively, during 2020. 

The bonds are payable from a pledge of revenues of the water utility system Principal 
and interest paid for the current year and total customer net revenues were $244,699 
and $663,444. 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

E. Long-Term Obligations (Continued) 

Water System Revenue Bonds (Continued) 
The outstanding balance on the bonds at December 31, 2020 and future requirements 
for their retirement at that date were as follows: 

~ Princieal Interest Total 

Water System Revenue Bonds, 2021 $ 76,161 $ 19,350 $ 95,511 
dated 1113110, due 2029, 2022 78,193 17,291 95,484 
interest at 2.668% 2023 B0,279 15,177 95,456 

2024 82,421 13,006 95,427 
2025 84,620 10,778 95 ,398 

2026-2029 361,667 19,617 381 ,264 
Total Water System Revenue Bonds $ 763 ,341 $ 95,219 ~560 

The revenue bonds may not be prepaid without the consent of the State. Consent may 
be withheld by the State at the State's sole discretion. 

According to the resolution authorizing the issuance of the water system revenue bonds, 
the water utility is to set aside gross revenues in separate and special funds as follows: 

1) Operation and Maintenance Fund 
2) Debt Service Fund 
3) Depreciation Fund 
4) Surplus Fund 

Special requirements pertaining to the establishment, use and balances required in the 
above funds are detailed in the authorizing resolution. Balances as of December 31, 
2020 in the debt service fund and the depreciation fund were $101,266 and $5,487,342, 
respectively 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

E. Long-Term Obligations (Continued) 

Sewer System Revenue Bonds 
On April 27, 2011, the City issued $2,947,737 sewerage system revenue bonds under 
the State of Wisconsin Clean Water Fund to finance multiple projects , including the 
wastewater treatment plant project and the River/Bay Street lift station project, In 2012, 
the City issued an additional $184,363 to finance the remaining costs. The City's full faith 
and credit do not back the revenue bonds. wh ich are backed Instead by a pledge of 
ulllity revenue$ The revenue bonds bear an Interest of 2.400 percent and are being 
amortized over 20 years, Principal and Interest payments in 2020 were S160,047 and 
$45,785, respectively. 

On December 23, 2015, the City issued $2,461,700 sewerage system revenue bonds 
under the State or 11\/isconsin Clean Water Fund to finance multiple wastewater utfl lty 
projects .. In 2015. SS0,000 of this available funding was disbursed to the City, in 2016 an 
additional $2,007,092 was,dlsbursed, and in 2017 a final disbursement of $156 ,924 was 
made. The City's full faith and credit do not back the revenue bonds, which are backed 
instead by a pledge of utility revenues The revenue bonds bear an interest of 1,829 
percent and are being amortized over twenty years with final maturity on May 1, 2035. In 
2020, principal and interest payments were $104,199 and $34,102, respectively 

The bonds are payable from a pledge of revenues of the sewer utility system, Principal 
and interest paid for the current year and total customer ne1 revenues were S344,134 
and $677,520, respectively. 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

E. Long-Term Obligations (Continued) 

Sewer System Revenue Bonds (Continued) 
The outstanding balances on the bonds at December 31, 2020 and future requirements 
for their retiremenl at that date were as follows: 

~ Princieal Interest ~ 
Sewer System Revenue Bonds, 2021 s 163,888 s 41,898 s 205,786 

originally dated 4127111, project 2022 167,822 37,918 205,740 
closeout 9126112, due 2030, 2023 171,849 33,842 205,691 
interest at 2 400% 2024 175,974 29,668 205,642 

2025 180,197 25,394 205,591 
2026-2030 967,969 59,178 1,027,147 

1,827,699 227,898 2,055,597 

Sewer System Revenue Bonds 2021 106,105 32,179 138,284 
dated 12123/2015, Due 51112035 2022 108,046 30,220 138,266 
interest at 1.829% 2023 110,022 28,226 138,248 

2024 112,034 26,195 138,229 
2025 114,083 24,128 138,211 

2026 - 2030 602,489 B8,272 690,761 
2031 - 2035 659,639 30,600 690,239 

1,812.418 259,620 2,072 238 

To~ -Sewttt s~w,, R.ovranuc Sond.J. $ 3,640,117 $ 487,718 $ 4,127,835 

The revenue bonds may not be prepaid without the consent of the State Consent may 
be withheld by the State at the State's sole discretion. 

According to the resolution authorizing the issuance of the sewer system revenue bonds, 
the wastewater utility is to set aside gross revenues in separate and special funds as 
follows : 

1) Operation and Maintenance Fund 
2) Debt Service Fund 
3) Depreciation Fund 
4) Surplus Fund 

Special requirements pertaining to the estab lishment, use and balances required in the 
above funds are detailed in the authorizing resolution. Balances as of December 31 , 
2020 in the debt service fund and the depreciation fund were $190,027 and $5,683,916, 
respectively. 
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DECEMBER 31, 2020 

NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

F. Governmental Fund Balances 

The governmental fund balances reported on the fund financial statements at 
December 31, 2020 consisted of the following: 

MalJC1rfuncl1: 

Genvra1F1.IOCI 

De~nq11enl Taicns 

Advanc.utaOlherFunds 
PAC Ei;i1,n~ment 

SlrHLEquii,Pn<lln!Cilfryover 

SIIHI Equip,nenl Fund 
Polic11Dep,,rtm11nlCanyover 

Ft111 DeparvT\el'llCilrryovwr 

PoolSludy 
DitiProcess11,g 
floll'WM'Nt l,en..(;n 

Speoal ~Counnl . Nqgo!iinions 
?arb illnd R11crn.11on Carryovu 
Library Carryover 

saratyFwnd 
Jur1schclio~ITninsferPrc1111cts 

Unassigned 
CDBGFund 
DebtSeMCt Fund 
Tlll~~Jl)~•u 

NonmajarFund1: 
Spec,alRevol'IIUI Funds: 

&A,,,t" l~NI.Oillrct-jllwni 
ParkOunal,i:inFund 
Re~v,~prnent Aulhorly R1voWlng Fund 
Crty Wtd1 01>11at1cm Fund 
CrtyWtd11Cran1F1.1nd 

Room Tu Fund 
Ca,iitlLPro~~Funds: 

Spocml Ass.11rnent Fund 
P\Jb0c Worlu Canstru.i::llon Fund 
Ta:i:lncremontalD1stricLIM 
T;iixlm:r11mtntalO1stnct#'5 
Ta~ lncr11'T11nl:al0istric!#7 

r,.~i••-Drlmic•t 
Tuln.c:ram.nlal Dllilna#10 
Tax lni:remenllll Dtslnd:#11 
Tu lrn:ramanQI D1slnctf12 
TaXlrll:r11ment11ID1slrictf13 
Taxlncni1mont1ID1slnci:#15 

~ Non~p11ndabla ~ ~ ~ Um1ssign1d 

$ 22 1 12361 t 

327,463 

211,783 
130,309 

1,500 
729.463 
11<652' 

(737,922) 
113,780 
161762 

2751604 
1 492932 

28766 
7D1,00J 
220,351 

(21.774) 
63,623 

1994150 
2,942,259 

159,859 

.. 
17219 
3084 

769466 

CD7~1 

327.463 

211,783 
130,]D9 

729.463 

113760 

1492,932 
28,766 

701003 
220,351 

63,1123 

1,994,150 

2,942,259 
159,859 

1,50\\ 

239 125 

161,762 

2,751.604 

. ' 

e,ssJ 
118,000 

192.7i3 

'·"° 20,000 
750 

2 ,500 

2,500 
10.000 

25,000 
2,500 

28.635 
345,292 

20.562365 

(737,922) 

(21,774) 

~----- ----- ----- -----~ ~ 14,ng.m, ~~ S 3.153,991 S 760.203 ~ 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

G. Tax Incremental Districts 

The City has created several tax Incremental f,nancing districts (TIF districts or TIDs) in 
accordance with Section 66.1 105 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The purpose of that section 
is to allow a municipality to recover development and improvements costs in a 
designated area from the property taxes generated on the increased value of the 
property after creation of the district The tax on the increased value is called a tax 
increment. 

The City had ten tax incremental districts in existence during 2020. The resolution 
creating TID #4 was dated November 16, 1993. The resolution creating TID #5 was 
dated November 18, 1997. The resolution creating TID #7 was dated March 20 , 2001. 
The resolution creating TID #8 was dated July 16, 2002. At the creation of these 
districts, the statutes provided that no project costs could be expended later than seven 
years after the creation date of the district. The statutes further allowed the municipality 
to collect tax increments for sixteen years after the last prefect expenditure was made or 
until the net project cost of the district had been recovered, whichever occurred first. The 
state enacted several changes relat ing to tax incremental district for 2005 (wtth 
amending legislation in 2006) . One of these changes ex1ends the expenditure period for 
all current and future districts to five years prior to the termination of the district's 
unextended maximum life For those districts that had reached the end of its expenditure 
period prior to October 1, 2004, tt allows a municipality ta expend additional project costs 
Included in the project plan (subject to cenaln conditions). The resolution creating TID 
#10 was dated May 3, 2005. The resolution creallng TID #11 was dated September 2, 
2008, and the resolution creating TID #12 was dated May 1, 2012. The resolution 
creating TID #13 was dated April 7, 2015 The resolution creating TID #14 was dated 
July 28, 2015 and TID #15 creation resolution was dated July 17, 2018. 

The project plans, on file in the City administrative offices, details the proposed proJects, 
the estlmated years of construction or site acquisition and the estlmated costs of the 
individual project components. 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

G. Tax Incremental Districts (Continued) 

Project costs uncollected at the dissolution date are absorbed by the municipality. 

A summary of project costs and revenues of the individual districts from inception 
through December 31, 2020 is shown below: 
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The preceding summaries of transactions are reconcilable to the fund balances (deficits) 
in the TIDs at December 31 , 2020 as follows : 
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The deficits in the TIO #8 and TIO #15 funds at December 31, 2020 were partially 
financed with advances from the general fund . 
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DECEMBER 31, 2020 

NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

H. Short-Term Borrowing 

On June 23, 2020. lhe Ctty issued $840,000 General Obligation Promissory Note, Senes 
2020A, for the purpose of inlerim financing cert,!in capttal expendhures. The note 
accrued interest at 2.00% and was due March 1, 2021 The note was refunded with the 
issuance of debt Series 20208 on August 11, 2020. 

NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION 

A. Wisconsin Retirement System Pension Plan Benefits 

Plan Description. The WRS is a =I-sharing muttlple-employer defi11ed benefit pension 
plan, WRS benefits and olher plan provisions are established by Ctlapter 40 or the 
Wisconsin Siatutes. Benefit terms may only be modiffed by the legislature. The 
retirement system is administered by the Wisconsin Department al Employee Trust 
Funds (ETF). The system provides coverage to all eligible State of Wisconsin, local 
government and other public employees. All employees, initially employed by a 
partic:lpallng WRS employer on or after July 1, 2011, and expected to work at least 1.200 
hours a year and expected to be employed for at least one year from employee·s date of 
hire are eligible to participate in the WRS. ETF issues a standalone Annual 
Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR), which can be found at 
http:1/etf.wi .gov/publications/cafr.htm. 

Vesting, For employees beginning participation on or after January 1, 1990, and no 
longer actively employed on or after April 24, 1998, credttable service in each of five 
years Is requ ired for elfgibllijy for a rellremenl annuity. Participants employed prlor to 
1990 and on or after April 24, 1998, and prior 10 July 1, 2011, are ifl1medfalely vested. 
Participants who lnilially became WRS eligible on or after July 1, 2011 . musl have frve 
years of creditable service to be vested. 

Benefits Provided, Employees who retire at or after age 65 (54 for protective 
occupations and 62 for elected officials and executive service retirement plan 
participants, if h·ired on or before 12/31/2016) are entitled to a relirement benent based 
on a formula factor, their final average earnings, and credttable service. 

FTnaJ average earnings is the average of the participant's three highest annual earnings 
pe(,ods. Credttable service includes current service and prior service for which a 
participant received earnings and made contributions as required. Credttable service 
also includes credttable military service. The retirement benefrt will be calculated as a 
money purchase benefit based on the employee's contributions plus malching 
employer's contribut ions, with interest, if that beneftt is higher tha(l lhe formula benefrt. 

Vested participants may retire at or after age 55 (50 for protective occupations) and 
receive an actuarially-reduced benefit. Participants terminating covered employment 
prior to eligibility for an an nutty may either receive employee-required contributions plus 
ln1erest as a separation benefit or leave contributions on deposit and defer application 
until eligible to receive a retirement beneftt. 
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NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

A . Wisconsin Retirement System Pension Plan Benefits (Continued) 

The WRS also provides death and disability benefrts for employees. 

Contributions. Requ ired contributions are determined by an annual actuarial valuation in 
accordance w ith Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The employee required 
contribution is one-half of the actuarially determined contribution rate for general 
category employees, including teachers, and Executives and Elected Officials. Required 
contributions for protect ive employees· are the same rate as general employees. 
Employers are required to contribute the rema inder of the aetuartally deIerm1ned 
contribution rate. The employer may not pay the employee required contribution unless 
provided for by an existing co llective bargaining agreement 

During the fisca l reporting period January 1, 2020 through December 31 , 2020, the WRS 
recognized $746,975 in contributions from the employer. 

Contribution rates for 2020 are: 

General (including Teachers) 
Executives and Elected Officials 
Protective with Social Security 
Protective without Social Security 

Employee Employer 

6 75% 6 75% 
6 75% 6 75% 
6 75% 
675% 

11 99% 
1659% 

Post-Retirement Adjustments. The Employee ,rust Funds Board may periodically adjust 
annuity payments from lhe ret irement system based on annual investment performance 
in accordance wtth s 40 27, Wis . Stat. An increase (or decrease) in annuity payments 
may result when investment gains (losses), together with other actuarial experience 
factors, create a surplus (shortfall) in the reserves , as determined by the system's 
consulting actuary. Annuity increases are not based on cost of living or other similar 
factors. For Core annutties, decreases may be applied onty to previously granted 
increases. By law, Core annuities cannot be reduced to an amount below the original, 
guaranteed amount (the "floor") set at retirement. The Core and Variable annuity 
adjustments granted during recent years are as follows : 

Core Fund Variable Fund 

~ Adjustment(%) Adjustment(%) 

2010 (1 .3) 22,0 
2011 (1 2) 11 .0 
2012 (7.0) (7.0) 
2013 (9 6) 9_0 
2014 47 25 0 
2015 29 20 
2016 05 (5.0) 
2017 20 40 
2018 24 17 0 
2019 00 (100) 
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NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

A. Wisconsin Retirement System Pension Plan Benefits (Continued) 

Pens ion Assets/Liab ilities, Pension Expens e, and Deferred Outflows of Resources 
and Deferred Inflows o f Resources Related to Pensions 
Al December 31, 2020, the City re ported an assel or S:2,090,518 for its proportionate 
share of the net pension asset. The net pension asset was measured as of December 31 , 
2019, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension asset was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31 , 2018 rolled forward to 
December 31, 2019 The City's proportion of the net pension asset was based on the 
City's share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the contribut ions of all 
participating employers. At December 31, 2019, the City's proportion was O 06483321 
percent, which was an increase of 0,00209930 percent from tts proportion measured as 
of December 31, 2018. 

For the year ended December 31 , 2020, the City recognized pension expense of 
$811,692. Al December 31, 2020, the City reported deferred oulflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 
DescripUon of Resources of Resources 

Dllferena,s Between EJcpected and Actual 
Experience · $ 3,968,282 $ (1,985,858) 
Changes of Assumptions 162,906 
Net Difference Between Projected and 
Actual Earnings on Pension Plan 
Investments (4,273,763) 
Changes in Proportion and Differences 
Between City Contributions and 
Proportionate Share of Contributions 19,350 (4,547) 
City Contributions Subsequent to the 
Measurement Date 746,975 

Total s 4,897,513 - S--!6,264 ,168) 

$746,975 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from 
City contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as an addttion 
to the net pension asset in the year ended December 31 , 2021 . Other amounts reported 
as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
will be recognized in pens ion expense as fo llows: 

Year Ended December 31 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
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Pension 
Expense Amount 
S (627,109) 

(467,687) 
77,352 

(1,096,186) 
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NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

A. Wisconsin Retirement System Pension Plan Benefits (Continued) 

Pension Assets/Uabllitle"s. Pension Expense. and DeferTed Outflows of Resources 
and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 
Actuarial Assumptions The total pension liability in the December 31, 2018 actuarial 
valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods 
included in the measurement: 

Actuarial Valuation Date: 
Measurement Dale of Net Pension Liability (Asset), 
Actuarial Cost Method: 
Asset Valuation Method: 
Long-Term Expecled Rate of Return: 
Discount Rate: 
Inflation: 
Salary Increases: 
Mortality: 
Post-retirement Adjustments*· 

December 31, 201 B 
December 31 , 2019 
Entry Age 
Fair Value 
7.0% 
70% 
3.0% 
3 1 % to 8,6% including inflation 
Wisconsin 201 B Mortality Table 
1.9% 

"No post-fetirement adjustment is guaranteed Actual adjustments are based on recognized investment return , 
actuarial experience and other factors 1,9% is the assumed annual adjustment based on the investment return 
assumption and the post-retirement discount rate 

Actuarial assumptions are based upon an experience study conducted in 2018 that 
covered a three-year period from January 1, 2015 ta December 31, 2017. The Total 
Pension Liability for December 31, 2019 is based upon a roll-forward of the liability 
calculated from the December 31 , 2018 actuarial valuation. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan Investments was de-termined using 
a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future teal rates of 
retum (expecied returns, net of pension plan Investment expense and Inflation) are 
developed for each major asset class . These tange·s are combined to produce the long­
term expected rate or return by weighting the expected fulure real rates of relum by the 
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation, The target allocation 
and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are 
summarized in the table on the fallowing page: 
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NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

A. Wisconsin Retirement System Pension Plan Benefits (Continued) 

Pension Assets/Liabilities. Pension Expense. and Deferred Outflows of Resources 
and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 

Core Asset Allocation Variable Asset Allocation 
Long-Term Long-Term 

Expected Real Expected Real 
Asset Class Taraet Allocation Rate of Relurn Taraet Allocation Rate ofRebJrn 

Domestic Equities NIA N/A 70% ~ 
International Equities NIA NIA 30% 53% 
Global Equities 49% 51 % NIA N/A 
Fhted Income 24.5% 2.1% NIA NIA 
tnll.otion Son$111vo AsllelS 15.5% 1,2% NIA N/A 
Real Eslate 9% 3_5% N/A NIA 
P1ivate Equity/Debt 8% 76% NIA NIA 
Multi-Asset 4% 40% NIA NIA 

Totals 110% 100% 

Discount Rate. A single discount rate of 7.00% was used to measure the Total Pension 
Liability for the current and prior year. This single discounl rate is based on the expected 
rate of return on pension plan inves!menls of 7,00% and a munlcipal bond rate of 2.,75% 
(Source : Fixed-Income mun1cipal bonds with 20 years to maturity thal Include only 
federally tax-exempt municipal bonds as reported In Fideltty Index's •20-year Munlcipal 
GO AA lndeX" as of December 31 , 2019. In describing this Index, Fidefi!y notes that the 
Municipal Curves are constructed using option-adjusted analytics of a diverse population 
of over 10,000 tax-exempt securities.)_ Because of the unique structure of WRS, the 
7 .00¾ expected rate of return implies that a dividend of approximately 1.9% will always 
be paid. For purposes of the single discount rate, it was assumed that the dividend would 
always be paid. The projection of cash flows used to determine this single discount rate 
assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and 
that employer contributions will be made at rates equal ta the difference between 
actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on these 
assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to 
make all projected future benefit payments (including expected dividends) of current plan 
members. 

Sens,tlvlt.y of the City's Proportionate Share of the _Net Pension Llability (Asset) to 
Changes In the Discount Rate. The following presents the City's proportionate share of 
the net pension liability (asset) calculated us ing the discount rate of 7,00%, as well as 
what the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) would be if ij were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6,00%) or 
1-percentage-point higher (8.00%) than the current rate: 

City's Proportionate Share of the Net 

1% Decrease 
(600%) 

Current Discount 
Rate (7.00%) 

1% Increase 
(8.00%) 

Pension Liability(Assel) S 5,383,459 S (2,090,518) S (7,67B,176) 

(63) 



A
35

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

A. Wisconsin Retirement System Pension Plan Benefits (Continued) 

Pension Assets/Liabilities, Pension E.xpense. and Deferred Outflows or Resources 
and Deferred lnfloM of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position. Detailed information about the pension plan's 
fiduciary net position is available in separately issued financial statements available at 
http://etf.wi.gov/publicationslcafr.htm. 

B. Compensated Absences 

II is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate vacation, compensatory lime, 
and sick leave benefits, Vacation is granted to employees in varying amounts based on 
length of service and terms of employment , Employees earn one day of sick leave per 
month with a maximum accumulalion of ninety days. Upon retirement , an employee is 
entitled to a payment for 80 clays or a portion thereof, based on length of service, of 
unused sick leave, To be eligible for the maximum benefit, an employee must have 
worked 20 years for the City. 

Liabilities for accumulated vacation, compensatory lime and sick leave are not accrued 
in the City's governmental fund financial statements but are recorded as expenditures 
when paid, Such liabilities are accrued in the government-wide and proprietary fund 
financial statements when earned The estimated liabilities for unused vacation , 
compensatory time, and sick leave payable from governmental funds at December 31, 
2020 were $285,764, $11,600, and $716,904, respectively, The estimated liabilities for 
vacation and sick leave in the proprietary funds at that date were $70,166 and $99,985, 
respectively. 

C. Other Postemployment Benefit Plan 

The City reports its postemployment healthcare benefits in accordance with 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No 75, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting by Employers far Postemplayment Benefits Other than Pensions 
The City engaged an actuary to determine the City's liability, 

General Information About the OPEB Plan 
Single-Employer Plan Description_ All employees who retire through the Wisconsin 
Retirement System are eligible to participate in the retiree medical plan if they pay 100% 
of the retiree premium. Coverage may continue after 65 if the retiree pays 100% of the 
post-65 premium. The post-65 retiree premium is assumed to be entirely self-sustaining 
(i.e. not subsidized). 

(64) 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

C. Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (Continued) 

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms. At December 31, 2020, the following employees 
were covered by the benefit terms: 

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 
Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments 
Active plan members 

2 

112 
114 

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of Statement 
75. 

Total OPEB Liability 
The City's total OPEB liability of $1 ,213,162 was measured as of December 31 . 2020 

Actuarial Assumptions. The total OPEB liability in the December 31 , 2020 actuarial 
valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all 
periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Actuary Cost Method: 
Amortization Method: 
Discount Rate: 
Inflation: 
Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 

Municipal Bond Rate Source 
Retirement Age: 
Mortality: 

Entry Age Normal 
Level % of Salary 
212% 
2 50% 
8 0% initially, decreasing O 5% lo 4 5%, and 
level thereafter 
Bond Buyer 20-Bond GO Index 
Wisconsin 2018 Mortality Table 
SOA Pub-2010, using Scale MP-2020 

The discount rate was based on the 20-year tax-exempt general obligation municipal 
bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher 
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NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

C. Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (Continued) 

Change in the Total OPEB Liability 

Balance at December 31 , 2019 

Changes for the year: 
Service Cost 
Interest 
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience 
Changes of Assumptions or Other Input 
Benefit Payments 

Net Changes 

Balance at December 31, 2020 

Total OPEB 
Liability 

~ 

$ 1,043,519 

99,329 
36,857 

(181,732) 
239,871 
(24,682) 
169,643 

$ 1,213,162 

There were no changes in benefit terms or assumptions during the reporting period. The 
discount rate for the reporting period was 2.12% compared ta 3.26% in the prior period _ 

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate. The following 
presents the total OPEB liability of the City , as well as what the City's total OPEB liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower 
(1 12 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (3 12 percent) than the current discount rate: 

Total OPES Liability 

1% Decrease 
(1 , t2%) 

12131/20 S 1,319,728 

Current 
Discount Rate 

(2, 12%) 
S 1,21 3.162 

1% Increase 
(3,12'/o) 

S 1,113,303 

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates. 
The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total 
OPEB liabilrty would be if rt were ca lculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 
1-percentage-poJnt lower (7.0 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (9 0 percent) than 
the current heatthcare cost trend rates: 

Total OPES Liability 

1% Decrease 
(7.0% decreasing 

to 3.5%1 
12/31/20 $ 1,049,743 
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Healthcare Cost 
Trend Rates (8.0% 
decreasing to 4 5% ) 
S 1,213,162 

1 % Increase (9 0% 
decreasing to 

5.5%1 
S 1,410 ,698 
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NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

C. Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (Continued) 

OPES Expense and Deterred Outflows of Resources a.nd Deferre11 Inflows of 
Resources Related to OPEB 
For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Ctty recognized OPEB expense of $86,897. 
At December 31, 2020, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 

Description 

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience 
Changes of Assumptions or Other Input 

Total 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

$ 

274,048 
$ 274,048 _ 

Deferred Inflows of 
Resources 

$ (533,911 ) 
(73,142) 

$ __ £607,053) 

These amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Year Ended December 31 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 

Thereafter 

OPEB Expense 
Amount 

$ (49,290) 
(49,290) 
(49,290) 
(49 ,290) 
(49,290) 
(86 ,555) 

D. Other Postemployment Benefits - Multiple Employer Plan 

Pla_n Descriptfon The LRLI F is a multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan. LRLIF 
benefits and other plan provisions are established by Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin 
Statutes. The Wisconsin Department of Employee Trust Funds (ETF) and the Group 
Insurance Board have statutory authortty for program administration and oversight. The 
plan provides post-employment life insurance benefits for all eligible employees. 

Benefits Provided. The LRLIF plan provides fully paid up life insurance benefrts for post­
age 64 retired employees and pre•65 retirees who pay for their coverage. 

Contributions. The Group Insurance Board approves contribution rates annually , based 
on recommendations from the insurance carrier. Recommended rates are based on an 
annual valuation, taking into consideration an estimate of the present value of future 
benefits and the present value of future contributions. A portion of employer 
contributions made during a member's working lifetime funds a post-retirement benefit. 
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NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

D. Other Postemployment Benefits - Multiple Employer Plan (Continued) 

Employers are required ta pay the following contributions based an employee 
contributions far active members ta provide them with Basic Coverage after age 65. 
There are no employer contributions required far pre-age 65 annuitant coverage If a 
member retires prior ta age 65, they must continue paying the employee premiums until 
age 65 in order ta be eligible far the benefit after age 65. 

Contribution rates as of December 31 , 2020 are: 

Coverage Type 

50% Post Retirement Coverage 
25% Post Retirement Coverage 

Emplorer Contribution 

40% of employee contribution 
20% of employee contribution 

Employee contributions are based upon nine age bands through age 69 and an 
additional eight age bands far those age 70 and aver Participating employees must pay 
monthly contribution rates per $1,000 of coverage until the age of 65 (age 70 if active) 
The employee contribution rates in effect far the year ended December 31, 2019 are: 

Attained Age Basic 

Under 30 $ 0.05 
30-34 0 06 
35-39 0 07 
40-44 0.08 
45-49 0 12 
50-54 0 22 
55-59 0.39 
60-64 0.49 
65-69 0 57 

During the reporting period, the LRLIF recognized $2,104 in contributions from the City . 

OPEB Liabilities/Assets, OPEB Ex·pense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEBs 
At December 31 , 2020, the City reported a liability of $450 ,102 for its proportionate 
share of the net OPEB liabil ity The net OPEB liability was measured as of 
December 31 , 2019, and the total OPEB liabilrty used to calculate the net OPEB liability 
was detenmined by an actuarial va luation as of December 31 , 2018 and rolled forward to 
December 31, 2019. No material changes in assumptions or benefit terms occurred 
between the actuarial valuation date and the measurement dale , The City's proportion of 
the net OPEB liability was based an the City's share of contributions to the OPEB plan 
relative to the contributions of all participating employers. At December 31, 2019, the 
Crty's proportion was 0,105704 percent, which was an increase of 0,000795 percent 
from its proportion measured as of December 31, 2018 . 
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D. Other Postemployment Benefits - Multiple Employer Plan (Continued) 

OPES Liabilit ies/Assets, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources ·and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEBs (Continued) 
For the year ended December 31, 2020, the City recognized OPEB expense of $49,572 
At December 31, 2020, the Crty reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to OPESs from the following sources: 

Descri!!_tion 

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience 
Changes of Assumptions or Other Input 
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings 
on OPEB Investments 
Changes in Proportion and Differences Between City 
Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions 
Contributions SubseQuent ta the Measurement Date 

Total 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows of 

s 

s 

of Resources Resources 

166,047 

8,491 

9,425 
2.104 

186,067 s 

(20,164) 
(49,509) 

169~731 

$2,104 reported as deferred outflows of resources related ta OPES resulting from City 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction to 
the net OPEB liability in the year ended December 31, 2021 , Other amounts reported as 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEBs will 
be recognized in OPEB expense as follows : 

Year Ended December 31 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 

Thereafter 

OPEB Expense 
Amount 

$ 19,837 
19,837 
18,922 
17,979 
14,610 
23,105 

Actuarial Assumptions. The total OPES liability in the January 1, 2019 actuarial valuation 
was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included 
in the measurement: 

Actuarial Valuation Date: 
Measurement Date of Net OPEB Liability (Asset): 
Actuary Cost Method: 
20 Year Tax-Exempt Municipal Bond Yield: 
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return: 
Discount Rate: 
Salary Increases: 

Inflation 
Seniority/Merit 

Mortality: 

(69) 

January 1, 2019 
December 31, 2019 
Entry Age Normal 
2,74% 
425% 
2 87% 

3,00% 
01%-56% 
Wisconsin 2018 Mortality Table 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

D. Other Postemployment Benefits - Multiple Employer Plan (Continued) 

OPEB Liabilities/Assets, OPEB Ex-pense. and Dererred Outflows of Resources and 
.Deferred Inflows or Resources Related to OPEBs (Continued) 
Actuarial assumptions are based upon an experience study conducted in 2018 that 
covered a three-year period from January 1, 2015 to December 31 , 2017. The Total 
OPEB Liability for December 31, 2019 is based upon a roll-forward of the liability 
calctJlated from the January 1, 2019 actuarial valuation. 

Long-Term Expected Return on Plan Assets. The long-term expected rate of return Is 
determined by adding expected inltation to expected long-term real returns and renecting 
expected volatility and correlation . Investments for the LRLIF are held with Securian. the 
Insurance carrier . Interest is calculated and credtted to the LRLIF based on the rate or 
return for a segment of the Insurance carriers' general fund. specifically 10-year A· 
Bonds (as a proxy, and no1 lied to any specific lnvestmerits) The overall a.9gregaJe 
Interest rate is calculated using a tiered approach based on the year the funds were 
originally Invested and the rate of return lor that year. Investment interest Is credited 
based on the aggregate rate of return and assets are not adjusted to fa ir market value . 
Funhenmore, the insurance carrier guarantees the principal amounts of the reserves, 
Including all Interest previously <:(edited thereto 

Asset Class 
U.S. Credit Bonds 
U,S Lang Credit Bonds 
U,S Mortgages 

Inflation 

Index 
Barclays Credit 

Barclays Long Credit 
Barclays MBS 

Target 
Allocation 

45% 
5% 

50% 

Long-Term 
Expected 

Geometric Real 
Rate of Return 

2,12% 
2_90% 
1,53% 

2 20% 

The long-term expected rate of return decreased slightly from 5.00% In the prior year to 
4.25¾ in the current year, This change was primarily based on lhe target asset 
allocation and capttal market expectations The expected inflation rate also decreased 
slightly from 2.30% in lhe prior year t.o 2.20% In the C1Jrrent year. The long-term 
expected rate of return ls determined by adding expected Inflation to expected long-term 
real returns and reflecting expected volatility and correlallon. 

Single Discount Rate. A single discount rate of 2.87% was used to measure the Total 
OPES Liability for the current year, as opposed to a discount rate of 4.22% for the prior 
year. The slgnfficant Cl\ange In lhe discount rate was primarily caused by the decrease 
In the municipal bond rale from 4.10% as of December 31 , 2018 to 2.74% as of 
December 31, 2019, The Plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be insufficient to 
make all projected future beneftt payments of current active and inactive members. 
Therefore, the dlscounl rate for calculating the Total OPES Uabillty ls equal io the single 
equivalent rate that results In the same actuarial present value as the long-term 
expected rate of· return applied to benefd payments, to the extent that the plan's fiduciary 
net posttlon Is projected to be sufflclent to make pro1ec!ed benefrt payments, and the 
municipal bond rate applied to bene!tt payment to the extent that the plan·s fiduciary net 
position Is projected to be insufficient 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31 , 2020 

NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

D. Other Postemployment Benefits - Multiple Employer Plan (Continued) 

OPES Liab ilities/Assets, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Dererred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEBs {Continued) 
The plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make projected future 
benefn payments of current plan members through December 31 , 2036. The project.ion 
of cash flows used to determine the single discount rate assumed that employer 
contributions will be made according to the current employer contribution schedule and 
that contributions are made by plan members retiring prior to age 65. 

Sensi11vlty of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Uabillty (Asset) to 
Changes In the Discount Rate. The following presents the City's proportionate share of 
the net OPEB liability (asset) calculated using the discount rate of 2,87%, as well as 
what the City's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability (asset) would be if it were 
ca lculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (1 .87) or 1-percentage­
point higher (3 87%) than the current rate: 

City's Proportionate Share of the 

1% Decrease 
(167%) 

Current 
Discount Rate 

(2.67%) 
1% Increase 

(3.67%) 

Nel OPES Liability (Asset) 12131/20 $ 621,524 $ 450,102 $ 319,694 

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position. Detailed information about the OPEB plan's fiduciary 
net position is available in separately issued financial statements available at 
http://etf.wi.gov/publications/cafr.htm 

E. Landfill Postclosure Care Costs 

The City is responsible for postclosure costs at a landfill site previously used by the City. 
The site has been closed and the City has taken steps necessary to comply with 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources direc!ives concerning monitoring of this 
site. 

The Department of Natural Resources approved a revised groundwater monitoring plan 
in 1997. The plan requires that the leachate, four private wells and twenty-three 
monitoring wells be tested annually for volatile organic compounds, field parameters, 
and indicator parameters. The monitoring for this site will be required indefinitely. 

A liability of $149,209 has been recorded in the City's financial statements at 
December 31, 2020 for the estimated liability for the future monitoring of this landfill. 

(71) 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

F. Contingencies 

From time to time. the City is party to various pend ing claims and legal proceedings. 
Although the outcome of such matters cannot be forecasted with certainty. tt is the 
opinion of management and the Ctty attorney that the likelihood is remote that any such 
claims or proceedings will have a material adverse effect on the City's financial position 
or results of operations. 

G. Risk Management 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts ; thefts of, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City 
maintains commercial insurance coverage covering each of those risks of loss. 
Management believes such coverage is sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured 
losses to the Ctty. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of 
the past three years. 

H. Subsequent Events 

On April 27, 2021, the City issued General Obligation Promissory Note, Series 2021 in 
the amount of $1.269,000 for the purpose of interim financing of capital improvements. 
The note accrues interest at 2.00 percent and matures March 1, 2022. 

On December 21, 2021, the City issued General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds. 
Series 2021A in the amount of $7,230,000. A portion of the proceeds ($5,705,000) was 
used to current refund Series 2012A, 2013B, and 2021 . The refunding transaction 
resulted in a net economic gain of $347,411 and future net debt service savings of 
$372,479. The remaining portion of the proceeds were used to finance various street 
and utility improvements. The bonds accrue interest at 2.00 - 4.00 percent and mature 
June 1, 2041 

(72) 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 , 2020 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final Actual 

REVENUES 
Taxes $ 5,725,892 $ 5,725,892 $ 5,731,300 
Intergovernmental 4,656,737 4,656,737 5,450,246 
Licenses and Permits 312 ,610 312,610 413,532 
Fines and Forfeits 96,000 96,000 75,531 
Public Charges for Services 1,314,883 1,314,883 1,461,686 
Intergovernmental Charges for Services 558,039 558,039 650,825 
Miscellaneous: 

Interest 32,750 32,750 46,384 
Rent 3,600 3,600 4,850 
Other 10,000 10,000 126,168 

Total Revenues 12,710,511 12,710,511 13,960,522 

EXPENDITURES 
General Government 1,696,159 1,696,159 1,238,438 
Public Safety 6,347,059 6,347,059 6,448,482 
Public Works 2,359,978 2,359,978 2,343,302 
Health and Human Services 48,666 48,666 48,666 
Culture, Recreation and Education 2,275,770 2,275,770 1,930,669 
Conservation and Development 133,219 133,219 137,371 
Capital Outlay 198,360 198,360 277,298 

Total Expenditures 13,059,211 13,059,211 12,424,226 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES (348,700) (348,700) 1,536,296 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Sale of Property 102,586 
Transfers In 348 700 348 700 394,960 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 348,700 348,700 497,546 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ $ 2,033,842 

Fund Balance, January 1 20,078,519 

FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $22,112,361 

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information 
(73) 

SCHEDULE 1 

Variance with 
Final Budget -

Positive 
{Negative) 

$ 5,408 
793,509 
100,922 
(20,469) 
146,803 
92,786 

13,634 
1,250 

116,168 
1,250,011 

457,721 
(101,423) 

16,676 

345,101 
(4,152) 

{78 ,938) 
~985 

1,884,996 

102,586 
46260 

148,846 

$ 2 033 842 

SCHEDULE 2 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGE IN THE CITY'S TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(PRESENTED PROSPECTIVELY FROM IMPLEMENTATION) 

2018 2019 2020 

Total OPEB Liability 
Service Cost s 108,147 $ 88,576 s 99,329 
Interest 51 ,907 42,217 36,857 
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience (450,583) (68,679) (181,732) 
Changes of Assumptions or Other Input (104,489) 72,706 239,871 
Benefit Payments (75,198) (59,156) (24,682) 
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability (470,216) 75,664 169,643 
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning 1,438,071 967,855 1,043,519 
Total OPEB Liability - Ending $ 967,855 1,043,519 1,213,162 

Covered Employee Payroll $ 6,492,957 6,392,446 6,436,039 

City's Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of 
Covered Employee Payroll 14.91% 16.32% 18 85% 

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of Statement 75. 

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information 
!74) 
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Measurement Date December 31 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FAU.S, WISCONSIN 
SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF 

WISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM NET PENSION PLAN ASSET/LIABILITY 
LAST TEN MEASUREMENT DA TES 

(PRESENTED PROSPECTIVELY FROM IMPLEMENTATION) 

2014 2D15 2016 2017 

Cily'sproportlanofthenetpenliioniabillty(H&el) 006222753% 006044143"4 0 06051941'!1, 006153410'!1:, 
City's proportionate Wre orthe net pension liability (asset) • (1.52e,477) S 982,1157 ' 498,825 ' (1,827,020) S 
Cily 'scovem::lpayrall • 6,345,276 ' 6,450,437 ' 6,469,702 ' 6,598,350 ' C~s proportionate &hare of !he net pel'l&lon lial:Jity (ai.set) Ha 
percentageorncovff'edpayrol ,.,.,. 1523% 771'11, 2769% 
Plan fiduciary net po1,ition as a percentage or the total pensiDn liability 
(asset) 10274% '"""' 9912'!& 10293% 

See Mites Al Requited Supplem«tt.,y Information 

1751 

''"' 
006'7733111% 

2,231 .875 ' 6.7l4.1)68 ' 
33 14% 

91545% 

SCHEDULE3 

201' 

0.06~J21% 
(2,090,518) 
1,053.m 

~-6,a"" 

102915% 

Fiscal Vear Ended: December 31, 

Contrad:Uilllty ReqLiredContribution 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE 

WISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM PENSION PLAN 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(PRESENTED PROSPECTIVELY FROM IMPLEMENTATK>N) 

__ 20_1s __ 

580,872 $ 

2016 

sn,332 

2017 

s 651,144 • 

SCHEDULE4 

''"' __ 2ll_ 1' _ _ ---2QlL_ 

658 103 s 681193 ' 74'i,97S 

_.,, .. ,., Cofltnbutiam; In Relation to the ConnduaJw Required CClnlrlblltion!i !ffl!'?) 1:r• • ~ ~ -L!!!..!:m ~ 
ConlfibuliDn O!fitiency (El«;Ks) S • • •-----• -----:., J, J ! 

City's Covered Payroll S 6,450,437 S 6,469,702 s 6,598,311 ' 6,734,089 

Contnbulions as II Percentage or Covert-cl Payroll 9 01 % """' 
,.,,. 

Changes of Benefit Terms. There were no changes of benefit terms far any participa1ing employer in VVRS 

Changes of Assumptions No significant change in assumptions were noled from the prior year. 

See NottJS to Re~d Supplementary Information 
(76) 

,m. ' 
7.053,670 ' 

51156% 

7181,256 

1040% 
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SCHEDULE 5 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET OPEB LIABILITY 

WISCONSIN LOCAL RETIREE LIFE INSURANCE FUND OPEB PLAN 
LAST TEN MEASUREMENT DATES 

(PRESENTED PROSPECTIVELY FROM IMPLEMENTATION) 

Measurement Date: December 31 . 2017 2018 ~ 
City's proportion of the net OPEB liability (asset) 0 10370100% 0 10490900% 0 10570400% 
Clty's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability (asset) s 311 ,993 $ 270,701 s 450,102 
City's covered payroll $ 4,360,924 $ 5,906,000 $ 5,932,000 
City's proportionate share of the net OPES liability (asset) as a 
percentage of its covered payroll 7~15% 4 58% 7.59% 
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB 
liability (assel) 4481 % 4869% 37 58% 

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information 
(77) 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE 

WISCONSIN LOCAL RETIREE LIFE INSURANCE FUND OPEB PLAN 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

[PRESENTED PROSPECTIVELY FROM IMPLEMENTATION) 

SCHEDULE& 

Fiscal Year Ended: December 31 . 2018 2019 ~ 

Contradually Required Contribution $ 1,826 s 2 ,071 s 2,104 
Contributions in Relation to the Contractually Required 
Contributions p,626) !2,07 1) ~ .104! 
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) s $ ..l..-.. 
City's Covered Payroll $ 4,360,924 $ 5 ,906,000 s 5,932,000 

Contribulions as a Percenlage of Covered Payroll 0.04% 0.04% 004% 

See Notes to Required Supplementary tnformatK>n 
(78) 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

DECEMBER 31 , 2020 

BUDGETARY INFORMATION 

GASB Statement No. 34 requires 1/\e presentation of budgetary compar1s·on schedules for the general 
fund and for each mai er special revenue fund. Budgetary information is derived from the Ctty's annual 
operating budget. The Clly did not formally adopl a budgel for the CDBG fund, a major special revenue 
fund . -

The City's budget is adopted in accordance with Chapter 65 of the Wisconsin Statutes and on a basis 
consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. Changes to appropriations authOrized in the 
adopted budget generally re-quire a vote of twcHh1rds or the entire membership of the governing body. 
The Chy's legal budgel is adopled at the major function level In the general fund (I.e., general 
government) and at the fund level In all other funds. The City exercises budgelary expenditure control 
at the department level. 

Budgel amounts In the financial statements include both original adopted budget and the final budget 
Changes to the budget during the year. H any, generally Include amendments authorized by the 
governing body, additions of approved carryover amounts and appropl'ia11ons of revenues and at.her 
sources for specified expenditures/uses. Appropriated budget amounts in the general fund lapse at the 
end of the year unless specifically carried over for financing subsequent year expenditures. 

(79) 

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND STATEMENTS 

AS51!TS 
CHh•l'ldlnYHlmenb< 
T11>1H,R.-C• Nabl.l 
6pac,.IAsuH.moinbRec.a.,.,ble 
Accoun~ AaceNal!la 
Ouetn::,moth'lrF.,.... 
1nta..iulR1t<:u,.1>la 
~ .. .._..__Ji~ 
Dalarred La•~ R.!lc1,vabla 

Total Aue~ 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES 

Vouc:ti.,,. Paiv:,,ble 
o ... 1ootherfunm 
~tt-11110.-, .. , .... 1.,.. ........... 

o.r.rrH lr,,n.._ or ll-•u~o,: 
Su~nl Vaar's PropertvTuH 
l,loVND .. 1,-.~ 
Un.tv111l• DleSpec:1• IASi.l!IHm• nl5 

f•tolllo.fi!"'11•~-----

h1fl•a.a­,_~. --~· -v. .... g-
r.-t111, ... 11111•-

, .. .......__Dor-.-.~ 
oJR• ...... rcas arodfund8allni::H 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALl.S, WISCONSIN 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
DECEMBER 31 , 2020 

~·-"•'---

SCHEDULE A-1 

Bu1,1ness. Par I: Authority c,iy Wide c,iv WKM Spe,c:1• 1 
lmprawmenl CanaUon Ravalving Oon11l1on G111nt Roam Tu R•111nu• Fund 

~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ --'-°"-' -
1 SOil 5 T.33.226 $ S 113,780 S 1511,991 S 1,248122 

'"'""" '"'""" 
"·"' 

8<17,241 ll<17241 -----____ . ~ ____ . -----____ . ~ 

~ ~ ~ -·----~ ~ ~ 
t,),Qql I ,.. . :n.Sl&J I JS,106 

· • · 1'37.1518 • • 737.618 
---- ------;]"ig ------:;:soo ~ ----~ ~ 

105,000 
45'1 ,085 

~----. ~----. ----_ ----. ~ 

,,..., 113780 
239,125 UU.7152 

607,501 
8'13,2.Q ..,,,., 

· • - (7J7.5122) - - (737.922) 
1_500 729.~ &'16.626 (7J7.922) ~ 1&1.762 ~ 

~ ~ ~ _, ___ • ~ ~ s 2 . ..aa.01a 

iei 
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CITY DF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED) 
DECEMBER 31, 2020 

C.uh...-.ct l...,..-rn 
T--•~Nabl8 

S-1A.u.n••monts~ .... -
Acc.oul'ltf; Racu..,.blo 
DwtromOl..,.rFunm. 
1~j'-4-­
l,wt.ollmonll.aaMFtece.,.bl11 
o,,.i .. , ... t....- ... .._ 

""""''''ca. oc,uu,n iN/1.~ o, 
~U,A~PUiG~U ,_ 

--··~ Du• LIICX.-.rFunC1$ ~-~·""'-Toe-ii'-....._ 

~..,,..,. __ .. .._._._ 
5.....,.....,, Year's P,oparty TUH 
U-1• 1N>Loarw.R• ca...,.1N,, 
u ........... 1>19 Sp.c,al Au• H....nlll 

l•t-1104<•••~-.tllk-

F.,nd8...,nc.aa: 
No,-fl"ndabla 

UN,~,-11 

To•1FUNll81Unc:H 

1•w~~.O..w.mf'---
orR11•11urc• •.•ndFunde..1•""'•• 

c..-.1__!'1~~"-

Sp•<:1111 WorU C..ptlll,1 N11nm11111, 
••11Hm•nt co,.,.,1,1.e1.,n v.,..,,... p,..J•<:t& F,mo Gov11rnm• nl 

~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 

')!OIJIICIQ I <11745548 -, a8SG.7mi s 102"'.1!127 

1,77~ 22<1 

2an<1a• 
1748"4Q5 

1,773,22" 

2,S784&4 
1 ,7"9~ .. ,,,, 
11111,c.!1 .. ,,.. 
2620465 

----- ----· --------~ 
~ ~ s a a.2 258 ~ ~ 

35,56-i S ,IQl,111111 I 
>H, I .. 732,271 

~.238 
10Bll<lr.l 

----· ----· ~~~ 357,1N 7117,II~ 440,40G 1,58S,<151 2,3-42,175 

2 ,•73,- :z.•73,48-4 2!:>nq.,e ... ,_ 
1,7411.•116 - - 1,749,<IOS 1,7411.'•VS 
~ ----~ ~ ~ 

1.412.~:Z 

_.,., 
8,-38'1 

27516CM :Z,7S1.a:M 3.1SJJM11 
• • (31.Ma) (31.648) (1151.n'Ol 

7 .751.IO<I l,"'92.IIJ.2 5.078.363 10.322.3'111 ~ 

5 41158.205 ~ 5 8,'8:Z,:ZS6 5 115,111,328 ~ 
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SCHEDULE A-1 

R!:Vl!frilUES: 
T...-H 
SJ)CICia1~~ 
lnl•JV0Vernmenl11I 
M"'~11llar.eo111,: 

lnlarestonlnv11$1me~ 
Oonalions 
LoanR• paymenlls 

Tolll l Rtwenues 

l!QIENDrTURES.: 
F"ublit S11lely 
0..-.A~ .... ~ 
CD-•Hon i!nd Developrrwnl 
~pitalou11.., 
lnlar• 11landFiscalCharg11S 

Tl>hll Eltp11nd~ures 

EJCCU!I (DEFICIENCYJ 01' .. !VENUES ....,.._ 
amet.~AHO,lr,)0~Jl.libl. 

Sall el City Property 
Lon9.Tem,Debllu.u• d 
~Pr•mun 
Tr.allUer&ln 
Tr.rn&fersOul 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

VEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 , 2020 

ie?'"/~T ...... -

SCHEDULE A-2 

Sialnes1 Park Aulhonty City Wide Ciry WEl111 Special 
Improvement Dcinelion R11vo1¥S111 Danalion Gr.ant Room Ta,i RIIYUILIII Fund 
~ ~ ~ __ ,_ ... ____ ,_ ... ____ ,_,., __ ____.!e!,!__ ...... 152JJl92 S :ZS1,D82 

20,193 74,764 94,M7 

1,917 S.23J 8210 
412.0711 48,188 480,265 

----- ----· ~----· ----· ----· ~ 99,000 434.248 42.310 4e,1a& 74.764 152,0112 IIS0,5i2 

195,244 
911,000 73,D46 

,.., 
5,407 J.4,112 13U1S 

,.., 
374,678 
172.D,4& 

!llil,000 1515,2..; 73,0..; 9.30~ J4.11~ 1311.!11~ 550,61; 

"'-"" "'·"" ,. ... .. .. , 12,167 ,,,.,. 

----· ~-----____ . ---------· ~ Tol310\h&rFlflllr,,;ingSourcos(UsHJ ____ -~ ____ . ____ . -----____ . ~ 
»tT C11AUOl lttRJMD 11.AU»cU 

Fund!• Z.ncea,Januar,1 

f\NOuu.NCO, ~·c.cMI.Pl)I 

235,304 ""·"" ,._... 4'1.t.52 12,1&7 ,,.,,. 
~ ~ --...!!!::!E.. ~ __..n.fil_ ~ ~ 

~ ~~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SCHEDULE A-2 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED) 

REVeR.IES : 
Tues 
SpeeialAHtHrnents 
Intergovernmental 
M1se11llan•out: 

lntarestonlnvestments 
Dcmations 
LnanRepill,,..,..nb 

Tat:IIIR1,..ruas 

EXPENDITU'IES: 
PublcSaf9ty 
~111:W..at,On:ll,,,.l.illlQblll. 
C:i~wn.,..o.,,ii~ 
CapillllOullay 
lnhlr,standFif;ca!Ch.arues 

TatalExp,1nditur111 

DGU.S (Dale~ OJ'. RfNO.\IU 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

QTi.$ ncAHCIHO "'°UftC.0 (!JUI). 
Sale11ICqPro'"9rty 
Lnng-Term Otbt lu~d 
DebtPr,mum 
Transr.ir1 Ir, 

Tr.msflffll°" 
Total OU.1 Fi1111nc:in& So\lR:es (US.S) 

li£T~!Hf'Utal~D 

Fund Balances January 1 

n>PwO IISAI.Nalei:11 0ECO&S!A 'S1 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

Capital Pro/!tt& Fund, 
Public Total 

Special Works Capital Ncum-.jo, 
A&s• ssrrenl Construcban Variou, Project Fund Govunnwntal 
~ ~ ~ __ T_om_l _ ~ 

- . 
592.320 

• S 2,246,lJO S 2,246,330 S 2.417,412 
5i232D 592.:12D 

..,, 205,312 205,739 300,696 

127,761 127761 135971 
4&0,2615 

. - - 36.on 
~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 

3,993 
374,678 

65.219 115,219 237265 
1534,166 1,83'1,166 1,834,166 

• 39,912 592 40,SCM 40 .sa4 ==:= 1,e74 ,078 ~ 1.930119 ~ 

592,320 {1,745,690) 2,la5,831 1,232,261 1,53Z,2J6 

27,385 27,385 2738S 
2,075,000 2,075 00D 2,D75,0C0 

7S70 7,570 7,51C 
m!oli SOCI 5111 500,581 

~ ____ • (1,fl t!;)OCI OUl->H l. J1...lllt;'l-, 
~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 

.11811300 364,065 1C7\ ,10oil 1923459 2,219744 

~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 
~ ~ S 6 D71!,363 S 10 322 1!99 ~ 

183) 

... .,. 
casnarKllrivestmel15 
Ta~l!5 Rete1Vl!lble 
~u..,~ 

Total""'5 

OOlllU 01F8Wi>I/RllWS9f 
lllBiOllRtEUW '1l!lfl, IAWIQES 

Liabililits: 
VoLChm Payable 
D:.e!DClherFl.tm 
~lromOOerFIIDI 

Tol3Ililb1libes 

~lr&'lnol Rcic11um:. 
Subseql.l!nlYNr'sPropertyTaxes 

F11ndBalance1(o.ticib;J: 
Restri:l!!d 
Unassigred 

TotalFIXlCIBalarc!s{Deficils) 

Tc13ll.J2billli ts,Deferredlnt1owscr 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
TIO CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS (NONMAJOR) 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
DECEMBER 31, 2020 

SCHEDULEA-J 

TID#-4 TID#S T0#7 TID#B TID#:1• TID#11 TID#12 TJ0#13 T0#15 Tol3Is 

S 28.766 S 701 ,003 S 220,351 S S 63,823 51,994,150 S 1,327,596 S 409,859 S • S -4,745,548 
137,356 672,1!4 135,669 S4,27e 61,625 88:J,393 341 ,096 1«1,517 7366 2,473,484 

'-----~---· ___ . 1m.m 
~~~~ s 125441 5287754.1 53441916 ~ s 7366 $8992256 

s - ' - s . I - ! • S 158,561 S 250,0C(J s S «la,561 

lll!i. ___ . ---- ---- - --· ~---1!A!... 
21,774 1511,561 250.000 10,074 440.«lll 

137,356 sn,,a-4 135,669 94,279 61,625 883,393 341,096 N0,517 7,366 2,473,484 

"·"" 701,003 220,351 "·"" 1,994,150 2.94l.2S9 159659 6,110211 ___ . ___ . ___ . -----1l!E!l. . ~ ---1l1!!J. 
~ ~ ~_____.ll!E!l_ __gm._ 1994.150 2.9'!!,259 15fl.859 ~ 6078,363 

Resources andFLIICl8al3nces ~ S13731S7 S 356020 ~ S 125448 52877543 S3447916 ~~ $8992 256 

(84) 
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REVENUES: 
Tu9 
IN!fgovffl'l"•r11al Rrwnues 

TDQIIRMll.1t1 

EXPENDITURE&: 
C0nM!rv1n0n1ndD,Vl!lopm,nt 
lnlerHland F11~al Charges 

Tctll l &:puodllures 

nau ftf11CCClJ Of mu.a 
ovt.•WU)mllb 

OTHER FINANCIIIG SOURCES (USESI: 
Tlilnrffrsln 
Transflr,Oit 

TCGIOl.hlrFInirlCn9LJses 

NET CHANGE N FUND IW.ANCE& 

FundBalanc;"(Otf1c111;),Januar-,t 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
TIO CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS (NONMAJOR) 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 , 2020 

SCHEDULE A-4 

TI0#4 TIDll5 TID#7 TID.S TID/il10 TID#11 TIOIF12 TID#1J TI0#15 TGt.llS 

5 117,076 S 511 ,65~ 5 102,955 S 77,570 S 54,672 ! 1,009714 S 2SQ,ltl7 5 119,4~ S 3226 S U16.~JO 
3,529 \691.t9 J,133 11S '1,147 2,412 ~W 16322 205,312 
~ ~ ~ ~ -----mi9 1,012,125 255,&al ~ ~ ~ 

<150 2150 15,672 2,150 2,1:0 2,150 3097 2,150 1,550 es,m 
592 ______ • • S92 

2.1so 2.1so 1s.m 2,742 2.1sa 2,1so 34,997 2,1so 1,650 s~.e11 

118,455 S786S4 90,676 74,944 ss.m 1,cm,m "'·"' m.197 1,575 2,355,aJI 

320ss1 1&0,000 soo.sa, 
---~---· ~ ~ ~m:r, i'!U~ ___ . ___ - (1 ! 1!l3!~ 
---~---~ ~ \~iVJ· UU.l>lf ___ . ___ - (1leZJ:JI 

118455 m.11: 9067ti 37,541 '·"' "'"' (164,120) mm 1,SM 1071 104 

1s9,6B9J _•1~.2aa 129,675 (59,315) sr,m 1,434,174 3,1DS,379 2s,662 (11.650) s,oo7,25s 

FUNDBALANCE8(DEFICIT8),DECEM8ER31 S 28.766 ~ ~ ~ ~ S 1,994,150 S 2,942.259 ~ ~ ~ 

(85) 

SCHEDULE 8-1 
CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 

GENERAL FUND 
DETAILED BALANCE SHEET 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 
(WITH COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2019) 

2020 ~ 
ASSETS 

Treasurer's Cash and Investments $ 22,931 ,611 s 19,655,549 
Current Taxes Receivable 3,629,128 3,871,662 
Delinquent Personal Property Taxes 3,084 4,031 
Accounts Receivable 705,298 566,072 
Due from Other Governmental Unils 313,16B 371,028 
Due from Other Funds 702,150 1,337,303 
Inventories 17,219 27,915 
Land Held for Resale 4,000 4,750 
Advances lo Other Funds 769,466 1,215,547 

Total Assets $ 29,075124 $ 27 053,B57 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE 

Liabilities: 
Vouchers and Accounts Payable $ 147,039 $ 293 ,102 
Payroll Withholdings 143,551 179,752 
Due to Other Governmental Unils 6,337 6,933 
Due to Other Funds 567,B82 506,254 

Tolal Liabilities 864,809 986,041 

Deferred Inflows of Rosources 
Subsequent Yea~s Property Taxes 5,861,998 5,851,220 
Unavailable Land Contract 4 ,000 4,750 
Unavailable Ambulance Revenues 231,956 133,327 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 6,097,954 5,989,297 

Fund Balance: 
Nonspendable: 

Delinquent Taxes 3,084 4,D31 
Inventories 17,219 27,915 
Advances to Other Funds 769,466 1,215,547 

Assigned 760,203 670,261 
Unassigned 20,562,389 18,160,765 

Total Fund Balance 22,112,361 ~078,519 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources and Fund Balance i 29,075,124 $ 27 053,B57 

(B6) 
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Assigned Account/Purpo5e 

As&i;n1d: 
PAC.EltU,'pmenl 
Sb'eel Equipment Food 
Pool Study 
Carryovers 

Street Oepartmenl 
Poli~, Oepartment 
Fire Department 
DalaProcessing 
Pel'50nnelSe/YJCeS 
Special Legal Counsel - Negotiations 
Parks and RecreatKlnDepartrrlenf 
Library 

Safety Programs 
Junsd1e\JOnalTransferProjects 

Total Assig~ FuOO Balance 
NoMp,mdable 
Unauign1d 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSIGNED FUND BALANCE 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

SCHEDULE 8-2 

Balance Tax Transrers Total Balance 
~~~ __ ,, ____ out __ ~ Expend~urcs ~ 

,.553 ' I s .. s B,553 s • t55J 
102,851 89,942 192,793 192 793 

750 750 750 

118,000 118000 118,000 
3,680 3.680 3,680 

20,000 20000 20,000 
2,500 2.500 2,500 
2,500 2500 2,500 

10,000 10.000 10,000 
25,000 25000 25,000 
2,500 2500 2,500 

28,635 28635 28,635 

~ -----____ - ----------~-----~ 
670.261 89,942 760,203 760.203 

1,2•7 ... 93 (457,724) 789.769 789,769 
18,160.765 5,6687713 8304388 ~----- 32986,615 ~ 20,562.389 

$20078519 S 5668778 S 8394330 ~-·==-- $34536587 5 12424226 522112361 

(87) 

SCHEDULE 8-3 
CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 

GENERAL FUND 
DETAILED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

IWITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019) 

2020 
Variance 

Final Positive 

~ Actual ,Ne2ative) 
REVENUES: 

Taxes: 
General Property Taxes s 5,668,778 s 5,668,77B s s 
Mobile Home Taxes 14,500 14,341 (159) 
Interest on Taxes 200 220 20 
Taxes from Ecumenical Housing 2,400 2,400 
Other Payments in Lieu of Taxes 40,000 44,057 4,057 
Payment in Lieu of Taxes - DNR 14 14 
Other Taxes 1,490 1.490 

Total Taxes 5,725,692 5,731,300 S.408 

Intergovernmental: 
State Shared Taxes 3,206,293 3,238,690 32,397 
Expenditure Restraint Program 201,184 230,950 29,766 
Tax Exempt Computer Aid 140,000 202,634 62,634 
Fire Insurance Tax 30,8B2 48,242 17,360 
Slate Aid for Law Enforcement 3,000 3 ,200 200 
Highway Maintenance 54,400 55,252 B52 
State Aid for Local Streets 577,860 660,639 102,759 
Mass Transit Aid 274,351 500,284 225,933 
State Aid for Recycling 23,193 25,220 2,027 
State Aid for EMS/Ambulance 5,600 6,345 745 
State Paymenls for Municipal Services 121,680 121 ,450 (230) 
Other Grants and Aids 4,443 4,443 
County Hazardous Material Grant 6,500 7,336 B36 
Library Act 150 Revenue 11,774 14,118 2,344 
Video SelVIC:8 Pto,.;ida, Fc::H 17,187 17,187 
COVID Funding 294,250 29<.2S6 

Total Intergovernmental 4,656 ,737 5,450.245 793,509 

(BB) 

2019 
Actual 

5,631,551 
15,681 

323 
2,400 

55,811 
14 

U74 
51708,26' 

3,208,058 
197,247 
202,634 

45 ,B32 
3,200 

55,390 
610,877 
26B,2B3 

25,192 
6,B75 

176,850 
19 ,102 
12,999 
11,420 

4,843,959 
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SCHEDULE B-3 
CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 

GENERAL FUND 
DETAILED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED) 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

)WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 20191 

2020 
Variance 

Final Positive 

~ Actual (Ne!Jalive) 
REVENUES: (CONTINUED) 

Lic:enses 11nd P•nn hs: 
Licenses: 

liquor and Malt Beverages s 22,000 s 18,720 s (3,280) $ 
Operators 7,250 6,675 (575) 
Cigarette 900 750 (150) 
Franchise Fees 115,360 149,984 34,624 
Bicycle 4 4 
Dog 3,000 4,778 1,778 
Sundry Licenses 11 ,600 11,340 (260) 

Permits: 
Building B0,000 133,189 53,189 
Electrical 14,000 7,090 (6,910) 
Plumbing 14,000 16,835 2,935 
Slreet Opening 23,000 34,786 11 ,786 
Heating 14,000 18,696 4 ,696 
Dance 1,500 1,710 210 
Driveway 1,000 1,800 800 
Sundry Permits 5,000 7,075 2,075 

Total Licenses and Permits 312,610 413,532 100,922 

Fines and Folfeits: 
Court Penalties and Costs 68,000 46 ,756 (21,244) 
Parking Violations 28,000 28,775 775 

Total Fines and Forfeits 96,000 75,531 (20,469) 

Public Charges for Services: 
Publication Fees 500 499 (1) 
Reproduction Fees 5,000 2 ,191 (2 ,809) 
Police Oepar1ment Revenue 6,350 5,438 (912) 
Fire Department Revenue 500 5 (495) 
Fire Department Revenue - Plan Review 1,000 (1,000) 
Ambulance Fees 851,300 1,107,352 256,052 
Recycling 244,419 297,B16 53,397 
Engineering Reviews 400 1,580 1,180 
Olher Street Oepartmenl Earnings 5,000 13,071 8,071 
Record Search Fees 6,000 10,675 4,675 
Library Fees 20,000 3,326 (16,674) 
Swimming Pool Revenue 75,000 (75,000) 
Park Fees • 45,750 14,309 (31,441) 
Recreation Program Fees 51,364 2,084 (49 ,280) 
Zoning Review Fee 2,000 2,980 980 
Other Charges for Service 300 360 60 

Total Public Charges for Services 1,314,883 1,461,686 146,803 

(89) 

2019 
Actual 

24,212 
7,525 

BOO 
167,251 

4 
4,922 

12,075 

140,874 
34,475 
21,785 
22.416 
39,671 

2,060 
2,596 
6,204 

486,B70 

58,232 
32,364 
90,596 

613 
6 ,702 
6,504 
3,444 

135 
1,122,235 

299,211 
1,525 

11,296 
11,100 
13,131 
62,631 
50,039 
34,605 

4,007 
675 

1,627,853 

SCHEDULE B-3 
CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 

GENERAL FUND 
DETAILED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED) 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

)WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019) 

2020 
Variance 

Final Positive 

~ Actual ,Neaallvel 
REVENUES: (CONTINUED) 

Intergovernmental Charges for Services: 
County Library Program s 350,739 s 404,944 s 54 ,205 s 
Police Department Revenues 7,500 3,750 (3,750) 
School Resource Officer 45,000 55,451 10,451 
Fire Department Revenues 7,BOO 2,396 (5,404) 
Per Capita Ambulance Fees 110,000 162,079 52,079 
Hazardous Material Reimbursement 35,000 19,659 (15,341) 
Street Equipment Charges lo Others 2,000 2 ,546 546 

Tolal ln1ergovernmental Charges 
for Services 558,039 650 ,825 92,786 

Miscellaneous: 
Interest: 

Ge"l'ltrill Fund lnve!l,tmcrits 20,000 42,413 22,413 
Special Assessments 3,379 3 ,379 
Advance lo Other Funds 12,750 592 (12,158) 

Rent: 
Rental or City Buildings 3,600 4,850 1,250 

Other: 
Donations 17,242 17,242 
Insurance Recoveries 54 ,175 54,175 
Insurance Dividends 10,000 53,734 43,734 
Miscellaneous 1,017 1,017 

Total M[sce.11,neoUs Rtvenua, 46,350 177,402 131,052 

Total Revenues 12,710,511 13,960,522 1,250,011 

EXPENDITURES: 
General Goverrvnent: 

Legislative: 
Council 26,588 51 ,798 (25,210) 

Legal: 
City Attorney 74,000 73,500 500 
Special Legal Counsel 18,000 7,136 10,864 
Codification of Ordinances 2 ,945 1,628 1,317 

General Adminislration : 
Mayor 12,21i 11,203 1,008 
Clerk 1B2,709 181,557 1,152 

(90) 

2019 
Actual 

361,579 
6,157 

54,750 
9,042 

153,914 
30,266 
4,753 

620,461 

93,907 
1,794 
6,910 

5,100 

83,452 
22,203 
44,027 

529 
257,922 

13,635,925 

85,756 

73,720 
14,139 

1,546 

11,271 
165,395 
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SCHEDULE B-3 
CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 

GENERAL FUND 
DETAILED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED) 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019) 

2020 
Variance 

Final Positive 

~ Actual tNe2ative} 
EXPENDITURES: (CONTINUED) 

General Government: (Continued) 
General Administration : (Continued) 

Eledions s 28,635 s 59,510 s (30,875) s 
Personnel Services 537,B54 11,4B1 526,373 
Dala Processing 99,213 163,B52 (64,639) 
Central Duplicating B,3B4 3,122 5,262 

Financial Adminislrative: 
Independent Auditing 26,400 32,B04 (6,404) 
Treasurer/Finance 279,366 266,979 10,387 
Assessment of Property 9B,445 94,452 3,993 
General Insurance 1B2,4B3 144,415 38,068 

General Buildings and Plant: 
City Hall 10B,304 129,556 (21,252) 

Tax Refunds 10,622 3,445 7,177 
Totlill Genmal Govomment 1,696,159 1,238,438 457,721 

Public Safety: 
Flolice and Fire Commission 3,000 6,190 (3,190) 
Flolice Department 3,075,481 2,926,526 14B,955 
Fire Department 3,092,055 3,299,239 (207,184) 
Building Inspector 127,778 120,095 7,6B3 
Sealer of Weights and Measures 3,200 3,200 
Tornado Warning System 4,250 1,520 2,730 
Dam Maintenance 6,295 72,214 (65,919) 
HazMat Response Team 35,000 19,49B 15,502 

Total Public Safety 6,347,059 6,44B,4B2 (101,423) 

Public Works: 
Transportation Facilities: 

Su_pehn1endtn1 of su·eetS 793,50B 750,7B4 42,724 
Director of Public Works 292,25B 276,240 16,01B 
Street Department Time Off Wrth Pay 1,500 408 1,092 
City Shop 179,150 150,223 2B,927 
Stree1 Department Buildings and Equipment 10,500 12,075 (1,575) 
Street Cleaning and Flushing 3,000 2,336 664 
Street Signs and Markings 16,000 17,505 (1 ,505) 
Curb and Gutter Maintenance 9,000 10,392 (1,392) 
Slreel Lighting 172,500 194,1B0 (21,6B0) 
Oiling Streets 102,435 131,B6B (29,433) 
Snow and rce Ftemoval 94,000 92,755 1,245 
Tree and Brush Control 900 2 ,722 (1,822) 
Sidewalk and Crosswalk Maintenance 8,000 B,788 (78B) 

(91) 

2019 
Actual 

10,157 
38,273 
B7,710 

4,261 

B7,667 
267,470 

94,54B 
149,389 

11B,109 
7 ,996 

1,217,407 

12,998 
2,796,386 
3,379,509 

121,4B1 
3,200 

211 
79,509 
14,96B 

6,40B,262 

793,B7B 
290,029 

552 
250,155 

14,230 
2,246 
1,483 
3,093 

156,507 
125,B78 

98 ,336 

12,917 

SCHEDULE 8-3 
CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 

GENERAL FUND 
DETAILED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED) 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019) 

2020 
Variance 

Final Positive 

~ Actual {Negative~ 
EXPENDITURES: (CONTINUED) 

Public Works: (Continued) 
Transportation Facilities: (Continued) 

Tratf,c Controls s 35,500 s 33,542 s 1,95B s 
Bridges 2,000 70 1,930 
Mass Transit Program 371 ,987 ll!3,810 (11 ,863) 

Total Transportation Facilities 2.01i2.238 2..067,7SS 2A ,4BC 
Sanitation: 

Lar•m - sic Maln1e1U1nce 7,900 8,061 (161) 
Yard Waste Disposal 9,000 8,282 71B 
Recycling 249,640 259,001 (9,361) 
Weed Control 1.200 200 1,000 

Total Sanitation 267,740 275,54~ (7,804) 

Total Public Works 2,359,97B 2,343,302 16,676 

Hearth and Human Services: 
Heatth Officer 1,750 1,750 
Animal Control 16,156 16,156 
Social Services 30,760 30 7~0 

Total Health and Human Services •MM ,a.&&a 
culture, Recreation and Education: 

library 1,098,297 1,067,724 30,573 
Park and Recreation Administration 688,181 599,973 flB,208 
Parks 143,710 142,266 1,444 
Zoo 59,777 47,265 12,512 
Cable Television 40,000 40,000 
Recreation 40,B14 7,681 33,133 
Sports Complex 81 ,654 52,989 28,665 
Outdoor Pool 122,602 12,276 110,326 
Celebrations, Entertainment and Promotion 735 495 240 

Total Culture, Recreation and Education 2,275,770 1,930,669 345,101 

conservation and Development: 
Forestry 23,750 21 ,23B 2,512 
City Planner 88,693 96,809 (8,116) 
Zoning 750 610 140 
Economic Development 20,026 1B,714 1,312 

Total Conservation and Development 133,219 137,371 (4,152) 

(92) 

2019 
Actual 

6 ,837 
1,489 

305.047 
2,052,677 

7,947 
10,374 

256,032 
700 

275,0SJ 

2,337,730 

1,750 
15,962 
30,760 
4.iS.472 

1,022,032 
639,787 
161,2B1 
65,250 

1,250 
25,206 
74,712 

100,066 
735 

2,090,319 

20 ,941 
94,107 

23,731 
13B,779 
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SCHEDULE 8 -3 
CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 

GENERAL FUND 
DETAILED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED) 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019) 

2020 
VlrliinCe 

Final Positive 

~ Actual iNeaative) 
EXPENDITURES: (CONTINUED) 

Capital Outlav: 
General Governmenl $ 111,720 s 29,287 $ B2,433 $ 
Public sarely 50 ,7Y9 53 ,593 (2,794) 
Public Works 31,589 i91 ,283 (159,694) 
Culture, Recreation and Education • .252 3,135 I, 111 

Total Capital Outlay 19&,l60 277.298 !I8 ,93&! 

2019 
Actual 

15.890 
72 ,892 
36,851 
10.406 

,~.039 

Total Expenditure s ~211_ 12.424,226 -- 634,985 12,377,008 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) Of REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES (346,700) 1,536,296 1,884,996 1,258,917 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Sale of General City Property 102,586 102,586 108,B60 
Transfers In 346,700 394,960 46,260 396,272 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 346,700 497,546 146,846 505,132 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 2,033.842 2,033,642 1,764,049 

Fund Balance, January 1 20,076,519 20,078,519 18,314,470 

FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 S 20 078 519 s 22,11_us1 s 2 033.842 S 20.078 519 

(93) 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
WATER UTILITY ENTERPRISE FUND 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
DECEMBER 31, 2020 

SCHEDULE D-1 

(WITH COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2019) 

2020 -----2.Q19 
ASSETS 

Current Assets: 
Cash and Investments: 

Operations $ 1,027,935 $ 1,497,278 
Depreciation Fund 5,486,186 5,277,113 

Customer Accounts Receivable 483,678 488,793 
Accounts Receivable on Tax Roll 78,092 120,950 
Other Accounts Receivable 899 495 
Special Assessments Receivable 431,255 451,328 
Due from Governmental Funds 359,321 682,051 
Due from Wastewater Utility 199,201 104,127 
Inventories 93,815 86,506 

Total Current Assets 8,160,382 8,708,641 

Restricted Assets: 
Cash and Investments: 

Special Redemption Fund 101,266 190,012 
Wisconsin Retirement System Pension Plan Asset 95 145 

Total Restricted Assets 196,411 190,012 

Capital Assets: 
Land and Land Rights 135,570 135,570 
Nonutility Property 2,916 2,916 
Construction Work in Progress 362,790 
Utility Plant in Service 27,248,017 26,071,724 
Less Accumulated Depreciation (10,855,665) (10,290,328) 

Total Capital Assets 16,530,838 16,282,672 

Other Assets: 
Lang-Term Advance to Governmental Fund 750,000 750,000 
Accrued Interest Receivable on Long-Term Advance 

to Governmental Fund 27,699 27 ,699 
Total Other Assets 777,699 777,699 

Total Assets 25,665,330 25,959,024 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Wisconsin Retirement System Pension Plan Related 222,569 276,367 
OPEB Single-Employer Plan Related 14,388 3,383 
State Life Insurance OPES Related 12 555 3 369 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources --~249,512 283119 

(94) 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
WATER UTILITY ENTERPRISE FUND 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (CONTINUED) 
DECEMBER 31, 2020 

SCHEDULE D-1 

(WITH COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2019) 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 
Due lo Governmental Funds: 

Taxes Accrued 
Other 

Current Portion of Bonds Payable (Net of Portion 
Payable from Restricted Assets) 

Current Portion of Unused Vested Employee Benefits 
Total Current Liabilities 

Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets: 
Accrued Interest Payable 
Current Portion of Bonds Payable (Net of Portion 

Payable from Current Assets) 
Total Current Liabilities Payable from 

Restricted Assets 

Long-Term Liabilities: 
Bonds Payable (Net of Current Portion) 
Total OPES Liability Single-Employer Plan 
Unused Vested Employee Benefits 
Wisconsin Retirement System Net Pension Liability 
State Life Insurance Net OPES Liability 

Total Long-Term Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

DEFERRED OUTELOWS OF RESOURCES 
Wisconsin Retirement System Pension Plan Related 
OPEB Single-Employer Plan Related 
State Life Insurance OPES Related 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 

NET POSITION 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 
Restricted for Debi Service 
Restricted for Pension Plan 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

(95) 

$ 

2020 

108,071 

391 ,260 
361 ,322 

45,000 
30,683 

936,336 

7,941 

76.161 

84,102 

1,518,676 
63,691 
34,949 

30,375 
1,647,691 

2,668,129 

285,099 
31,870 

4,701 
321,670 

14,891,001 
93,325 
95,145 

7,845,572 

$ 22 925 043 

$ 

2019 

161,089 

392,572 
956,659 

50,000 
28,696 

1,589,016 

13,403 

221,161 

234 ,564 

1,641,521 
53,950 
31 ,593 

101,579 
17,103 

1,B45,746 

3,669 ,326 

140,137 
26,153 

4,574 
170,B64 

14,263,231 
176,609 

7,962,113 

$ 22 401,953 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
WATER UTILITY ENTERPRISE FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 , 2020 
(WITH COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019) 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Sales of Water: 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Public Authorities 
Public Fire Protection 
Private Fire Protection 

Other Operating Revenues 
Total Operating Revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Operation and Maintenance: 

Operation 
Maintenance 
Administrative and General 

Total Operation and Maintenance 
Depreciation 

Total Operating Expenses 

OPERATING INCOME 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Interest Income 
Loss on Removal of Plant Assets 
Interest Expense 
Amortization of Debt Related Items 

Total Nonaperating Revenues (Expenses) 

INCOME BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS 
Plant Contributed by Developers 
Assessments far Plant Additions 
Haak-Up Fees 
Transfers Out 

Total Capital Contributions and Transfers 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

Net Position , January 1 

NET POSITION, DECEMBER 31 

(96) 

2020 

827,532 
374,188 
497,834 
141,149 
540,444 

55,012 
216,712 

2,652,871 

647,284 
255,547 
352,896 

1,255,727 
713,700 

1,969,427 

683,444 

81 ,793 

(49,023) 
1,6B4 

34,454 

717,898 

77,300 
109,044 
10,108 

(391,260) 
(194,808) 

523,090 

~ 

$ 22 925 043 

SCHEDULE D-2 

2019 

$ 775,340 
359,930 
474,687 
146,847 
515,881 

54,714 
249,263 

2,576,662 

655,448 
367,705 
373,457 

1,396,610 
685,967 

2,082,577 

494,0B5 

176,250 
(1,263) 

(50,045) 
(13,351) 
111,591 

605,676 

109,090 
103,663 
23,025 

(392,572) 
(156,794) 

448,882 

21,953,071 

S 22 401 953 
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SCHEDULE D-3 SCHEDULE 0-3 
CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 

WATER UTILITY ENTERPRISE FUND WATER UTILITY ENTERPRISE FUND 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 , 2020 YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 
(WITH COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019) (WITH COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019) 

~ 2019 2020 2019 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET 

Cash Received from Customers $ 2,600,441 $ 2,624,996 CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash Received for Water Meter Related Charges to Operating Income $ 683,444 $ 494,0B5 

Wastewater Utility 99,999 104,127 Adjuslmenls to Reconcile Operaling Income lo Net 
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services (201 ,567) (1,067,725) Cash Provided by (Used for) Operaling Activities: 
Cash Paymenls for Employee Services (B70,7B6) (B43 ,06B) Net Change in Wisconsin Pension System Related Items: 
Cash Paid for Wastewater Building Rent p2,oaoi (12,000) Asset I Liability (196,724) 188,368 

Nel Cash Provided by (Used for) Operaling Activities 1,616,087 806 ,330 Deferred Outflows of Resources 53,798 (115,107) 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 144,962 (30,797) 

CASH FLOWS FROM NON CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES Nel Change in OPES Related Items: 
cash Payment of Tax Equivalenls (391,260) (392,572) Asset I Liability 23, 013 (1,326) 

Deferred Outflows of Resources (20,191) (3,686) 
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING Deferred Inflows of Resources 5,844 4,584 

ACTIVITIES Depreciation 713,700 685,967 
Cash Received for Capital Contributions 6,621 23,025 (Increase) Decrease in Assets: 
Cash Received for Salvage on Plant Retired 10,519 Customer Accounts Receivable 5,115 72,309 
Cash Payments for Capital Assets (1,209 ,026) (561 ,949) Accounts Receivable on Tax Roll 42,858 66,907 
Cash Payments for Construction Work in Progress (206 ,470) Other Accounts Receivable (404) 13,245 
Cash Received from Special Assessments 78,885 82,616 Due from Other Funds 227,656 (683,528) 
Cash Paid for Plant Removal (6, 980) Inventories (7 ,309) B,115 
Cash Received from Debt Proceeds 345,000 Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities: 
Cash Paid for Debt Principal (271 ,161) (240,166) Accounts Payable (53,018) 117,467 
Cash Paid for Debt Interest (54,485) (46 ,231) Due to Other Funds (12,000) (12 ,000) 

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Capital and Related Unused Vested Employee Benefits 5,343 1727 
Financing Activities (1,655,636) (394, 166) 

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities $ 1,616 087 ~ _ 806 330 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Interest on Investments 81 793 176,250 
RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (349,016) 195,842 TO CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Cash and Investments per Statement of Net Position: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, January 1 6,964 403 6 768 561 Cash and Investments $ 1,027,935 $ 1,497,27B 
Cash and Investments - Restricted 101266 5,467 125 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, DECEMBER 31 $ 6 615 387 $ 6 964403 
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1129201 J, 6 964403 

NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Contributions of Capital Assets $ 186,344 $ 212,753 

(97) (9B) 
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SCHEDULE D-4 SCHEDULE D-4 
CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 

WASTEWATER UTILITY ENTERPRISE FUND WASTEWATER UTILITY ENTERPRISE FUND 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (CONTINUED) 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 DECEMBER 31, 2020 
(WITH COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS AS OF DECEMBER 31 , 2019) (WITH COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS AS OF DECEMBER 31 , 2019) 

2020 2019 2020 __ 2019 
ASSETS LIABILITIES 

Current Assets: Current Liabilities Payable from Current Assets: 
Cash and Investments: Accounts Payable $ 151.428 $ 66,549 Operations $ 1,571 ,651 $ 1,776,657 Due to Governmental Funds 520,845 1,015 ,825 

Depreciation Fund 5,683,916 5,251,595 Due to Water Utility 199,201 104,127 Customer Accounts Receivable 488,094 447,985 Current Portion of Unused Vested Employee Benefits 37 149 32 939 
Accounts Receivable on Tax Roll 68,924 90.430 Total Current Liabilities Payable from Current Assets 908 ,623 1,21 9,440 
Special Assessments Receivable 637,660 701,543 

Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets: Due from Governmental Funds 679,721 519,180 
Due from Water Utility 465 817 361 084 Accrued Interest Payable 27,126 29,377 

Total Current Assets 9,595,783 9,148,474 Current Portion of Long-Term Debt 424,993 399,246 
Total Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets 452,119 428,623 Restricted Assets: 

Long-Term Liabilities: Cash and Investments: 
Bond Redemption Fund Investments 190,027 182,212 Long-Term Debt (Net of Current Portion) 5,435,661 5,379,910 
Replacement Fund Cash and Investments 3,916,291 3,785,613 Total OPES Liability Single-Employer Plan 97,539 79,099 

Wisconsin Retirement System Net Pension Asset 95 507 Unused Vested Employee Benefits 63 ,300 53,796 
Total Restricled Assets 4,201,825 3,967,825 Wisconsin Retirement System Net Pension Liability 101,965 

State Life Insurance Net OPES Liability 49406 29 010 Capital Assets: Total Long-Term Debt 5,645,906 5,643,780 Land and Land Rights 177,391 177,391 
Total Liabilities 7,006,648 7,291 ,843 Construction Wark in Progress 600 

Utility Plant in Service 34,394,710 33 ,657,984 DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES Less Accumulated Depreciation (14 497 760l (13 n2 932l Wisconsin Retirement System Pension Plan Related 286,184 140,671 Total Capital Assets 20,074,341 20,113,043 OPES Single-Employer Plan Related 48,807 38,345 
Other Assets: State Life Insurance OPES Related 7 648 7 760 

Unamortized Debt Discount 1 523 1902 Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 342,639 186,776 

Total Assets 33,873,472 33,231,244 NET POSITION 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 14,213,687 14,333,887 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES Restricted for Debt Service 162,901 152,835 
Wisconsin Retirement System Pension Plan Related 223,416 277,205 Restricted for Asset Replacement 3,491 ,298 3,386,367 
OPES Single-Employer Plan Related 22,033 4,960 Restricted for Wisconsin Retirement System Pension Plan 95,507 
State Life Insurance OPES Related io424 5 715 Unrestricted 8 826,665 B 167 416 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 2_65 873 287 880_ Total Net Position $ 26 790,058 $ 26 040,505 

(99) (100) 
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SCHEDULE D-5 
CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 

WASTEWATER UTILITY ENTERPRISE FUND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 
(WITH COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS AS OF DECEMBER 31 , 2019) 

__ 2_020 2019 
OPERATING REVENUES: 

Sewerage Revenues: 
Residential $ 971,428 $ 961,470 
Commercial 436,036 422,975 
Industrial 943,127 911,580 
Public Authorities 190,968 213,368 

Rent 46,951 22,791 
Other Operating Revenues 566,798 579,160 

Total Operating Revenues 3,155,308 3,111,344 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Operation and Maintenance: 

Operation 926,917 948,022 
Maintenance 221,739 200,516 
Administrative and General 500,157 516,110 

Total Operation and Maintenance 1,650,813 1,664,648 
Depreciation 826,975 606,179 

Total Operating Expenses 2,477,768 2,472,827 

OPERATING INCOME 677,520 638,517 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): 
Interest Income 52,357 227,766 
Gain (Loss) on Removal of Capttal Assets 1,333 
Interest Expense (136,429) (134,706) 
Amortization of Debt Related Items (10,308) (17,178) 

Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expense) (94,380) 77,217 

INCOME BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS 563,140 715 ,734 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS: 
Plant Additions Funded by Private Sources 166,413 87,350 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 749,553 803,084 

Net Position, January 1 26,040,505 25,237,421 

NET POSITION, DECEMBER 31 $ 26 790,058 $ 26 040 505 

(101) 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
WASTEWATER UTILITY ENTERPRISE FUND 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

(WITH COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS AS OF DECEMBER 31 , 2019) 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash Received from Utility Customers 
Cash Received for Wastewater Building Rent 
Cash Paid for Water Meter Related Charges lo Wastewater Utility 
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services 
Cash Payments for Employee Services 

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Cash Payments for Capital Assets 
Cash Payments for Construction Work in Progress 
Cash Received from Special Assessments 
Cash Received from Debi Proceeds 
Cash Paid for Debt Issuance Costs 
Cash Payments for Principal on Long-Term Debt 
Cash Payments for Interest on Long-Term Debi 

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Capital and Related Financing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Cash Received from Interest on Investments 

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, January 1 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, DECEMBER 31 

(1 02) 

~ 

3,124,705 
12,000 

(99,999) 
(622,337) 
(715 576) 

1,698,793 

(1,463,555) 
(150) 

145,474 
455,000 

6,812 
(386,177) 
(142 746) 

(1,385,342) 

____.&ill 

365,808 

10 996 077 

~ 11 361 66~ 

SCHEDULE D-6 

2019 

3,228,796 
12,000 

(104,127) 
(809,798) 
(697 440) 

1,629,431 

(703,129) 

110,410 
365,000 

(373,474) 
(134 822) 
(736,015) 

~768 

1,121,184 

9 B74 893 

10 996 077 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
WASTEWATER UTILITY ENTERPRISE FUND 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED) 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

(WITH COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2019) 

2020 
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH 

PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Operating Income $ 677,520 
Adjustments ta Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash 

Provided by {Used for) Operating Activities : 
Change in Pension Plan Related Items: 

Asset I Liability (197,472) 
Deferred Outflows of Resources 53,789 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 145,513 · 

Change in OPES Plan Related Items: 
Asset/ Liability 38,836 
Deferred Outflows of Resources (31,782) 
Deferred lnnows of Resources 10,350 

Depreciation 826,975 
(Increase) Decrease in Assets: 

Customer Accounts Receivable (40,109) 
Accounts Receivable on Tax Roll 21,506 

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities: 
Accounts Payable 84,879 
Due to Other Funds 95,074 
Unused Vested Employee Benefits 13 714 

Net Cash Provided by (Used far) Operating Activities $ 1,698,793 

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND INVESTMENTS TO 
CASH ANO CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Cash and Investments per Statement of Net Position: 

Cash and Investments $ 1,571,651 
Cash and Investments - Restricted 4 106 318 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents s 5 f,77 969 

NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Contributions of Capital Assets $ 166,413 

(103) 

SCHEDULE 0-6 

2019 

$ 638,517 

191,204 
(111 ,392) 
(35,089) 

4,266 
(6,492) 
7,809 

BOB ,1 79 

77,507 
51,945 

(1,867) 
4,066 

77B 

_$ __ 1,629,431 

$ 1,776,657 
9219420 

s 10 996 Q77 

$ 87,350 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
STORM WATER UTILITY ENTERPRISE FUND 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
DECEMBER 31, 2020 

(WITH COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS FDR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019) 

2020 
ASSETS 

Current Assets: 
Cash and lnveslments $ 603,741 
Customer Accounts Receivable 177,683 
Accounts Receivable on Tax Roll 17,353 
Due from Governmental Funds 266,460 
Inventories 54,268 

Total Current Assets 1,119,505 

Restricted Assets: 
Wisconsin Retirement System Net Pension Asset 11,478 

Capital Assets: 
Utilily Plant in Service 11,704,165 
Less Accumulated Depreciation (3,6•7,B39l 

Total Capital Assets 8 ,096,326 

Other Assets: 
Unamortized Debi Discount 3 068 

Total Assets 9,230,377 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Wisconsin Retirement System Pension Plan Related 26,620 
OPEB Single-Employer Plan Related 904 
Slate Life Insurance DPEB Related 1,912 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 29,436 

(104) 

SCHEDULE 0-7 

~ 

$ 534,583 
178,898 

24 ,656 
538,471 

41 639 
1,318,247 

11,294,711 
(3,3B7,986l 
7,906,725 

3 531 

9,228,503 

33,418 
183 
574 

34,175 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
STORM WATER UTILITY ENTERPRISE FUND 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (CONTINUED) 
DECEMBER 31, 2020 

(WITH COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019) 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable s 4,151 
Due to Governmental Funds 54B,188 
Accrued Interest Payable 9,472 
Current Portion of Unused Vested Employee Benefits 2,334 
Current Portion of Bonds Payable 90,000 

Total Current Liabilities 654,145 

Long-Tenm Liabilities: 
Unused Vested Employee Benefits 1,735 
Total OPEB Liability Single-Employer Plan 4,004 
Wisconsin Retirement System Net Pension Liability 
State Life Insurance Net OPEB Liability 4,619 
Bonds Payable 1,344,517 

Total Long-Term Liabilities 1,354,875 

Total Liabilities 2,009,020 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Wisconsin Retirement System Pension Plan Related 34,392 
OPEB Single-Employer Plan Related 2,003 
State Life Insurance OPEB Related 716 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 37,111 

NET POSITION 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 6,661,809 
Restricted for Wisconsin Retirement System Pension Plan 11,47B 
Unrestricted 540 ,395 

Total Net Position $ 7 213 682 

(105) 

SCHEDULE D-7 

$ 9,892 
777,967 

10,044 
1,957 

70,000 
869,B60 

1,715 
2,922 

12,254 
2,912 

1,162,529 
1,182,332 

2,052,192 

16,905 
1,416 

781 
19,102 

6,674,196 

517,188 

I 7 191 384 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
STORM WATER UTILITY ENTERPRISE FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 , 2020 
(WITH COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019) 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for Service: 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Public Authorities 

Other Operating Revenues 
Total Operating Revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Operation and Maintenance: 

Street Cleaning and Flushing 
Snow Removal 
Storm Sewer Maintenance 
Storm Pond Maintenance 
Yard Waste 
Accounting and Collecting 
Uncollectible Accounts 
Administrative and General 
Outside Services Employed 
Miscellaneous General Expense 

Total Operation and Maintenance 
Depreciation 

Total Operating Expenses 

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Interest Revenue 
Interest Expense 
Amortization of Debt Related Items 
Loss on the Disposal of Capital Assets 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 
AND TRANSFERS 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS 
Plant Contributed by Private Sources 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

Net Position, January 1 

NET POSITION, DECEMBER 31 

(106) 

2020 

179,353 
245,568 
1B1,528 
143,458 

9,805 
759,712 

94,251 
32,565 
59,98B 

666 
31,761 
40,764 

52 
169,1 76 

1B,380 
19,084 

466,687 
232,328 
699,015 

60,697 

4,590 
(43,484) 

495 

(38,399) 

22,298 

22,298 

7~384 

$ 7213682 

SCHEDULE D-8 

$ 

2019 

1B1,520 
252,330 
171,5B5 
137,502 
23,264 

766,201 

113,410 
108,230 
44,525 

8B3 
11,542 
38,036 

1B1 ,409 
15,161 
17,810 

531,006 
226,351 
757,357 

8,B44 

10,815 
(41,769) 

(516) 
(8,550) 

(40,020) 

(31,176) 

50,942 

19,766 

7 Jl1_,618 

$ 7 191 384 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
STORM WATER UTILITY ENTERPRISE FUND 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

(WITH COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDE• DECEMBER 31, 2019) 

2020 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

cash Received from Customers $ 768,230 
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services (106,095) 
Cash Payments for Employee Services (375,802! 

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities 286,333 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
cash Payments for Capital Assets (379,697) 
Transfer of Debt Proceeds 260,000 
Principal Payments on Long-Term Debt (70,000) 
Interest Payments on Long-Term Debt (32,068! 

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Capital and Related Financing Activities (221,765) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Cash Received from Interest on Investments 4 .590 

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 69,158 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, January 1 534,583 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, DECEMBER 31 $ 603 741 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET 
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating Income $ 60,697 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operatlng Income to Net 

Cash Provk:led by Operating Activities : 
Change in Pension Plan Related Items: 

Asset I Liability (23,732) 
Deferred Outflows of Resources 6,798 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 17,487 

Change in OPEB Plan Related Items: 
Asset I Liab ility 2 ,789 
Deferred Outflows of Resources (2,059) 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 522 

Depreciation 232,328 
(Increase) Decrease in Assets : 

Cuslomer Accounts Receivable 1,215 
Accounts Receivable on Tax Roll 7 ,303 
Decrease in Due From Other Funds 958 
Inventories (12,629) 

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities: 
Accounts Payable (5,741) 
Ur\ust!'d vosiod E.mployiEte Bonefrt.s 397 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 286 333 

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Contributions of Capital Assets s 

(107) 

SCHEDULE D-9 

~ 

$ 767,904 
(131 ,498) 
(373,759! 
262,647 

(493 ,245) 
185,000 DEBT REPAYMENT SCHEDULES 
(65 ,000) 
(31,890! 

(405,135) 

10,815 

(131,673) 

666,256 

$ 534 583 

$ 8,844 

19,950 
(19,118) 

1,748 

885 
(450) 
766 

226,351 

10,996 
(9 ,293) 

18,395 

3,109 
464 

~2.647 

s 50,942 
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~___B!!L Total 

611121 s 43,4n.so 
1211/21 200 388,472 50 
"1122 40,02250 
12/1122 2.00 35002250 

611/23 36,922 5D 
1211/23 2.10 336,922 50 
611/24 33,77250 
12/1/24 ,,, 28:3,77250 

~1125 31 022.50 
1'11125 2.35 

'" OZ2.50 &11126 26910.00 
12/1126 2.45 331 910.00 

CllY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS 

SERIES 2012A, DATED JUNE 12, 2012 
OUTSTANDING DECEMBER 31, 2020 

Annl.lill R~uiremenls 
~ .. ei 

l\t~~~ 
PrirEiec1I lnl.l!rest -- no,. TIDU 

' ' 43,47250 ' 28,41250 ' 1,31000 s 13,15000 ' 345,000 00 43,47250 218,41250 56,31000 53,150.00 
40,022 SO 26,51250 ,..,oo 12.75000 

310,(0)00 -40,022 SO 191 ,51250 55,76000 102,75000 

36,922.50 24,85:250 21000 11,aso oo 
300,000 00 36,i22.50 209,86250 20,21000 106,850.00 

33,77.2.50 22,920 00 10,85250 
250,00000 33,772.50 177.920 00 105,85250 

31,022 SD 21,21500 9,807.50 
J5D,00000 31,022 50 27$,21500 104,807.50 

26,91000 18.21875 8,691 .25 
305,000 00 25,91000 m.21e75 108,691.25 

(108) 

SCHEDULE E-1 

~ ~ 

• , 00000 
6C,60000 

Date Dur Rat• 

611/27 ' 1211127 '" 611121!1 
12/1128 265 

611129 
12/112:9 300 
611130 
12/1130 ,.oo 

611131 
1211131 300 ~,,,, 300 

T11lal 

23,17375 
288173.75 

19 79500 
27979500 

16,35000 
291,35000 

12,22500 
327,22500 

7.50000 
3~.500.00 
152.250.00 

CllY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS 

SERIES 2012A, DATED JUNE 12, 2012 (CONTINUED) 
OUTSTANDING DECEMBER 31 , 2020 

AnnualR:119!:!irarrwnts !!!!!:5!!!~~ 
Princ:1ea1 Int.rut !c!2!Ql'C.!:f: ~ TIO"' 110 -.t 

s 23,17375 ' 1570750 ' • 7,4662:S ' 265,00000 23,17:375 180,70750 107,-46625 
19,79500 13 60375 6,191.25 

250.00000 19.795 00 168.60l 7S 111.19125 

16,35000 11.55000 4,aooo 
275,00000 16 35000 HJ1,SSOOO 109,800,00 

12225 00 9.00000 3,225.00 
315,00000 1222500 219.00000 10822500 

7.50000 5,85000 1,650.00 
350,00000 7.50000 2<1585000 111,65000 
1S0.000.00 2,250.00 ~ 

SCHEDULE E-1 

'~ ~ 

" DS9 sa2.so I J <175 000.00 I $8<1582.50 S 2ffi!l!SS.OO ~ f 1220867.50 • .1....--;...._~ 

Pj1nc::1pal 
l!ll lilfol 

Tollll 

S 2,24!,000 00 $ 130,000 00 S 1,040,000 00 S S 50,00000 
397,955.00 ~ ~ ~ 

..,.LL.642955.00 ~ J 122096'7.sq ..L...........;..L:..-.,;,_~ 

(109) 
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~~ 

4/1/21 2 30 
10/1/21 
4/1/22 2 50 
10/1/22 

411/23 2 85 
10/1/23 
4/1 /24 2 85 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS 

SERIES 20128, DATED JUNE 12, 2012 
OUTSTANDING DECEMBER 31, 2020 

Atinu.it RJ! 3·u~.tnC!'ltl &eeccois F1,1n.d~ Souteu 
Total Pmcioel 

$ 120,441 25 • 115,D00 00 
4,118 75 

134,118 75 130,000 00 
2,493 75 

92,493 75 90,000 00 
1 211 25 

86 211.25 85,000.00 

S 441088 75 S 420 000.00 

ll'l t.e R!-'W 

$ 5,441 25 

s 

4,118 75 
4,118 75 
2,493 75 

2 ,493 75 
1,211 25 
1,211,25 

21 068.75 

Principa l 
Interest 

Total 

CUOj 

TCl!.II Gcni11r1.1 C.r.t __ Tl~.c 

• 120,4<4 1 25 $ 79,418 75 • 4,118 75 3,556 25 
134,118 75 88,556 25 

2,493 75 2,493 7S 

92,493 75 92,493 75 
1,21 1 25 1,211 25 

86 211 .25 86 211 .25 

S 441 086.75 ~ 353 941 .2.i_ ___i 

$ 420,000 00 $ 335,000 00 $ 
~ 18941 .25 

$ 441 088.75 $ 353 941 25 

SCHEDULE E-2 

no_ •_t 

$ 41 ,022 so 
562 50 

45,562 50 

87 147 .50 

85,000 OD 
2.,_147 50 

87147 so 

SCHEDULE E-3 
CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 

GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS, SERIES 2013B 
DATED JUNE 26, 2013 

OUTSTANDING DECEMBER 31 , 2020 

Annual Reguk"emenls Exeecte:d Fundin9: So\lrc.es 
DateOue ~ ToUII Pnno.eaJ rn1erns1 General Ci~ TJD 112 

6/1121 s 43,968.76 s s 43,968 76 $ 21 ,746 88 s 22,221 88 
1211121 2 250 303,968 76 260 ,000.00 43,968.76 96 ,746 BB 207,221 BB 
6/1/22 41 ,043 76 41 ,04376 20,903 13 20,140 63 
12/1/22 2.500 306,043.76 265,000 00 41 ,043 76 100,903 13 205,140 63 
611/23 37,731 26 37,73126 19,903 13 17,B2B 13 
1211123 2.750 307,731 26 270,000 00 37,731 26 99,903.13 207,828.13 
6/1124 34,018.76 34,018 76 18,603.13 15,215 63 
12/1 /24 2.750 309,018.76 275,000 00 34,018.76 98,603. 13 210 ,215 63 
6/1/25 30,237 51 30,237.51 17,703,13 12,534,36 
12/1/25 3.000 410,237 51 380,000.00 30,237,51 197,703.13 212,534.38 
6/1/26 24,537 51 24,537.51 15 ,003,13 9,534.38 
12/1126 3 000 354,537 51 330,000.00 24,537,51 145,003, 13 209,534.38 
6/1/27 19,587 51 19,587.51 13,053.13 6,534 38 
12/1127 3125 309,587 51 290,000 00 19,587 ,51 98,053 13 211 ,534.38 
611/28 15,056,25 15,056 ,25 11,725.00 3,331 25 
1211/28 3.250 310 ,056 25 295 ,000 00 15,056.25 101,725 00 208 ,331.25 
6/1/29 10,262 50 10,262 50 10,262 50 
1211129 3.500 110,262.50 100,000 00 10,262 50 110,262 50 

611/30 8 ,512 50 8,512_50 8 ,512 50 
12/1/30 3 500 153,512 50 145,000 00 8 ,512 50 153,512,50 
6/1/31 5 ,975 00 5 ,975 00 5 ,975 00 
1211/31 3.500 105,975 00 100,000.00 5,975.00 105,975 00 

611/32 4,225 00 4,225,00 4,225.00 
12/1132 3 250 104,225 00 100,000 00 4,225,00 104,225 00 
6/1/33 3 250 162,600.00 160,000.00 2,600.00 162,600.00 

·----

3 522 912.64 S 2 970 000.00 s 552,912.64 $ 1743231 .32 $ 1779681 .32 

Principal $ 1,405,000 00 $ 1,565 ,000 00 
Interest 338,231 .32 214,681.32 

Total s 1743231 .32 _l___1Lljl 681 . 32 

(111) 
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SCHEDULE E-4 SCHEDULE E-5 CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORA TE PURPOSE BONDS, SERIES 2014A GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS DATED JULY 9, 2014 DATED JUNE 28, 2016 OUTSTANDING DECEMBER 31, 2020 OUTSTANDING DECEMBER 31, 2020 

AnrliatRecultC.tl'Jant& G,hrra!Ci!!X• Tb.l!!f WMt~rU!&~ Annual Reau1remen1S Eitpected Fundina Sources ~~ Talli Pnnoe!!! l~la[tsl Pnnoet1 jp,;erc•I Pru,oe.fll IP'lt.l!tKl Special 
Date Due __B,!!:,_ Total Pnnc1eal Interest Genera1Ci!1 Assessments Wate:r Sewer Slllrm 4/1/21 5 34,500 •• 5 $ 34,500 00 s s 25,600 00 $ $ 8,90000 

10/1/21 3 000 169,500 00 135,000 00 34,500 00 130,000 00 25,600 00 5,000 00 a,9•• oo 411/21 s 63.77500 s s 63,775 00 ' 57,468 76 • 2,25000 s 1,768 75 s 1,26563 s 1,021 88 411/22 32,475 00 32,475 00 23,650 00 B,82500 10/1121 2000 398,7750• 335,00• 0D 63,775 DO 332,468 715 ,42,25000 11,768 75 6,26563 6,021 88 1011122 '000 227,475 00 195,000 DO 32,475 00 135,000 00 23,650 00 60,000 00 8,625 DO 
411/23 29,550 00 29,550 00 21,625 00 7,925 00 411122 60,425 OD 60,425 00 54,71676 1,850 DO 1,66875 1,21563 97188 10/1/23 3 coo 2B4,550 00 255,000 00 29,55000 190,000 00 21,625 00 65,000 00 7,925 00 1011/22 2000 400,425 00 340,000 00 60,425 00 334,718 76 41,850 00 11,66875 6,21563 5,971 BB 4/1/24 2s.nsoo 25,72500 18,775 00 6,950 00 411123 57,02500 57,02500 51,918 76 1,450 00 1,56S 75 1,16563 92188 10/1/24 3000 265,n5oo 240,000 00 25,72500 175,000 00 18,775 00 65,000 00 6,95000 10/1123 2000 402,02500 345,00000 57,02500 336,918 76 41,450 00 11,568 75 6,16563 5,921 88 
4/1/25 22,125 00 22,125 OD 16,150 00 5,975 00 

4/1/24 53,57500 53,575 00 49,068 76 1,05000 1 46875 1,115 63 87188 
10/1/25 3000 147,125 DO 125,000 00 22,125 OD 60,000 00 16,150 00 65,000 00 5_975 00 
4/1126 20,250 00 20,250 00 15,250 00 5,000 co 1011124 2 000 393 ,57500 340,000 00 53,575 00 334,068 76 36,050 00 11,46B75 6,1 1563 5,87188 10/1126 3000 255,250 DO 235,000 00 20,250 00 165,000 00 15,250 00 70,000 00 5,000 00 411125 50,175 00 50,175 00 46,218 76 70000 1,368 75 1,06563 82188 

10/1/25 2000 395,175 00 345,00000 50,17500 336,218 76 35.700 00 11,368 75 6,06563 5,821 88 411127 16,725 00 16,72500 12,775 00 3,950 00 
10J1/27 3 500 256,725 00 240,000 00 16,725 00 170,000 00 12,775 co 70,000 00 3,950 00 

4/1/26 46,725 00 46,72500 43,318 76 35000 1,268 75 1,01563 771 BB 411/28 12,525 cc 12,52500 9,B00 00 2,72500 
10/1/26 2000 401,725 00 355,00000 46 ,725 00 343,318 76 35 ,35000 11,268 75 6,01563 5,771 88 1011/26 3 500 267,525 00 255,000 00 12,52500 185,000 OD 9,600 00 70,000 00 2,725 00 
4/1127 43,17500 43,17500 40,318 76 1,168 75 96563 721 88 4/1/29 8,062 50 8,06250 6,562 so 1,500 00 10/1/27 2000 373,1 7500 330,00000 43,17500 350,318 76 11 ,168 75 5,96563 s ,n188 10J1129 3 750 25B,062 50 250,000 00 8,062 50 170,000 00 6,552 so B0,000 00 1,500 00 

4/1/30 3,375 DO 3,375 OD 3,375 00 
10/1/30 3 750 183,375 DO 1B0,000 00 3,375 00 180,000 00 3,375 00 

----
S 2 520 625.00 S 2.110.000.00 s 410 625 00 S 1560000 00 • 307 125.00 • 550 000.00 • 103 500.00 

(1 12) 
1113J 
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4/1128 
1011/28 2000 
411/28 

10/1129 2000 

4/1/JO 
10/1130 2125 
411/31 

10/1/J1 2250 

411132 
11l11/32 2375 
411/JJ 

1011133 2500 

411/34 
1011/34 2625 
411/JS 

1011135 2750 

411136 2750 

CllY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORA Tc PURPOSE BONDS (CONTINUED) 

DATcD JUNE 28, 2016 
OUTSTANDING DECEMBER l1, 2020 

Annual Reguiremr:nls E)cpected Funding Soun:es 
Special 

SCHEDULE E-5 

~ Principal Interest General City Assessments Water ______§=!!!!, Storm 

' 39,875 00 • • 39,875 00 ' 37,21876 • • 1.06875 ' 91563 • 67188 
374,87500 335,00000 39,875 00 352.218 76 11 ,0158 75 5,91553 5,671 88 
36,S2500 36,52500 34,06876 06875 66563 62188 

376,525 00 :,,0.00000 36,52500 354,C6876 10,968 75 5,865 63 5,621 88 

33,12500 33,12500 30,86B76 86875 81563 571 88 
378,125 00 345,000 00 33,12500 355,868 76 10,868 75 5,81563 5,571 88 

29,45938 29,45938 27,41563 76250 76250 51875 
389,459 38 360 00000 29,459 38 362,41563 10,76250 10 762 50 5,518 75 

25,40938 25,40938 23,54686 65000 65000 46250 
395,409 38 370,00000 25,409 38 368,646 88 10,55000 10.55000 5,46250 
21,015 63 21,015 63 19,55000 53125 53125 40313 

396,015 63 375,00000 21,•1563 369,55• 00 10,53125 1•,53125 5,40313 

16,32813 16,32813 15175 00 40625 40625 34063 
401,328 13 385,000 00 16,328 13 375 175 00 10,40Ei25 10,406 25 5,34063 

11,27500 11 ,275 00 10,450 00 27500 27500 27500 
411 ,27500 400,00000 11 ,27500 380,45000 10,27500 10.27500 10,27500 

425 775.00 420,000.00 5775.00 395 36250 ~ 10,137.50 ~ 

~ $ 5 720 000.00 $ 1 181 550.04 ~ 6 223 212.72 J 240 300.00 ~ $ 136200.1g I 110075.JZ 

"""""" s s ,135,aoooo $ 225,000 00 $160,00000 • 110,00000 • 90,000 00 ..... ~ 1.Q!!:!!:,212.72 15 300.00 31 762.50 26.200.10 ~ 

Total 5 6 223 212.72 S 240300.00 ~ S 136200.19 • 110075.12 

(114) 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
GENERAL OBLIGATION PROMISSORY NOTE 

DATED JULY 19, 2016 
OUTSTANDING DECEMBER 31, 2020 

Annunl R!9LJlremenrs 
~ ~ Tola! Prtncloal 

6/1/21 2.60 1 ~05100 1 74150_00 1 

(115) 

SCHEDULE E-6 

lnlerest 

1_901 _00 
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SCHEDULE E-7 
CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 

STATE TRUST FUND LOAN 
DATED DECEMBER 6, 2016 

OUTSTANDING DECEMBER 31, 2020 

Annual Re9uirements 

~ ~ Total Princieal Interest 

3115/21 4 50 $ 336,534 74 $ 207,387 32 $ 129,147.42 

3/15/22 450 336,534 74 216,719 75 119,814,99 SCHEDULE E-8 
CllY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 

3/15123 450 336,534 74 226,472 14 110,062,60 GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS 
DATED MAY 9, 2D17 3/15/24 4.50 336,534 74 236,389 76 100,144.98 OUTSTANDING DECEMBER 31, 202D 

3115125 450 336,534.74 247,300 92 89,233 .82 

3/15/26 450 336,534.74 258,429 46 78,105 28 Annual Re9.iirement& EKe:c:tecl Fund1~ Sources 
Dale Oue Rate Total Pr1 rc ipal lnlerest Total General City W astewater Water Storm ------ -------3/15/27 450 336,534.74 270 ,058 79 66,475 95 

4/1/21 $ 46 931 25 $ s 46,!m 25 • 46,931 25 ' 30,50625 S 6,07500 ' 5,700 00 s 4,650 00 
3/15/28 4.50 336,534,74 282,062 60 54,472 14 1[]11f21 300 266,931 25 220,00000 46,931 2S 256,931 25 185,50625 26,075 00 25,70000 29,65000 

3115/29 4.50 336,534.74 294,9042 5 41 ,630 49 411122 43,631 25 43,631 25 43,631 25 28,181 25 5,77500 5,40000 4,27500 
10/1122 300 323,631 25 260,00000 43,631 25 323,631 25 1~.1B125 25,775 00 95.o!IOOOO 29,27500 

3/15/30 4.50 336,534.74 308,174.94 28,359 BO 411'23 39,43125 39,431 25 39,43125 26,006 25 5 475 00 4,05000 3,900 00 
10/1123 300 2541,431 25 215,00000 39,43125 254,431 25 106,006 25 25,475 00 9-4,05000 28 900 OD 

3/15/31 450 336,534.73 322.•42 80 14,491 93 411/24 36,206 25 36,206 25 36,20625 24,806 25 SJ 7500 2 700 00 3,525 00 
1~112• 300 336_20625 300,000 00 36,206 25 336,20625 189,11'.>625 25,175 DO 92 700 00 28,525 00 $ 3,701 ,882 13 $ 2.869 942.73 $ 83\939 40 </1125 3170625 31,70625 31 ,70625 22,331 25 4 ,87500 1,35000 3,15000 
10/1125 JOO 236,70625 205.00000 31,70625 236,70625 92,331 25 24,87500 91 ,35000 28,15000 

4f1/2S 28,631 25 2B,6J1 25 28,6J1 25 21,281 25 4,S7500 2,775 00 
10/1126 300 143,631 25 115,00000 28,63125 143.631 25 91,28125 24,575 OD 21.nsoo 
-4/1127 26,906 25 26,90625 26,90625 20,231 25 4,275 DO :Z.400 00 

10/1/27 3 00 156,906 25 130,00000 26,906 25 156,906 25 105,231 25 2-4 275 00 27 400 00 

411128 24,95625 24,95625 24,95625 18,95625 3,97500 2,02500 
10/1128 300 159,956 25 135.(XN)OO 24,956 2S 159,~25 10J,956 25 28.97500 2702500 
<11129 22931 25 22,93125 22,931 25 17,68125 3 600 00 1,65000 
10/1r.!9 300 14293125 120,00000 22.931 25 142,931 25 87,68125 2860000 26,55000 

(1 17) 

(116) 
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CllY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORA TE PURPOSE BONDS (CONTINUED) 

DATED MAY9, 2017 
OUTSTANDING DECEMBER 31, 2020 

~ t Rql,811rM,0 &pea~ J:~ SiM.c:a 
~ ~ T~ r' r~p•I l!U?nl 1aod ~~~ 

411130 
1Q/113Cl 
4'1131 
10,1/31 

-4/1132 
11).11/32 
411/33 
1Cl/1/3J 

411/34 
10/1134 
<11135 
10/i/35 

4/1/36 
10/1136 
411137 

300 

300 

300 

300 

325 

325 

350 
350 

s 21 ,131 .25 $ 
261 ,131 .25 

17.53125 
362.53125 

12,356 25 
152,356 25 
10,256~ 

125,256 25 

8.531 25 
128.531 25 

6,58125 
131 ,581 25 

240,000Jl0 

345,00000 

140,00000 

115,000 00 

120,00000 

125,00000 

$ 21,13125 $ 
21 ,131.25 
17.531 25 
17,531 25 

12,35625 
12,356 25 
10,25625 
10,25625 

B.53125 
8,531 25 
6 ,581 .ZS 
6,581 25 

4,550 00 4,550 00 
129,550 00 125,000 00 4,550 00 

21,131.25 S 
261 ,1 31 .25 

17,531 25 
362,531 25 

12,356 25 
152,35625 
10,25625 

125,256 25 

8,531 25 
128,531 25 

S.581 25 
131,581 25 

4,550 00 
129,55000 

137.362.50 135 000.00 2 362.50 ~ 

16,631.25 
116,K31..25 
15,13125 

225,131 25 

11,98125 
126,981 25 
10,256 25 

125,25625 

8,531 25 
128,53125 

6,581 25 
131,581 25 

-4,55000 
129,550 00 
1'37 362.50 

S 3,225.00 S 
113,225.00 

1,STSOO 
106,57500 

$ 3 8J1 900.00 $ 3 065 000.00 t 766.900.00 S 3831 900.00 S 2.539 650.00 S502200.00 S 418 400.00 

Principal 
Interest 

Total 

S 3,065,000 DO S 1,970,00000 5405,00000 S 380,00000 
766900.00 569 650.00 97 200.00 3B 400.00 

53831900.00 S 2539650.00 S502200.00 S 418400.00 

(118) 

• 
$ 

• 

SCHEDULE E-8 

....... 
1,275 00 

31,275 00 
825 00 

J0,825 00 

37500 
25 375 00 

3711550.00 

310,00000 
§1.§_SO_,QQ_ 

371 650.00 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
GENERAL OBLIGATION PROMISSORY NOTE 

DATED JUNE 1, 2017 
OUTSTANDING DECEMBER 31, 2020 

Dale Due ~ Total Princie.al 

611/21 

6/1/22 

3,00 

3.00 

$ 77,166 34 

77,188.34 

$ 154,376.68 

(119) 

$ 72,757 41 

74,940.14 

$ 147,697.55 $ 

SCHEDULE E-9 

Interest 

4 ,430 93 

2,248.20 

6,679.13 
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SCHEDULE E-10 
CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 

GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS 
DATED OCTOBER 3, 2018 

OUTSTANDING DECEMBER 31, 2020 

Mnu.al Ro,:iuht111Jii~1 ExttdH F~ ScUKff 
~~ To:;111 P,n:1cal l l'IUtfff\ G«in.1tralC!!t TIO-S s.-, S!Ottn 

4/1/21 • 43 ,781 25 $ • 43,781 25 • 25 ,625 00 ' 6,510 00 s 3,310 00 • 8,336 25 
1011121 2100 783,781 25 740.000 00 43,781 25 80,625 00 626,510 00 28,310 00 48,336 25 
4/1122 36,011 25 36,011 25 25,047 50 3,047 50 7,916 25 

10/1/22 2 250 191,011 25 155,000 00 36,011 25 115,047 50 28,047 50 47,916 25 

4/1/23 34,267 so 34 ,267 50 24,035 00 2,766 25 7,466 25 
10J1/23 2350 209,267 so 175,000 00 34,267 50 134,035 00 27,766 25 47 ,466 25 
4/1124 32,211 25 32,21125 22,742 50 2.472 so 6,996 25 

1011/24 2 500 202,211 25 170,000 00 32,211 25 122.742 50 32,472 50 46,996 25 

4/1/25 30 ,086 25 30,086 25 21,49250 2,097 50 6,496 25 
10/1/25 2 600 200,086 25 170.000 00 30,086 25 121,492 50 32,097 50 46,496 25 
411126 27,876 25 27 ,876 25 20.192 50 1,707 50 5,976 25 
10/1/26 2 700 207,876 25 1B0,000 00 27,876 25 125,192 so 31,707 50 50,976 25 

4/1127 25,446 25 25 ,446 25 1B,775 00 1,302 50 S,36B 75 
10/1/27 2 BOO 210,446 25 185,000 00 25,446 25 12B,775 00 31,302 50 50,368 75 
4/1128 22,856 25 22,856 25 17,235 00 88250 4,738 75 
10/1128 2 900 212,856 25 190,000 00 22,856 25 127,235 00 35,882 50 49,738 75 

4/1129 20,101 25 20,101 25 15,640 00 375 00 4,086 25 
10/1/29 3 000 205 ,101 25 185,000 00 20 ,10125 125,640 00 25 ,375 00 54,0B6 25 
4/1/30 17,326 25 17,326 25 13,990 00 3,336 25 
10/1/30 3 150 102,326 25 85,000 00 17,326 25 78 ,990 00 23,336 25 

(120) 

~~ 

4/1/31 
1011/31 3150 
4/1/32 
10/1/32 3 300 

4/1/33 
10/1/33 3 300 
411/34 
10/1/34 3 450 

4/1/35 
10/1/35 3 450 
4/1/36 
1011/36 3 600 

4/1/37 
10/1/37 3 600 
4/1138 
10/1/3B 3 650 

SCHEDULE E~10 
CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS , WISCONSIN 

GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS (CONTINUED) 
DATED OCTOBER 3, 2018 

OUTSTANDING DECEMBER 31, 2020 

ArlllliAl Re9uu'Cl'Dlll\a &;:!ed.eCI FunO:u,o SO-urce, 
"TCl111 Pf1nclc1I 11'1!4''4!!1.1 G«lel'II Ct!): TU>.S s ..... St~m 

s 15,9B7 50 • s 15,987 50 • 12,966 25 s s • 3,021 25 
105,987 so 90,000 00 15,987 50 82,966 25 23,021 25 

14,570 00 14,570 00 11 ,863 75 2,706 25 
104,570 00 90,00000 14,570 DO B1,863 75 22,706 25 

13,085 00 13,085 00 10,706 75 2,376 25 
108,085 00 95 ,000 00 13,0B5 00 85,708 75 22,376 25 

11,517 so 11,51750 9,471 25 2,046 25 
106,517 50 95,000 00 11 ,517 50 84,471 25 22,046 25 

9,678 75 9 ,67B 75 8 ,177 50 1,701 25 
104,875 75 95,000 00 9.878 75 83 ,177 50 21.701 25 

8,240 00 8,240 00 6,883 75 1,356 25 
113,240 00 105,000 00 8,240 00 86,883 75 25,356 25 

6,350 00 6,350 00 5,443 75 906 25 
156,350 00 150,000 00 6 ,350 00 130,443 75 25,906 25 

3,650 00 J ,650 00 3,193 75 45625 
203,650.00 200,000.00 3,650.00 178,193.75 25,456.25 

~901,4~ $ 3 155 COO.OD J_ 746 4B5 00 S 2 246 967 50 $ 633 020 .00 • 290 922 50 • 730575.00 

P rincipal 
Interest 

Total 

S 1,700,000 00 $ 620 ,000 00 S 255,000 00 S 580,000 00 
546,967 50 13 020 00 35 922.50 150 575.00 

S 2 246 967.50 $ 633 020.00 S 290 922 50 $ 730 575.00 

(121) 
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SCHEDULE E-11 SCHEDULE E-11 CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORA TE PURPOSE BONDS GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS (CONTINUED) 

DATED JUNE 12, 2019 DATED JUNE 12, 2019 
OUTSTANDING DECEMBER 31, 2020 OUTSTANDING DECEMBER 31 , 2020 

AMuo.iReow.r~ Exeected FutH:111\:5! s ·oLPOH .l\flinL1.11RH Ud'ltl"l"!tn!" El!~m:1.cd furJcun; $.owrcn 
~ ~ Tot~I Princ:-1eal PnteUtll Gotiia ral C:~ Woto r ,,.,..., S::o:m Date Due .....B.!!L_ Toto.I P1.u1c:ig • 1 tnw•~ GentrllC~ W•ttir s.,-...,, stolffl 

6/1/21 • 34,950 00 • s 34,950 00 • 22,275 00 • 4,875 00 $ 5,175 00 s 2,625 00 6/1/32 s 19,425 00 s $ 19,425 co • 13,275 00 • 2,400 DO s 2,550 00 • 1,200 00 1211/21 3 00 69,950 00 35 ,000 00 34.950 00 22.275 00 19,875 OD 20,17500 7,625 00 12/1132 3 00 169,425 00 150,000 00 19,425 00 113,275 00 22,400 00 22,550 00 11 ,200 00 
6/1/33 17,17500 17,175 00 11,775 00 2 ,100 00 2 ,250 00 1,050 00 6/1/22 34,425 OD 34,425 DO 22,275 00 4,650 DO 4,95000 2,550 00 12/1133 3 00 167. 175 00 150.000 00 17,175 00 111 ,775 00 22,100 OD 22,250 00 11,050 00 12/1/22 3 OD 69.425 00 35,000 00 34,425 00 22,275 00 19,650 00 19,950 00 7,550 00 

611/23 33,900 00 33,900 00 22,275 00 4,425 00 4,725 00 2,475 00 6/1/34 14,925 00 14,925 DO 10,275 00 1,B00 OD 1,950 00 900 00 1211123 300 68,900 00 35,000 00 33,900 00 22,275 00 19,425 00 19,725 00 7,475 00 1211134 300 169,925 00 155,000 00 14,925 00 115,275 00 21,600 00 21,950 OD 10,!ilOO 00 
611/JS 12,600 00 12,600 00 8,700 00 1,500 00 1,650 00 750 00 611/24 33,375 00 33,375 00 22 ,275 00 4,200 00 4.500 00 2.400 00 1211135 3 00 172,600 00 160,000 00 12,600 00 118,700 00 21.500 00 21,650 00 10.750 00 12/1/24 3 00 73,375 00 40,000 00 JJ,375 00 22,275 00 19.200 00 19,500 00 12,400 00 

6/1/25 32,775 00 32,775 00 22,275 00 3,975 00 4,275 00 2,250 00 6/1136 10,2DO 00 10,200 00 7,050 00 1,200 00 1,35000 60000 12/1/25 3 00 152,775 00 120,000 OD 32,775 DO 102,275 00 18,975 00 19,275 00 12,250 00 12/1/36 3 OD 170,200 00 160,000 00 10,200 00 1H,050D0 21,200 00 21,350 00 10,600 00 
611137 7,800 00 7,BOD 00 5,400 00 90000 1,050 00 450 00 6/1/26 30,975 DD 30,975 OD 21,075 OD 3,75000 4,050 00 2,100 00 12/1137 3 00 17:2,80000 165,000 00 7,80000 120,400 00 20,900 00 21,050 00 1D,450 00 12/1/26 3 00 155,975 OD 125,000 00 J0 ,975 00 106,075 DO 18,750 DO 19,050 00 12,100 cc 

6/1127 29,100 OD 29,100 00 19,800 00 3,525 00 3,825 00 1,950 00 6/1136 5,325 00 5,325 00 3,675 00 600 00 750 00 30000 12/1/27 3 00 154.1 0000 125,000 00 29.10000 104,800 00 18,525 00 18.825 00 11.950 00 12/1/38 3 00 180,325 00 175,000 00 5 ,325 00 123,675 00 20,600 00 25,750 00 10,300 00 
6/1139 3 00 182 700.00 180.000 00 2,700 .00 126,875,00 20,300.00 25,375.00 10,150.00 6(1/28 27,225 00 27,225 00 18,525 00 3,300 00 3,600 00 1,800 00 

12/1128 300 157,225 00 130,000 00 27.225 00 108,525 00 18,300 00 18,600 00 11,800 00 S 316115000 S 2 330 000. 00 • 631 150 00 $ 2 043 975 DO $ 428 BOO DD $ 457 425 OD $ 230 950.00 611/29 25,275 00 25,275 00 17,175 OD 3,075 00 3,375 00 1,650 00 
12/1'29 300 155,275 00 130,000 00 25.275 DO 107,175 DO 18,075 00 18,375 00 11,650 00 

Principal 5 1,465 .000 00 $ 325 ,000 00 $ 345,000 00 s 175,000 00 6/1/30 23,325 00 23,325 00 15,825 00 2 ,650 00 3,150 00 1,500 00 Interest 558.975.00 103.800 00 112,42500 55,950 00 12/1/30 3 00 148,325 00 125,000 uo 23,325 00 95,825 00 17,850 00 23,150 00 11,500 00 
6/1'31 21,450 00 21 ,450 00 14,625 OD 2,625 OD 2,850 00 1,350 00 Total 5 2 043 975 00 $ 428 800 00 • 457 425 .00 • 230 950.00 12/1/31 3 00 156,450 00 135,000 00 21,450 00 104,625 00 17,625 OD 22,BSD DD 11,350 OD 

(122) (123) 
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SCHEDULE E-12 
CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 

GENERAL OBLIGATION PROMISSORY NOTES 
DATED JUNE 12, 2019 

OUTSTANDING DECEMBER 31, 2020 

Annual Reguirements 
Date Due ~ Total ~al Interest 

611/21 $ 8,325.00 $ $ 8,325 ,00 
12/1/21 3 00 143,325 00 135,000 .00 8,325.00 SCHEDULE E-13 

CllY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 

6/1/22 6,300 00 6,300 .00 GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS, SERIES 20208 
DA TEO AUGUST 11, 2020 12/1/22 3.00 141,300 00 135,000 ,00 6,300.00 OUTSTANDING DECEMBER 31 , 2020 

6/1/23 4,275.00 4,275.00 
12/1123 3 00 144,275.00 140,000 00 4,275.00 Artnu1I koo1.~mentt. EJl'Mttea FU"l'll~i Sou,c.., 

~...E!!L T0:t1! P~al 1muts:: to1a1 Ge-1'\~-UII Ct~ s .... , S10tm 
6/1/24 2,175.00 2,175 00 

12/1/24 3,00 147,175.00 145,000.00 ___ 2_,175.00 6/1/21 • 44,950 00 • s 44,950 00 s 44,950 00 s 33,43055 • 7,330 56 • 4,188 89 
12/1121 3 DD 67 ,900 00 40,000 00 27,900 00 67,900 00 20,750 00 29,550 00 17,600 00 

_i______fil17.15MQ_ _$_555 000.00 l 42 150.00 6/1/22 27,500 00 27.500 00 27,500 00 20,750 00 4 ,300 00 2,450 00 
12/1'22 30D 107,500,00 80,000 OD 27,500 00 107,500 00 60,750 OD 29,300 DO 17,450 DO 
6/1/23 26,700 00 26,700 00 26,700 DO 20,350 00 4,050 00 2,300 00 
12/1/23 3 OD 156,700 00 130,000 00 26,700 00 156,700 00 120,350 OD 24,050 00 12,300 00 

6/1124 25,400 00 25 400 00 25,400 00 19,350 00 3,850 00 2,200 00 
1211/24 3 00 155,400 00 130,000 00 25.400 00 155,400 00 119,350 00 23 ,850 00 12,200 00 
6/1125 24,100 00 24,100 00 24,100 00 18,350 00 3,650 00 2 ,100 00 
1211/25 3 00 179,10000 155,000,00 24,100 00 179,100 00 143.350 00 23 ,650 00 12.100 00 

6/1126 22,550 00 22,550 00 22,550 00 17,100 DO 3,450 00 2,000 OD 
1211/26 3 DO 177,550 00 155,DOO 00 22,550 00 177,550 00 142,100 00 23,450 00 12,000 00 
6/1/27 21 ,000 00 21,000 OD 21,000 00 15,850 00 3,250 00 1,900 00 
1211/27 3 DO 176,000 00 155,000 00 21,000 00 176,000 00 140,850 00 23,250 00 11,900 00 

611128 19,450 00 19,450 00 19,450 00 14,600 00 3 ,050 00 1,8000D 
12/1/28 3 00 179,450,00 160,000 OD 19,450 00 179,450 00 144,600 OD 23,050 00 11,800 00 
6/1129 17,850,00 17,850 00 17,850 00 13,300 00 2,850 00 1,700 00 
1211/29 3 00 177,850 00 160,000,00 17,850 00 177,850 00 143,300 00 22,850 00 11,70D DO 

6/1/30 16,250 00 16,250 00 16,250 00 12,000 00 2,650 00 1,600 00 
12/1/JO 3 00 176,250 00 160,000 00 16,250 00 176,250 00 142,000 00 22,650 00 11 ,600 00 
6/1'31 14,650 00 14,650 00 14.650 00 10.700 00 2,450 00 1.50D00 
12/1/31 3 DO 1'19,650 OD 135,000 00 14,650 00 149,650 00 110,700 00 22 ,450 00 16,500 00 

(125) 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS, SERIES 20208 (CONTINUED) 

DATED AUGUST 11, 2020 
OUTSTANDING DECEMBER 31, 2020 

An nu al R!9uirements Expected Fundin!! Sources 
~...B.!!L Total Principal Interest Total General City Sewer 

611/32 $ 13,300 00 s s 13,300 00 $ 13,300 00 5 9,700 00 $ 2,250 DO 
12/1/32 3 00 153,300 00 140,000 00 13,300 00 153,300 00 109,700 00 27,250 00 
611J33 11,900 00 11,900 00 11 ,900 00 8,700 00 2,000 00 
12/1/33 300 151,900 00 140,000 00 11 .90000 151 ,900 00 108,700 00 27,000 00 

6/1/3.11 10,500 OD 10,500 DO 10,500 DO 7,700 DO 1,750 00 
12/1/34 3 00 155,500 00 145,000 00 10,500 00 155,500 00 112,700 00 26,750 00 
6/1/35 9,050 00 8,050 00 9,050 00 6,650 00 1,500 00 
12/1/35 3 00 154 ,050 00 145,000 00 9 ,050 00 154,050 00 111,650 00 26,500 00 

611/36 7,600 00 7,1500 00 7,600 00 5 ,600 00 1,250 00 
12/1'36 300 152,6D0 00 145,000 00 7,600 00 152,600 00 110,600 00 26,250 00 
6/1'37 6,150.00 6,150 00 6,150 00 4,550 DO 1,000 00 
12/1/37 3 00 156,150 OD 150,000 00 6,150 00 156,150 00 114,550 00 26,000 00 

6/1'38 4,650 00 4,650 00 4,650 00 3,450 00 750 00 
1211/38 3 00 154,650 00 150,000 00 4 ,650 00 154,650 00 113,450 00 25 ,750 00 
611/39 3,150 00 3,150 00 3 .150 00 2,350 00 50000 
12/1139 3 00 158,15000 155,000 00 3,150 00 158,150 00 117,35000 25,500 00 

6/1/40 3 00 161 600.00 160 000.00 1,600.00 161.600.00 121,200.00 25 250.00 

$ 3 427 950.00 S 2 790 000.00 s 637 950.00 $ 3 427 950.00 $ 2 552 480.55 s 556 230 .56 

Principal $ 2. 790,0DO 00 $ 2,075,000 00 s 455,000 00 
Interest 637,950.00 477,480.55 101,230.56 

Total $ 3 427 9S0.00 S 2 552 480.55 s 556 230 .56 

1!201 

SCHEDULE E-13 

Storm 

s 1,35000 
16,350 00 

1,200 00 
16,200 00 

1,050 00 
16,050 00 

900 00 
15,900 00 

75000 
15,750 00 

600 00 
15,600 00 

450 00 
15,450 00 

30000 
15,300 oo"' 

15 150.00 

s 319 238.89 

s 260,000 00 
59,238 .89 

s 319 238 .89 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
WATER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS - SAFE DRINKING 
WATER LOAN PROGRAM DATED JANUARY 13, 2010 

OUTSTANDING DECEMBER 31, 2020 

SCHEDULE E-14 

Payment Date Total Princieal Interest 

511/21 $ 86,344 ,03 $ 76,161 05 $ 10,182.98 
11/1/21 9,166.99 9,166,99 

511122 87,360.01 78,19302 9,166.99 
11/1/22 8,123 .90 8,123,90 

5/1/23 88,40310 80,279.22 8,123.88 
1111/23 7,052 97 7,052.97 

511/24 89,474.03 82,421 .06 7,052.97 
11/1/24 5,953 47 5,953.47 

511125 90,573.54 84,620,06 5,953.48 
11/1125 4,824 64 4,824,64 

511/26 91,702 36 86,877.72 4,824 64 
11/1/26 3,665 69 3,665.69 

5/1127 92 ,861 32 89,195,62 3,665 70 
11/1127 2,475.82 2,475 82 

511/28 94,051 19 91,575,36 2,475 83 
11/1/28 1,25421 1,254.21 

511/29 95,272 80 94 018.59 1,25421 

$ 858 560.07 $ 763 341.70 $ 95 218.37 

Interest at 2.668% 

(127) 
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SCHEDULE E-15 SCHEDULE E-16 
CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 

SEWERAGE SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS - CLEAN WATER FUND SEWERAGE SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS -CLEAN WATER FUND 
DATED APRIL 27, 2011 DATED DECEMBER 23, 2015 

OUTSTANDING DECEMBER 31 , 2020 OUTSTANDING DECEMBER 31 , 2020 

Palment Date Total Princieal Interest Annual Reguirements 
Date Due Total Principal Interest 

511/21 $ 185,82063 $ 163,888 24 $ 21 ,932 39 
1111/21 19,965 73 19,965 73 5/1/21 $ 122,679 59 s 106,105.03 $ 16,574 56 

1111121 15,604 23 15,604.23 
511/22 187,787 29 167,821 55 19,965,74 

5/1/22 123,649 92 108,045.69 15,604 23 11/1/22 17,951.87 17,951.87 
1111122 14,616 15 14,616.15 511/23 189,801 15 171,849,27 17,951 .88 5/1123 124,638 01 110,021 85 14,61616 11/1/23 15,889,68 15,889.68 1111/23 13,610 01 13,610 01 

5/1/24 191,863.34 175,973 65 15,889.69 5/1/24 125,644 16 112,03415 13,610 01 
11/1/24 13,778.00 13,77B,00 11/1/24 12,585 45 12,585 45 
5/1/25 193,975.02 180,197,02 13,778.00 5/1/25 126,668.70 114,083 25 12,585 45 
11/1/25 11,615.64 11,615.64 11/1/25 11 ,54216 11,54216 

5/1/26 127,711 99 116,169.83 11,542 16 5/1126 196,137.38 184,521 75 11,615.63 1111/26 10,479 79 10,479.79 11/1126 9,401 .37 9,401 .37 511127 128,774 37 118,294 59 10,479 78 
511/27 198,351 ,65 188,950.27 9,401 .38 11/1/27 9,397 9B 9,397 9B 

11/1/27 7,133.97 7,133.97 
5/1/28 129,85617 120,458 19 9,397 98 

5/1/28 200,619,05 193,4B5 OB 7,133,97 11/1/28 B,296 39 8,296 39 
11/1/2B 4,B12,15 4,812.15 5/1/29 130,957 76 122,661 37 8,296 39 
5/1/29 202,940.87 198,128 72 4,812.15 11/1129 7,174 65 7,174.65 
11/1/29 2,434.61 2,434 61 5/1/30 132,079.51 124,904 85 7,174.66 

1111/30 6 ,032 40 6,032 40 
5/1130 205,318.41 202,883.81 2,434 60 5/1/31 133,221 76 127,1B9 36 6,032.40 

11/1/31 4,869 26 4,869,26 
$ 2 055 597.81 $ 1 827 699.36 $ 227 B9B.45 

5/1/32 134,384 88 129,515 64 4,869 24 
11/1/32 3 ,684 84 3,684 84 Interest at 2 400% 
511/33 135,569 31 131,884 49 3,684 82 
11/1/33 2,478 75 2,478 75 

5/1/34 136,77540 134,296.65 2,478,75 
11/1/34 1,250.60 1,250.60 
5/1/35 138,003 55 136 752.94 1,250.61 

i 2072237 .74 § 1 812 417.88 i 259 819.86 

Interest at 1 829% 

(128) (129) 
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STATISTICAL INFORMATION 
(UNAUDITED) 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
WATER UTILITY ENTERPRISE FUND 

RATE OF RETURN 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

(WITH COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2019) 

2020 
RATE BASE [AVERAGE BALANCES]: 

Utility Plant $ 17,393,219 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 7,323,273 

Net Utility Plant in Service 10,069,946 

Add: Materials and Supplies 90,160 

Less: Regulatory Liability 16B,413 

RATE BASE $ 9 991,693 

OPERATING INCOME (Regulatory Basis) $ 49B 547 

RATE OF RETURN 4.99% 

(130) 

~ 

$ 16,701,720 
6,986,316 

9,715,404 

90,563 

216,531 

$ 9,5B9 436 

$ 320 126 

3-34%_ 
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TABLE 1 
CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 

MILL RATE AND BUDGET HISTORY 
DECEMBER 31, 2020 

Ctty Budget and Tax Levies for the Past Ten Years : 

Levy Rate Levy Rate General Fund 
Year of per $1,000 of per $1,000 of Budgeted 

Le~/Bud9et Assessed Value Egualized Value ~endiluces 

2011/12 8 554 8.176 $ 11,947,964 
2012113 8 551 8.588 11,739,597 
2013114 B.597 8672 11,979,623 
2014115 8591 8.589 11,910,625 
2015/16 8 997 B 742 12,028,770 
2016/17 9,036 B 471 12,194,590 
2017/18 9,180 8 374 12,278,524 
2018/19 9,685 8 529 12,504,994 
2019/20 9.991 8244 12,936,301 
2020/21 7,737 6295 13,059,211 

Mill Rates per §1,000 of Assessed Value for the Past Five Years: 

Year of Levy: 2016 2017 2018 2019 ~o 

State $ 0 181 $ $ $ $ 
County 3 726 3.840 3 908 4083 3169 
City 9 036 9180 9685 9 991 7 737 
Schaal District 9189 8.998 10.552 10632 8 342 
Technical College 0.936 0 9,:S 0.961 1.020 0,917 

Gross Tax Rate 23.068 22.964 25.106 25.72B 20.165 

Schaal Tax Credit (1.459) (1.578) (1.447) {1.484) p .134) 

Net Tax Rate $ 21.609 s 21 .386 $ 23.659 $ 24.242 $ 19.031 

(131) 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
ASSESSED VALUES AND EQUALIZED VALUES 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 
(UNAUDITED) 

Total Assessed and Equalized Values for the Past Ten Years: 

Assessed Equalized 
Value % Change Value % Change 

2011 $ 739,655,860 2 .15% $ 773,817,100 301% 
2012 798,205.330 7.92% 794,847,900 2.72% 
2013 806,084,410 0 99% 799,102,400 054% 
2014 817,505,620 142% 817,664,900 2 32% 
2015 816,085,660 --017% 839,938,100 272% 
2016 813,267,140 --035% 867,418,800 3 27% 
2017 821,204,500 0 98% 900,213,300 3 78% 
2018 881,208,700 731% 1,000,582,900 1115% 
2019 896,517,600 1 74% 1,116,087,900 11 .54% 
2020 1,211 ,818,800 3517% 1,227,874,800 10.02% 

Equalized Value by Class of Property for 2020: 

Assessed Percent Equalized Percent 
Value ta Total Value ~ 

Real Estate: 
Residential $ 651,741 ,800 53.78% $ 660,131,300 53 76% 
Commercial 380,013,300 31 ,36% 378,417,500 30.82% 
Manufacturing 126,150,000 10.41% 127,841 ,200 1041% 
Agricultural 111,300 0,01% 51 ,300 000% 
Forest 0,00% 453,200 0.04% 
other 6,700 0 .00% 000% 

Total Real Estate 1,158,023,100 ~ 1, 166.894,500 95.03% 
Total Personal Property 53,795.700 4.44% 60980.300 4.97% 

Total S 1,211 ,818.800 ~ S 1.227.874,800 ~ 

Percentage Mix of Equalized Value by Class of Property for lhe Past Five Years; 

2016 2017 2018 2019 
Real Estate: 

Residential 56.27% 57.02% 5360% 54.16% 
Commercial 2644% 26.79% 31 .23% 30.04% 
Manufacturing 1196% 1158% 1132% 10.37% 
Agricultural 001% 001% 000% 000% 
Forest 004% 0 04% 004% 0 03% 
Other 008% 0 00% 0 00% 0 00% 

Personal Property 5.20% 4.56% 3.81% 5.40% 
100 00% 100 00% 100 00% 100 00% 

(132) 

TABLE 2 

Ratio of 
Assessed to 

E9ualized Value 

95 59% 
10042% 
100 87% 

99 98% 
9716% 
93 76% 
9122% 
88.07% 
80.33% 
98.69% 

Ratio of 
Assessed to 

E9ualized Value 

98 73% 
10042% 

98.68% 
216 96% 

000% 
100 00% 
99.24¼ 
88.22% 
98.59% 

2020 

53.76% 
30,82% 
10.41% 

0,00% 
004% 
0,00% 
4.97% 

100 00% 
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Name 

Mills Fleet Farm 

EOG Resources Inc 

Chippewa Falls Warehouse, Inc. 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
TEN LARGEST TAXPAYERS 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 
(UNAUDITED) 

Assessed 
Valuation 

ProducUBusiness 1/1/20 

Distribution Center s 65,432,200 

Sand Processing Plant 43,736,700 

Trucking Transfer Facility 18,307,900 

Hewlett Packard Enterprise Company Technology 15,765,400 

Mason Shoe Mfg, Footwear 11,285,800 

Lakeland Drive LLC-Nordson EDI Manufacturing 11,099,300 

Premium Waters lnc Bottled Water Company 10,602,000 

TIM Advanced Circuits Circuit Boards Manufacturer 9,164,500 

Spectrum Industries Inc Office Furniture 9,035,900 

Abode Rentals of CF LLC Real Estate 8,417,500 

• Based on Net Rate of 019030B72 

NOTE: This includes all real estate and personal property. 

(133) 

TABLE 3 

NetTaxes 
2020 

~ Roll 

s 1,245,173 

832,289 

348,181 

299,679 

214,194 

211,171 

201,648 

174,292 

171,727 

158,790 

Date of Incorporation 

Form of Government 

Area: 
1920-1970 
1980 
1990 
2000 
2010 
2020 

Population: 
1890 
1900 
1910 
1920 
1930 
1940 
1950 
1960 
1970 
1980 
1990 
2000 
2010 
2020 

CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
OTHER STATISTICAL INFORMATION 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 
(UNAUDITED) 

TABLE4 

1869 

Charter Ordinance 
Seven Member Council - Mayor 

8 square miles 
9 696 square miles 

10 409 square miles 
11 43 square miles 
11 82 square miles 
11 85 square miles 

8,670 
8,094 
8,893 
9,130 
9,539 

10,368 
11,088 
11,728 
12,351 
12,270 
12.747 
12,925 
13,515 
14,927 

Building Permits and Construction: 
Total Permits 

~ Number 

2011 320 
2012 302 
2013 304 
2014 314 
2015 344 
2016 324 
2017 289 
2018 267 

2019 286 

2020 262 

Total number of full-time City employees 
at December 31 , 2020 

Value 

$ 21,424,010 
14,184,772 
20,510,983 
33,256,767 
16,763,876 
33,800,001 
64,211,459 
42,336,752 

61,753,927 

37,180,145 

(134) 

New 1 & 2 Famitr Homes 
Number Value 

4 $ 377,000 
7 1,035,026 
16 2,790,000 
11 2,037,000 
19 3,454,772 
12 2,697,515 
26 5,124,176 
21 3,917,670 

32 7,010,062 

25 6,901,998 

113 
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CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN 
OTHER STATISTICAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 
(UNAUDITED) 

Fire Protection: 
Nurr,l>l!I cl s1aucns 
Number of full-time employees 
Firefighting units 
Ambulance units 

Police Protection: 
Number of stations 
Number of employees 
Number of police vehicle units 

Parks and Recreation: 
Number of outdoor skating facilities 
Number of parks (including neighborhood facilities) 
Total parks area 

Education: 
Number of elementary schools 
Number of middle schools 
Number of high schools 
Area of district 

Municipal Water and Sewer: 
Sewer system: 

Sewer customers 
Water system: 

Number of meters in service as of December 31, 2020 
Number of meters (net) added during 2020 
Average daily consumption - in gallons: 

Measured 
Pumped 

Maximum daily capacity - water production - in gallons 
Watermain Footage 
Fire hydrants 
Maximum gallons pumped in any one day - July 30, 2020 
Minimum gallons pumped in any one day - December 25, 2020 
Storage capacity - in gallons 

Paved, graded and graveled streets 

Elections: 

Library: 

Number of wards 
Number of votes cast in last municipal election - April 7, 2020 
Total number of registered voters 
Percentage of registered voters voting in last election 

Circulation in 2020 
Interlibrary Loan (MORE) 
Number of volumes as of December 31, 2020 
Number of employees 

(135) 

TABLE 4 

2 
27 

6 
4 

1 
27 
12 

1 
22 

459 2 acres 

8 
2 
2 

1 B6 square miles 

6,009 

6,131 
(213) 

1,991,000 
2,367,000 
B,490,000 

497,679 
867 

4,604,000 
935,000 

2,750,000 

98 68 

7 
3,116 
7,250 

42,98% 

114,252 
42,941 

323,735 
13 FTE 
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Quarles & Brady LLP 
411 East Wisconsin Avenue 

Milwaukee, WI  53202 

August 23, 2022 

Re: City of Chippewa Falls, Wisconsin ("Issuer") 
$3,805,000 General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2022C, 
dated August 23, 2022 ("Bonds") 

We have acted as bond counsel to the Issuer in connection with the issuance of the Bonds.  
In such capacity, we have examined such law and such certified proceedings, certifications, and 
other documents as we have deemed necessary to render this opinion. 

Regarding questions of fact material to our opinion, we have relied on the certified 
proceedings and other certifications of public officials and others furnished to us without 
undertaking to verify the same by independent investigation. 

The Bonds are numbered from R-1 and upward; bear interest at the rates set forth below; 
and mature on the dates and in the principal amounts as follows: 

Year Principal Amount Interest Rate 

October 1, 2023 $370,000 ___% 
October 1, 2024 265,000 ___ 
October 1, 2025 155,000 ___ 
October 1, 2026 260,000 ___ 
October 1, 2027 270,000 ___ 
October 1, 2028 285,000 ___ 
October 1, 2029 280,000 ___ 
October 1, 2030 290,000 ___ 
October 1, 2031 185,000 ___ 
October 1, 2032 190,000 ___ 
October 1, 2033 105,000 ___ 
October 1, 2034 110,000 ___ 
October 1, 2035 115,000 ___ 
October 1, 2036 120,000 ___ 
October 1, 2037 120,000 ___ 
October 1, 2038 150,000 ___ 
October 1, 2039 120,000 ___ 
October 1, 2040 125,000 ___ 
October 1, 2041 140,000 ___ 

April 1, 2042 150,000 ___ 

Interest is payable semi-annually on April 1 and October 1 of each year commencing on April 1, 
2023. 
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The Bonds maturing on October 1, 2031 and thereafter are subject to redemption prior to 
maturity, at the option of the Issuer, on October 1, 2030 or on any date thereafter.  Said Bonds are 
redeemable as a whole or in part, and if in part, from maturities selected by the Issuer, and within 
each maturity by lot, at the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date of 
redemption. 
 

[The Bonds maturing in the years _______________ are subject to mandatory redemption 
by lot as provided in the Bonds, at the redemption price of par plus accrued interest to the date of 
redemption and without premium.] 
 

We further certify that we have examined a sample of the Bonds and find the same to be 
in proper form. 

 
Based upon and subject to the foregoing, it is our opinion under existing law that: 
 
1. The Bonds have been duly authorized and executed by the Issuer and are valid and 

binding general obligations of the Issuer. 
 

2. All the taxable property in the territory of the Issuer is subject to the levy of ad 
valorem taxes to pay principal of, and interest on, the Bonds, without limitation as to rate or 
amount.  The Issuer is required by law to include in its annual tax levy the principal and interest 
coming due on the Bonds except to the extent that necessary funds have been irrevocably deposited 
into the debt service fund account established for the payment of the principal of and interest on 
the Bonds. 
 

3. The interest on the Bonds is excludable for federal income tax purposes from the 
gross income of the owners of the Bonds.  The interest on the Bonds is not an item of tax preference 
for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed by Section 55 of the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") on individuals.  The Code contains requirements that must 
be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in order for interest on the Bonds to be or 
continue to be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes.  Failure to comply 
with certain of those requirements could cause the interest on the Bonds to be included in gross 
income retroactively to the date of issuance of the Bonds.  The Issuer has agreed to comply with 
all of those requirements.  The opinion set forth in the first sentence of this paragraph is subject to 
the condition that the Issuer comply with those requirements.  We express no opinion regarding 
other federal tax consequences arising with respect to the Bonds. 
 

We express no opinion regarding the accuracy, adequacy, or completeness of the Official 
Statement or any other offering material relating to the Bonds.  Further, we express no opinion 
regarding tax consequences arising with respect to the Bonds other than as expressly set forth 
herein. 
 

The rights of the owners of the Bonds and the enforceability thereof may be subject to 
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and similar laws affecting creditors' rights and 
may be subject to the exercise of judicial discretion in accordance with general principles of equity, 
whether considered at law or in equity. 
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This opinion is given as of the date hereof, and we assume no obligation to revise or 
supplement this opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances that may hereafter come to our 
attention, or any changes in law that may hereafter occur. 

 
QUARLES & BRADY LLP 
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APPENDIX C

BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM

1. The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York, New York, will act as securities depository for the securities
(the "Securities").  The Securities will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co.
(DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. 
One fully-registered Security certificate will be issued for [each issue of] the Securities, [each] in the aggregate
principal amount of such issue, and will be deposited with DTC.  [If, however, the aggregate principal amount of
[any] issue exceeds $500 million, one certificate will be issued with respect to each $500 million of principal
amount, and an additional certificate will be issued with respect to any remaining principal amount of such issue.] 

 
2. DTC, the world's largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York

Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the
Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code,
and a "clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934.  DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues,
corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC's
participants ("Direct Participants") deposit with DTC.  DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct
Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized
book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants' accounts.  This eliminates the need for physical
movement of securities certificates.  Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and
dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations.  DTC is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation ("DTCC").  DTCC is the holding company for DTC,
National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered
clearing agencies.  DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries.  Access to the DTC system is also
available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and
clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly
or indirectly ("Indirect Participants").  DTC has a Standard & Poor's rating of AA+.  The DTC Rules applicable
to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission.  More information about DTC can
be found at www.dtcc.com. 

 
3. Purchases of Securities under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive

a credit for the Securities on DTC's records.  The ownership interest  of each actual purchaser of each Security
("Beneficial Owner") is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants' records.  Beneficial Owners
will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase.  Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to
receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings,
from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction.  Transfers
of ownership interests in the Securities are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect
Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing
their ownership interests in Securities, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Securities is
discontinued.  

 
4. To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Securities deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the

name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized
representative of DTC.  The deposit of Securities with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or
such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership.  DTC has no knowledge of the actual
Beneficial Owners of the Securities; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose
accounts such Securities are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners.  The Direct and Indirect
Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers. 
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5. Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect
Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by
arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to
time.  [Beneficial Owners of Securities may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of
notices of significant events with respect to the Securities, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed
amendments to the Security documents.  For example, Beneficial Owners of Securities may wish to ascertain that
the nominee holding the Securities for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. 
In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request
that copies of notices be provided directly to them.] 

 
6. Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC.  If less than all of the Securities within an issue are being redeemed,

DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to be
redeemed.  

 
7. Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to Securities unless

authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's MMI Procedures.  Under its usual procedures, DTC
mails an Omnibus Proxy to  City as soon as possible after the record date.  The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede &
Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Securities are credited on the
record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

 
8. Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Securities will be made to Cede & Co., or such

other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  DTC's practice is to credit Direct
Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the City or Agent,
on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's records.  Payments by Participants
to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with
securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street name," and will be the
responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, Agent, or the City, subject to any statutory or regulatory
requirements as may be in effect from time to time.  Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend
payments to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is
the responsibility of the City or Agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the
responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of
Direct and Indirect Participants.   

 
9. A Beneficial Owner shall give notice to elect to have its Securities purchased or tendered, through its Participant,

to [Tender/Remarketing] Agent, and shall effect delivery of such Securities by causing the Direct Participant to
transfer the Participant's interest in the Securities, on DTC's records, to [Tender/Remarketing] Agent.  The
requirement for physical delivery of Securities in connection with an optional tender or a mandatory purchase will
be deemed satisfied when the ownership rights in the Securities are transferred by Direct Participants on DTC's
records and followed by a book-entry credit of tendered Securities to [Tender/Remarketing] Agent's DTC account. 

 
10. DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Securities at any time by giving

reasonable notice to the City or Agent.  Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor depository is not
obtained, Security certificates are required to be printed and delivered. 

 
11. The City may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a successor

securities depository).  In that event, Security certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC. 
 
12. The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been obtained from sources

that the City believes to be reliable, but the City takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof. 
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE 
 
This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the "Disclosure Certificate") is executed and 

delivered by the City of Chippewa Falls, Chippewa County, Wisconsin (the "Issuer") in connection 
with the issuance of $3,805,000* General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2022C, 
dated August 23, 2022 (the "Securities").  The Securities are being issued pursuant to resolutions 
adopted on June 21, 2022 and August 2, 2022 (collectively, the "Resolution") and delivered to 
_____________________________ (the "Purchaser") on the date hereof.  Pursuant to the 
Resolution, the Issuer has covenanted and agreed to provide continuing disclosure of certain 
financial information and operating data and timely notices of the occurrence of certain events.  In 
addition, the Issuer hereby specifically covenants and agrees as follows: 
 

Section 1(a).  Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate.  This Disclosure Certificate is being 
executed and delivered by the Issuer for the benefit of the holders of the Securities in order to assist 
the Participating Underwriters within the meaning of the Rule (defined herein) in complying with 
SEC Rule 15c2-12(b)(5).  References in this Disclosure Certificate to holders of the Securities 
shall include the beneficial owners of the Securities.  This Disclosure Certificate constitutes the 
written Undertaking required by the Rule. 

 
Section 1(b).  Filing Requirements.  Any filing under this Disclosure Certificate must be 

made solely by transmitting such filing to the MSRB (defined herein) through the Electronic 
Municipal Market Access ("EMMA") System at www.emma.msrb.org in the format prescribed by 
the MSRB.  All documents provided to the MSRB shall be accompanied by the identifying 
information prescribed by the MSRB. 

 
Section 2.  Definitions.  In addition to the defined terms set forth in the Resolution, which 

apply to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate unless otherwise defined in this 
Section, the following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings: 
 

"Annual Report" means any annual report provided by the Issuer pursuant to, and as 
described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate. 

 
"Audited Financial Statements" means the Issuer's annual financial statements, which are 

currently prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for 
governmental units as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and 
which the Issuer intends to continue to prepare in substantially the same form. 
 

"Final Official Statement" means the Final Official Statement dated August 3, 2022 
delivered in connection with the Securities, which is available from the MSRB. 
 
 "Financial Obligation" means a (i) debt obligation; (ii) derivative instrument entered into 
in connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt 
obligation; or (iii) guarantee of (i) or (ii). The term Financial Obligation shall not include municipal 
securities as to which a final official statement has been provided to the MSRB consistent with the 
Rule.  
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"Fiscal Year" means the fiscal year of the Issuer. 
 

"Governing Body" means the Common Council of the Issuer or such other body as may 
hereafter be the chief legislative body of the Issuer. 

 
"Issuer" means the City of Chippewa Falls, Chippewa County, Wisconsin, which is the 

obligated person with respect to the Securities. 
 
"Issuer Contact" means the Finance Manager/Treasurer of the Issuer who can be contacted 

at City Hall, 30 West Central Street, Chippewa Falls, Wisconsin 54729, phone (715) 726-2718, 
fax (715) 726-2759. 

 
"Listed Event" means any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure Certificate. 
 
"MSRB" means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 
 
"Participating Underwriter" means any of the original underwriter(s) of the Securities 

(including the Purchaser) required to comply with the Rule in connection with the offering of the 
Securities. 

 
"Rule" means SEC Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) promulgated by the SEC under the Securities 

Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time, and official interpretations 
thereof. 

 
"SEC" means the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

 
Section 3.  Provision of Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements. 
 
(a) The Issuer shall, not later than 365 days after the end of the Fiscal Year, 

commencing with the year ended December 31, 2021, provide the MSRB with an Annual Report 
filed in accordance with Section 1(b) of this Disclosure Certificate and which is consistent with 
the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate.  The Annual Report may be submitted 
as a single document or as separate documents comprising a package, and may cross-reference 
other information as provided in Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate; provided that the Audited 
Financial Statements of the Issuer may be submitted separately from the balance of the Annual 
Report and that, if Audited Financial Statements are not available within 365 days after the end of 
the Fiscal Year, unaudited financial information will be provided, and Audited Financial 
Statements will be submitted to the MSRB when and if available. 

 
(b) If the Issuer is unable or fails to provide to the MSRB an Annual Report by the date 

required in subsection (a), the Issuer shall send in a timely manner a notice of that fact to the MSRB 
in the format prescribed by the MSRB, as described in Section 1(b) of this Disclosure Certificate. 

 
Section 4.  Content of Annual Report.  The Issuer's Annual Report shall contain or 

incorporate by reference the Audited Financial Statements and updates of the following sections 
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of the Final Official Statement to the extent such financial information and operating data are not 
included in the Audited Financial Statements: 
 

1.  DEBT - Direct Debt 
2.  DEBT - Debt Limit 
3.  VALUATIONS - Current Property Valuations 
4.  TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS - Tax Levies and Collections 
 
Any or all of the items listed above may be incorporated by reference from other 

documents, including official statements of debt issues of the Issuer or related public entities, 
which are available to the public on the MSRB’s Internet website or filed with the SEC.  The Issuer 
shall clearly identify each such other document so incorporated by reference. 
 

Section 5.  Reporting of Listed Events. 
 
(a) This Section 5 shall govern the giving of notices of the occurrence of any of the 

following events with respect to the Securities: 
 
1. Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 
 
2. Non-payment related defaults, if material; 
 
3. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 
 
4. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 
 
5. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 
 
6. Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or 

final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) 
or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the 
Securities, or other material events affecting the tax status of the Securities;  

 
7. Modification to rights of holders of the Securities, if material; 
 
8. Securities calls, if material, and tender offers; 
 
9. Defeasances; 
 
10. Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Securities, if 

material; 
 
11. Rating changes; 
 
12. Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Issuer; 
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13.  The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the Issuer 
or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Issuer, other than in the 
ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such 
an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, 
other than pursuant to its terms, if material; 

 
14. Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee, 

if material; 
 
15. Incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the Issuer, if material, or agreement to 

covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a 
Financial Obligation of the Issuer, any of which affect holders of the Securities, if 
material; and 

 
16. Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other 

similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the Issuer, any of which 
reflect financial difficulties.  

 
For the purposes of the event identified in subsection (a)12. above, the event is considered 

to occur when any of the following occur:  the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or similar 
officer for the Issuer  in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding 
under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over 
substantially all of the assets or business of the Issuer, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by 
leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but subject to the 
supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the entry of an order confirming a 
plan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental authority having 
supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the Issuer. 

 
(b) When a Listed Event occurs, the Issuer shall, in a timely manner not in excess of 

ten business days after the occurrence of the Listed Event, file a notice of such occurrence with 
the MSRB.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, notice of Listed Events described in subsections (a) 
(8) and (9) need not be given under this subsection any earlier than the notice (if any) of the 
underlying event is given to holders of affected Securities pursuant to the Resolution. 

 
(c) Unless otherwise required by law, the Issuer shall submit the information in the 

format prescribed by the MSRB, as described in Section 1(b) of this Disclosure Certificate. 
 

Section 6.  Termination of Reporting Obligation.  The Issuer's obligations under the 
Resolution and this Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior 
redemption or payment in full of all the Securities. 

 
Section 7.  Issuer Contact; Agent.  Information may be obtained from the Issuer Contact.  

Additionally, the Issuer may, from time to time, appoint or engage a dissemination agent to assist 
it in carrying out its obligations under the Resolution and this Disclosure Certificate, and may 
discharge any such agent, with or without appointing a successor dissemination agent.   
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Section 8.  Amendment; Waiver.  Notwithstanding any other provision of the Resolution 
or this Disclosure Certificate, the Issuer may amend this Disclosure Certificate, and any provision 
of this Disclosure Certificate may be waived, if the following conditions are met: 

 
(a)(i)   The amendment or waiver is made in connection with a change in circumstances 

that arises from a change in legal requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature, or 
status of the Issuer, or the type of business conducted; or 

 
    (ii)   This Disclosure Certificate, as amended or waived, would have complied with the 

requirements of the Rule at the time of the primary offering, after taking into account any 
amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances; and 

 
(b)   The amendment or waiver does not materially impair the interests of beneficial 

owners of the Securities, as determined and certified to the Issuer by an underwriter, financial 
advisor, bond counsel or trustee. 

 
In the event this Disclosure Certificate is amended for any reason other than to cure any 

ambiguities, inconsistencies, or typographical errors that may be contained herein, the Issuer 
agrees the next Annual Report it submits after such amendment shall include an explanation of the 
reasons for the amendment and the impact of the change, if any, on the type of financial statements 
or operating data being provided. 

 
If the amendment concerns the accounting principles to be followed in preparing financial 

statements, then the Issuer agrees that it will give an event notice and that the next Annual Report 
it submits after such amendment will include a comparison between financial statements or 
information prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and those prepared on the basis 
of the former accounting principles. 

 
Section 9.  Additional Information.  Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed 

to prevent the Issuer from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination 
set forth in this Disclosure Certificate or any other means of communication, or including any 
other information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to 
that which is required by this Disclosure Certificate.  If the Issuer chooses to include any 
information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to that 
which is specifically required by this Disclosure Certificate, the Issuer shall have no obligation 
under this Disclosure Certificate to update such information or include it in any future Annual 
Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event. 

 
Section 10.  Default.  (a)  Except as described in the Final Official Statement, in the 

previous five years, the Issuer has not failed to comply in all material respects with any previous 
undertakings under the Rule to provide annual reports or notices of events. 

 
(b)   In the event of a failure of the Issuer to comply with any provision of this Disclosure 

Certificate any holder of the Securities may take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, 
including seeking mandate or specific performance by court order, to cause the Issuer to comply 
with its obligations under the Resolution and this Disclosure Certificate.  A default under this 
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Disclosure Certificate shall not be deemed an event of default with respect to the Securities and 
the sole remedy under this Disclosure Certificate in the event of any failure of the Issuer to comply 
with this Disclosure Certificate shall be an action to compel performance. 

Section 11.  Beneficiaries.  This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of 
the Issuer, the Participating Underwriters and holders from time to time of the Securities, and shall 
create no rights in any other person or entity. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have executed this Certificate in our official capacities 
effective the 23rd day of August, 2022. 

_____________________________ 
Gregory S. Hoffman 
Mayor 

(SEAL) 
_____________________________ 
Bridget Givens 
City Clerk 
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APPENDIX E

NOTICE OF SALE

$3,805,000* GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS, SERIES 2022C
CITY OF CHIPPEWA FALLS, WISCONSIN

Bids for the purchase of $3,805,000* General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2022C (the "Bonds") of
the City of Chippewa Falls, Wisconsin (the "City") will be received at the offices of Ehlers and Associates, Inc.
("Ehlers"), 3060 Centre Pointe Drive, Roseville, Minnesota 55113-1105, municipal advisors to the City, until 10:00
A.M., Central Time, and ELECTRONIC PROPOSALS will be received via PARITY, in the manner described
below, until 10:00 A.M. Central Time, on August 2, 2022, at which time they will be opened, read and tabulated. 
The bids will be presented to the Common Council for consideration for award by resolution at a meeting to be held
at 6:30 P.M., Central Time, on the same date.  The bid offering to purchase the Bonds upon the terms specified herein
and most favorable to the City will be accepted unless all bids are rejected.

PURPOSE

The Bonds are authorized pursuant to Section 67.04, Wisconsin Statutes, by the City, for the public purposes of
paying the costs of street and sewerage projects, consisting of storm water projects and current refunding certain
outstanding general obligations of the City. The Bonds are general obligations of the City, and all the taxable property
in the City is subject to the levy of a tax to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds as they become due which
tax may, under current law, be levied without limitation as to rate or amount.  

DATES AND MATURITIES

The Bonds will be dated August 23, 2022, will be issued as fully registered Bonds in the denomination of $5,000
each, or any integral multiple thereof, and will mature as follows:

Date Amount* Date Amount* Date Amount*

10/1/2023 $370,000 10/1/2030 $290,000 10/1/2037 $120,000

10/1/2024 265,000 10/1/2031 185,000 10/1/2038 150,000

10/1/2025 155,000 10/1/2032 190,000 10/1/2039 120,000

10/1/2026 260,000 10/1/2033 105,000 10/1/2040 125,000

10/1/2027 270,000 10/1/2034 110,000 10/1/2041 140,000

10/1/2028 285,000 10/1/2035 115,000 04/1/2042 150,000

10/1/2029 280,000 10/1/2036 120,000

ADJUSTMENT OPTION

* The City reserves the right to increase or decrease the principal amount of the Bonds on the day of sale, in
increments of $5,000 each.  Increases or decreases may be made in any maturity.  If any principal amounts are
adjusted, the purchase price proposed will be adjusted to maintain the same gross spread per $1,000. 
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TERM BOND OPTION

Bids for the Bonds may contain a maturity schedule providing for any combination of serial bonds and term bonds,
subject to mandatory redemption, so long as the amount of principal maturing or subject to mandatory redemption
in each year conforms to the maturity schedule set forth above.  All dates are inclusive.  

INTEREST PAYMENT DATES AND RATES

Interest will be payable on April 1 and October 1 of each year, commencing April 1, 2023, to the registered owners
of the Bonds appearing of record in the bond register as of the close of business on the 15th day (whether or not a
business day) of the immediately preceding month.  Interest will be computed upon the basis of a 360-day year of
twelve 30-day months and will be rounded pursuant to rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.  The
rate for any maturity may not be more than 2.00% less than the rate for any preceding maturity.  (For
example, if a rate of 4.50% is proposed for the 2023 maturity, then the lowest rate that may be proposed for
any later maturity is 2.50%.) All Bonds of the same maturity must bear interest from date of issue until paid at a
single, uniform rate.   Each rate must be expressed in an integral multiple of 5/100 or 1/8 of 1%.   

BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY FORMAT

Unless otherwise specified by the purchaser, the Bonds will be designated in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee
for The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC").  DTC will act as securities depository for the
Bonds, and will be responsible for maintaining a book-entry system for recording the interests of its participants and
the transfers of interests between its participants. The participants will be responsible for maintaining records
regarding the beneficial interests of the individual purchasers of the Bonds.  So long as Cede & Co. is the registered
owner of the Bonds, all payments of principal and interest will be made to the depository which, in turn, will be
obligated to remit such payments to its participants for subsequent disbursement to the beneficial owners of the
Bonds.

PAYING AGENT

The City has selected Bond Trust Services Corporation, Roseville, Minnesota ("BTSC") to act as paying agent (the
"Paying Agent").  BTSC and Ehlers are affiliate companies.  The City will pay the charges for Paying Agent services. 
The City reserves the right to remove the Paying Agent and to appoint a successor.

OPTIONAL REDEMPTION

At the option of the City, the Bonds maturing on or after October 1, 2031 shall be subject to optional redemption prior
to maturity on October 1, 2030 or any date thereafter, at a price of par plus accrued interest to the date of optional
redemption.

Redemption may be in whole or in part of the Bonds subject to prepayment.  If redemption is in part, the selection
of the amounts and maturities of the Bonds to be redeemed shall be at the discretion of the City.  If only part of the
Bonds having a common maturity date are called for redemption, then the City or Paying Agent, if any, will notify
DTC of the particular amount of such maturity to be redeemed.  DTC will determine by lot the amount of each
participant's interest in such maturity to be redeemed and each participant will then select by lot the beneficial
ownership interest in such maturity to be redeemed.

Notice of such call shall be given by sending a notice by registered or certified mail, facsimile or electronic
transmission, overnight delivery service or in any other manner required by DTC, not less than 30 days nor more than
60 days prior to the date fixed for redemption to the registered owner of each Bond to be redeemed at the address
shown on the registration books.
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DELIVERY

On or about August 23, 2022, the Bonds will be delivered without cost to the winning bidder at DTC.  On the day
of closing, the City will furnish to the winning bidder the opinion of bond counsel hereinafter described, an arbitrage
certification, and certificates verifying that no litigation in any manner questioning the validity of the Bonds is then
pending or, to the best knowledge of officers of the City, threatened.  Payment for the Bonds must be received by the
City at its designated depository on the date of closing in immediately available funds.

LEGAL MATTERS

An opinion as to the validity of the Bonds and the exemption from federal taxation of the interest thereon will be
furnished by Quarles & Brady LLP,  Bond Counsel to the City, and will be available at the time of delivery of the
Bonds.  The legal opinion will be issued on the basis of existing law and will state that the Bonds are valid and
binding general obligations of the City; provided that the rights of the owners of the Bonds and the enforceability
of the Bonds may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, and other similar laws affecting
creditors' rights and by equitable principles (which may be applied in either a legal or equitable proceeding). (See
FORM OF LEGAL OPINION" found in Appendix B).  

Quarles & Brady LLP has also been retained by the City to serve as Disclosure Counsel to the City with respect to
the Bonds.  Although, as Disclosure Counsel to the City, Quarles & Brady LLP has assisted the City with certain
disclosure matters, Quarles & Brady LLP has not undertaken to independently verify the accuracy, completeness or
sufficiency of this Official Statement or other offering material relating to the Bonds and assumes no responsibility
whatsoever nor shall have any liability to any other party for the statements or information contained or incorporated
by reference in this Official Statement.  Further, Quarles & Brady LLP makes no representation as to the suitability
of the Bonds for any investor.

SUBMISSION OF BIDS

Bids must not be for less than $3,757,438 plus accrued interest on the principal sum of $3,805,000 from date of
original issue of the Bonds to date of delivery.  Prior to the time established above for the opening of bids, interested
parties may submit a bid as follows:

1) Electronically to bondsale@ehlers-inc.com; or

2) Electronically via PARITY in accordance with this Notice of Sale until 10:00 A.M. Central Time, but no
bid will be received after the time for receiving bids specified above.  To the extent any instructions or
directions set forth in PARITY conflict with this Notice of Sale, the terms of this Notice of Sale shall
control.  For further information about PARITY, potential bidders may contact Ehlers or i-Deal LLC at 1359
Broadway, 2nd Floor, New York, New York 10018, Telephone (212) 849-5021.

Bids must be submitted to Ehlers via one of the methods described above and must be received prior to the time
established above for the opening of bids.  Each bid must be unconditional except as to legality.  Neither the City nor
Ehlers shall be responsible for any failure to receive a facsimile submission.

A good faith deposit ("Deposit") in the amount of $76,100 shall be made by the winning bidder by wire
transfer of funds.  Such Deposit shall be received by Ehlers no later than two hours after the bid opening time. 
Wire transfer instructions will be provided to the winning bidder by Ehlers after the tabulation of bids.  The
City reserves the right to award the Bonds to a winning bidder whose wire transfer is initiated but not received by
such time provided that such winning bidder’s federal wire reference number has been received by such time.  In the
event the Deposit is not received as provided above, the  City may award the Bonds to the bidder submitting the next
best bid provided such bidder agrees to such award.  The Deposit will be retained by the City as liquidated damages
if the bid is accepted and the Purchaser fails to comply therewith. 
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The  City and the winning bidder who chooses to so wire the Deposit hereby agree irrevocably that Ehlers shall be
the escrow holder of the Deposit wired to such account subject only to these conditions and duties: 1) All income
earned thereon shall be retained by the escrow holder as payment for its expenses; 2) If the bid is not accepted, Ehlers
shall, at its expense, promptly return the Deposit amount to the winning bidder; 3) If the bid is accepted, the Deposit
shall be returned to the winning bidder at the closing;  4) Ehlers shall bear all costs of maintaining the escrow account
and returning the funds to the winning bidder; 5) Ehlers shall not be an insurer of the Deposit amount and shall have
no liability hereunder except if it willfully fails to perform or recklessly disregards, its duties specified herein; and
6) FDIC insurance on deposits within the escrow account shall be limited to $250,000 per bidder.

No bid can be withdrawn after the time set for receiving bids unless the meeting of the City scheduled for award of
the Bonds is adjourned, recessed, or continued to another date without award of the Bonds having been made.

AWARD

The Bonds will be awarded to the bidder offering the lowest interest rate to be determined on a True Interest Cost
(TIC) basis.  The City’s computation of the interest rate of each bid, in accordance with customary practice, will be
controlling.  In the event of a tie, the sale of the Bonds will be awarded by lot.  The City reserves the right to reject
any and all bids and to waive any informality in any bid.

BOND INSURANCE

If the Bonds are qualified for any bond insurance policy, the purchase of such policy shall be at the sole option and
expense of the winning bidder.  Any cost for such insurance policy is to be paid by the winning bidder, except that,
if the City requested and received a rating on the Bonds from a rating agency, the City will pay that rating fee.  Any
rating agency fees not requested by the City are the responsibility of the winning bidder.

Failure of the municipal bond insurer to issue the policy after the Bonds are awarded to the winning bidder shall not
constitute cause for failure or refusal by the winning bidder to accept delivery of the Bonds.

CUSIP NUMBERS

The City will assume no obligation for the assignment or printing of CUSIP numbers on the Bonds or for the
correctness of any numbers printed thereon, but will permit such numbers to be printed at the expense of the winning
bidder, if the winning bidder waives any delay in delivery occasioned thereby.

QUALIFIED TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS

The Bonds are "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

In order to assist the Underwriters in complying with the provisions of Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities
and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the City will enter into an undertaking for the
benefit of the holders of the Bonds.  A description of the details and terms of the undertaking is set forth in Appendix
D of the Official Statement. 

NEW ISSUE PRICING

The winning bidder will be required to provide, in a timely manner, certain information necessary to compute the
yield on the Bonds pursuant to the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and to provide a
certificate which will be provided by Bond Counsel upon request.
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(a) The winning bidder shall assist the City in establishing the issue price of the Bonds and shall execute and
deliver to the City at closing an "issue price" or similar certificate satisfactory to Bond Counsel setting forth the
reasonably expected initial offering price to the public or the sales price or prices of the Bonds, together with the
supporting pricing wires or equivalent communications.  All actions to be taken by the City under this Notice of Sale
to establish the issue price of the Bonds may be taken on behalf of the City by the City’s municipal advisor identified
herein and any notice or report to be provided to the City may be provided to the City’s municipal advisor.

(b) The City intends that the provisions of Treasury Regulation Section 1.148-1(f)(3)(i) (defining "competitive
sale" for purposes of establishing the issue price of the Bonds) will apply to the initial sale of the Bonds (the
"competitive sale requirements") because:

 (1) The City shall disseminate this Notice of Sale to potential underwriters in a manner that is
reasonably designed to reach potential investors;

(2) all bidders shall have an equal opportunity to bid;

(3) the City may receive bids from at least three underwriters of municipal bonds who have established
industry reputations for underwriting new issuances of municipal bonds; and

(4) the City anticipates awarding the sale of the Bonds to the bidder who submits a firm offer to
purchase the Bonds at the highest price (or lowest interest cost), as set forth in this Notice of Sale.

Any bid submitted pursuant to this Notice of Sale shall be considered a firm offer for the purchase of the Bonds, as
specified in this bid.

(c) If all of the requirements of a "competitive sale" are not satisfied, the City shall advise the winning bidder
of such fact prior to the time of award of the sale of the Bonds to the winning bidder.  In such event, any bid
submitted will not be subject to cancellation or withdrawal and the City agrees to use the rule selected by the winning
bidder on its bid form to determine the issue price for the Bonds.  On its bid form, each bidder must select one of the
following two rules for determining the issue price of the Bonds: (1) the first price at which 10% of a maturity of the
Bonds (the "10% test") is sold to the public as the issue price of that maturity or (2) the initial offering price to the
public as of the sale date as the issue price of each maturity of the Bonds (the "hold-the-offering-price rule").

(d) If all of the requirements of a "competitive sale" are not satisfied and the winning bidder selects the hold-the-
offering-price rule, the winning bidder shall (i) confirm that the underwriters have offered or will offer the Bonds
to the public on or before the date of award at the offering price or prices (the "initial offering price"), or at the
corresponding yield or yields, set forth in the bid submitted by the winning bidder and (ii) agree, on behalf of the
underwriters participating in the purchase of the Bonds, that the underwriters will neither offer nor sell unsold Bonds
of any maturity to which the hold-the-offering-price rule shall apply to any person at a price that is higher than the
initial offering price to the public during the period starting on the sale date and ending on the earlier of the
following:

(1) the close of the fifth (5th) business day after the sale date; or
 

(2) the date on which the underwriters have sold at least 10% of that maturity of the Bonds to the public at
a price that is no higher than the initial offering price to the public.

The winning bidder will advise the City promptly after the close of the fifth (5th) business day after the sale whether
it has sold 10% of that maturity of the Bonds to the public at a price that is no higher than the initial offering price
to the public.
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The City acknowledges that in making the representation set forth above, the winning bidder will rely on:

(i) the agreement of each underwriter to comply with requirements for establishing issue price of the Bonds,
including, but not limited to, its agreement to comply with the hold-the-price rule, if applicable to the Bonds, as set
forth in an agreement among underwriters and the related pricing wires,

(ii) in the event a selling group has been created in connection with the initial sale of the Bonds to the public,
the agreement of each dealer who is a member of the selling group to comply with the requirements for establishing
issue price of the Bonds, including, but not limited to, its agreement to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule,
if applicable to the Bonds, as set forth in a selling group agreement and the related pricing wires, and

(iii) in the event that an underwriter or dealer who is a member of the selling group is a party to a third-party
distribution agreement that was employed in connection with the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, the agreement
of each broker-dealer that is party to such agreement to comply with the requirements for establishing issue price of
the Bonds, including, but not limited to, its agreement to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable
to the Bonds, as set forth in the third-party distribution agreement and the related pricing wires.  The City further
acknowledges that each underwriter shall be solely liable for its failure to comply with its agreement regarding the
requirements for establishing issue price rule of the Bonds, including, but not limited to, its agreement to comply with
the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable to the Bonds, and that no underwriter shall be liable for the failure of
any other underwriter, or of any dealer who is a member of a selling group, or of any broker-dealer that is a party to
a third-party distribution agreement to comply with its corresponding agreement to comply with the requirements for
establishing issue price of the Bonds, including, but not limited to, its agreement to comply with the hold-the-
offering-price rule as applicable to the Bonds. 

(e) If all of the requirements of a "competitive sale" are not satisfied and the winning bidder selects the 10% test,
the winning bidder agrees to promptly report to the City, Bond Counsel and Ehlers the prices at which the Bonds have
been sold to the public.  That reporting obligation shall continue, whether or not the closing date has occurred, until
either (i) all Bonds of that maturity have been sold or (ii) the 10% test has been satisfied as to each maturity of the
Bonds, provided that, the winning bidder’s reporting obligation after the Closing Date may be at reasonable periodic
intervals or otherwise upon request of the City or bond counsel. 

(f) By submitting a bid, each bidder confirms that:

(i) any agreement among underwriters, any selling group agreement and each third-party distribution
agreement (to which the bidder is a party) relating to the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, together with the
related pricing wires, contains or will contain language obligating each underwriter, each dealer who is a member
of the selling group, and each broker-dealer that is party to such third-party distribution agreement, as applicable, to:

 (A) report the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold Bonds of each maturity allocated to it, whether
or not the Closing Date has occurred until either all securities of that maturity allocated to it have been sold or it is
notified by the winning bidder that either the 10% test has been satisfied as to the Bonds of that maturity, provided
that, the reporting obligation after the Closing Date may be at reasonable periodic intervals or otherwise upon request
of the City or bond counsel.

(B) comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable, in each case if and for so long as directed by
the winning bidder and as set forth in the related pricing wires, and

(ii) any agreement among underwriters or selling group agreement  relating to the initial sale of the Bonds
to the public, together with the related pricing wires, contains or will contain language obligating each underwriter,
each dealer who is a member of the selling group and each broker dealer that is a party to a third-party distribution
agreement to be employed in connection with the initial sale of the Bonds to the public to require each broker-dealer
that is a party to such third-party distribution agreement to:
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(A) to promptly notify the winning bidder of any sales of Bonds that, to its knowledge, are made to a
purchaser who is a related party to an underwriter participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public (each such
term being used as defined below), and 

(B) to acknowledge that, unless otherwise advised by the underwriter, dealer or broker-dealer, the winning
bidder shall assume that each order submitted by the underwriter, dealer or broker-dealer is a sale to the public.

(g) Sales of any Bonds to any person that is a related party to an underwriter participating in the initial sale of
the Bonds to the public (each term being used as defined below) shall not constitute sales to the public for purposes
of this Notice of Sale.  Further, for purposes of this Notice of Sale:

(i) "public" means any person other than an underwriter or a related party,

(ii) "underwriter" means (A) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract with the City (or with
the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds
to the public and (B) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with
a person described in clause (A) to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public (including
a member of a selling group or a party to a third-party distribution agreement participating in the
initial sale of the Bonds to the public),

(iii) a purchaser of any of the Bonds is a "related party" to an underwriter if the underwriter and the
purchaser are subject, directly or indirectly, to (A) more than 50% common ownership of the voting
power or the total value of their stock, if both entities are corporations (including direct ownership
by one corporation of another), (B) more than 50% common ownership of their capital interests or
profits interests, if both entities are partnerships (including direct ownership by one partnership of
another), or (C) more than 50% common ownership of the value of the outstanding stock of the
corporation or the capital interests or profit interests of the partnership, as applicable, if one entity
is a corporation and the other entity is a partnership (including direct ownership of the applicable
stock or interests by one entity of the other), and

(iv) "sale date" means the date that the Bonds are awarded by the City to the winning bidder.

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT

Bidders may obtain a copy of the Preliminary Official Statement relating to the Bonds  prior to the bid opening by
request from Ehlers at www.ehlers-inc.com by connecting to the Bond Sales link.  The Syndicate Manager will be
provided with an electronic copy of the Final Official Statement within seven business days of the bid acceptance. 
Up to 10 printed copies of the Final Official Statement will be provided upon request.  Additional copies of the Final
Official Statement will be available at a cost of $10.00 per copy.

Information for bidders and bid forms may be obtained from Ehlers at 3060 Centre Pointe Drive, Roseville,
Minnesota 55113-1105, Telephone (651) 697-8500.

By Order of the Common Council

City of Chippewa Falls, Wisconsin
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BID FORM

The Common Council August 2, 2022
City of Chippewa Falls, Wisconsin (the "City")

RE: $3,805,000* General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2022C (the "Bonds")
DATED: August 23, 2022

For all or none of the above Bonds, in accordance with the Notice of Sale and terms of the Global Book-Entry System (unless otherwise specified by the
Purchaser) as stated in this Official Statement, we will pay you $__________________ (not less than $3,757,438) plus accrued interest to date of delivery
for fully registered Bonds bearing interest rates and maturing as follows:

% due 10/01/2023 % due 10/01/2030 % due 10/01/2037

% due 10/01/2024 % due 10/01/2031 % due 10/01/2038

% due 10/01/2025 % due 10/01/2032 % due 10/01/2039

% due 10/01/2026 % due 10/01/2033 % due 10/01/2040

% due 10/01/2027 % due 10/01/2034 % due 10/01/2041

% due 10/01/2028 % due 10/01/2035 % due 04/01/2042

% due 10/01/2029 % due 10/01/2036

* The City reserves the right to increase or decrease the principal amount of the Bonds on the day of sale, in increments of $5,000 each.  Increases or
decreases may be made in any maturity.  If any principal amounts are adjusted, the purchase price proposed will be adjusted to maintain the same gross
spread per $1,000. 

The rate for any maturity may not be more than 2.00% less than the rate for any preceding maturity.  (For example, if a rate of 4.50% is
proposed for the 2023 maturity, then the lowest rate that may be proposed for any later maturity is 2.50%.)  All Bonds of the same maturity must
bear interest from date of issue until paid at a single, uniform rate.  Each rate must be expressed in an integral multiple of 5/100 or 1/8 of 1%.   

A good faith deposit ("Deposit") in the amount of $76,100 shall be made by the winning bidder by wire transfer of funds.  Such Deposit shall
be received by Ehlers no later than two hours after the bid opening time.  Wire transfer instructions will be provided to the winning bidder by
Ehlers after the tabulation of bids.  The City reserves the right to award the Bonds to a winning bidder whose wire transfer is initiated but not received
by such time provided that such winning bidder’s federal wire reference number has been received by such time.  In the event the Deposit is not received
as provided above, the  City may award the Bonds to the bidder submitting the next best bid provided such bidder agrees to such award.  The Deposit will
be retained by the City as liquidated damages if the bid is accepted and the Purchaser fails to comply therewith.  We agree to the conditions and duties of
Ehlers and Associates, Inc., as escrow holder of the Deposit, pursuant to the Notice of Sale.  This bid is for prompt acceptance and is conditional upon
delivery of said Bonds to The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, in accordance with the Notice of Sale.  Delivery is anticipated to be on
or about August 23, 2022. 

This bid is subject to the City’s agreement to enter into a written undertaking to provide continuing disclosure under Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the
Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as described in the Preliminary Official Statement for the Bonds.

We have received and reviewed the Official Statement, and any addenda thereto, and have submitted our requests for additional information or corrections
to the Final Official Statement.  As Syndicate Manager, we agree to provide the City with the reoffering price of the Bonds within 24 hours of the bid
acceptance.

This bid is a firm offer for the purchase of the Bonds identified in the Notice of Sale, on the terms set forth in this bid form and the Notice of Sale, and
is not subject to any conditions, except as permitted by the Notice of Sale.  

By submitting this bid, we confirm that we are an underwriter and have an established industry reputation for underwriting new issuances of municipal
bonds.   YES: ____   NO: ____.

If the competitive sale requirements are not met, we elect to use either the: _____10% test, or the _____hold-the-offering-price rule to determine the issue
price of the Bonds.

Account Manager: By:
Account Members:

Award will be on a true interest cost basis.  According to our computations (the correct computation being controlling in the award), the total dollar
interest cost (including any discount or less any premium) computed from August 23, 2022 of the above bid is $_______________and the true interest
cost (TIC) is __________%.

The foregoing offer is hereby accepted by and on behalf of the Common Council of the City of Chippewa Falls, Wisconsin, on August 2, 2022.

By: By:

Title: Title:
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